KANAK PROJECTS LTD

CIN: L67020WB1979PLCO31867

Registered Office: "Kanak Building" 41.Chowringhee

Road, Kolkata, West Bengal — 700071

44™ Annual Report
2022-2023



CONTENTS

Notice of Annual General Meeting

Directors’ Report and Annexures

Management Discussion and Analysis
Certificate of Non-Disqualification of Directors
CFO Compliance Certification

Debarment Certificate for Directors

Standalone & Consolidated Auditors” Report
Standalone & Consolidated Financial Statements
and Notes to Accounts.

Route Map



Kanak Projects Limited
Regd.Office:41, Chowringhee Road, Kanak Building, Kolkata
700071
Tel: 2288 3970
Email:dlapkanak@gmall.com
Website: www.kanakprojectsitd.com
CIN: LeT020WB1979PLC031867

NOTICE

MOTICE is hereby given that the 44" Annual General Meeting of the members of KANAK
PROJECTS LIMITED will be held at Kanak Building, 41 Chowringhee Road, Kolkata - 771 on
Thursday. 28% September, 2023 at 11:00 A.M 1o transact the following business: -

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

2.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2023 (including Audited
Consolidated Financial Statement) and the Statement of Profit and l.oss for the year ended on that
date and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

To appoint a Diirector in place of Mr. Anshuman Prakash ( DIN: 00434909) who retires by rotation
al this Meeling and being eligible. offers himself for re-appoiniment

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

E R

To conslder and, If thought 1L, to pass the following resolutions as a SPECIAL RESOLUTTON:

Approval of Related Party Transactlon

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulations 2{1)(zc), 23{4) and other
applicable Regulations, if any, of the Securites and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Hequirements) Regulations, 2015 ('SEBI Listing Regulations’), as
amended from time io time, Section 2(76) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 ('Act’) read with the Rules framed thereunder [including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) therecf for the time being in force] and other applicable laws / statutory provisions,
if any, the Company's Policy on Related Party Transactions as well as subject to such
approval(s), consent(s) and/or permission{s), as may be regquired and based on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, consent of the Members of the Company be and is
hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (hersinafter referred to as the
‘Board', which term shall be deemed to include the Audit Committes or any other Committee
consfituted / empowered [/ to be constifuted by the Board from time to time to exercise iis
powers conferred by this Resolution) for entering into and/or proposed to be entered into and/ or
continuing with Transaction(s} / Confract(s)/ Arrangement{s) / Agreement(s) (whether by way of
an individual transaction or transactions taken together or a series of transactions or otherwise)
between the Company and each of the pary(ies) namely M/s Purbanchal Concast Private
Limited, M/s DLX Limited, M/s Arihant Solvex Private Limited, M/s. Ahinsha Properties Lid., M/s
Amrita Media Private Limited, M/s Barsana Farms Private Limited, M/s. Datanet Ecommerce
Services Pul. Lid., Mfs. Megapix Strips & Tubes Pvt Lid., Mr. Anshuman Prakash, Mr. Nikhil
Prakash and Mr. Sidhant Prakash, being Related Parly (ies) within the meaning of Regulation
2(1)(zb) of the SEBI LODR, during the financial year ending on March 31, 2022 and upto the
date of the 4d4th Annual General Mesting of the Company to be held in the year 2023, with
respect to Transaction({s) / Contract{s)/ Arrangement{s} / Agreement{s) as mentionad in detail in
the Explanatory Statement annexed herewith whether by way of fresh or renewal(s) or
extension(s) or any modification({s) of earlier Transaction(s) / Contract(s)/ Arrangement(s} /
Agreement{s) or otherwise including payment of interest or levy of charges for any services
provided by the Company, from time o time on such terms and conditions as may be mutually
agreed between the Company and the aforementioned Related Parties of the Company,
notwithstanding the fact that the maximum balance at any day during the financial year 2022-23

and for fhe next financial year and upto the date of the 44ih Annual General Meeting of the




4.

5.

Company 1o be held in the year 20243, may exceed or have exceeded Hs. 1000 crores of 10 per
cent of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company for the relevant financial year,
whichever is lower, as prescribed under SEBI LODR or any other materiality threshold, as may
be applicable from time fo time, for each such Parly, provided however, that the said
Transaction{s) / Contraci(s)/ Arrangement(s) / Agreement(s) shall be carmed out on an arm's
length basis and in the ordinary course of business of the Company.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Members of the Company do hereby approve and accord
approval to the Board (hereinafter referred 1o as " the Board” which terms shall include any
committee thereof), to sign and execute all such documents, deeds and writings, including
filing the said documents, etc., and do all such acts, desds, matters and things and take
necessary steps as the Board may in its absolute discrefion deem necessary, desirable or
expedient to give effect fo this resolution and to settle any question that may anse in this
regard and incidental thersto, without being required to seek any further consent or approval of
the Members, and that the Membears shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto
expressly by the authority of this resolution.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Members of the Company, do hereby also accord approval
to the Board to delegate all or any of its powers herein conferred to any Director(s)/ Officer(s)
of the Company, in accordance with applicable laws. to de all such acts, deeds, matters and
things and also to execute such documents, writings, elc., as may be considered necessary or
expedient to give effect to the aforesaid resolutions.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board in connection with any matier
referred to or contemplated in this Resolution, be and is hereby approved, ratified and
Confirmed in all respect”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as a Special Resolution:

Ratification & Approval for payment of remuneration to Mr. Anshuman Prakash, Director
as minimum remuneration under schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, Schedule V and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 {the “Act”) and Rules framed
thereunder, including any statutory modifications or re-enactiment thereof and the Articles of
Association of the Company and in furtherance to the Special resolution passed at the 41st
Annual General Meeting held on December 31, 2020 ("41st AGM") and subject to such other
approvals as may be necessary, ratification and approval of the Members be and is hereby
accorded for payment of remuneration upto Hs. 5,00,000 (Five Lakhs Only) to Mr. Anshuman
Prakash (DIM 00434909), Direcitor, and that such remuneration shall be the minimum
remuneration payable in terms of Schedule V of the Act in case of no profits or inadequate
profits, calculated in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT save and except as aforesaid, all other terms and conditions of
appointment of Mr. Anshuman Prakash at the 415 AGM shall continue to remain in force and
effect.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resclutions as a Special Resolution:

Ratification & Approval for payment of remuneration to Mr. Sidhant Prakash, Director as
minimum remuneration under schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 198, 197, 198, Schedule V and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 {the “Act”) and Rules framed
thereunder, including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof and the Articles of
Association of the Company and in furtherance to the Special resolution passed at the 41st
Annual General Meeting held on December 31, 2020 ("41st AGM") and subject to such other
approvals as may be necessary, rafification and approval of the Members be and is hereby
accorded for




payment of remuneration upto Rs. 500,000 {Five Lakhs Only) to Mr. Sidhant Prakash (DIN
06850841}, Director, and that such remuneration shall be the minimum remuneration payable in
terms of Schedule V of the Act in case of no profits or inadequate profits. calculated in
accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT save and except as aforesaid, all other terms and conditions of
appointment of Mr. Sidhant Prakash at the 41% AGM shall continue to remain in force and
effect.”

t. To conslder and, if thought fit, to pass the following resclutions as a Special Resolution:

Ratification & Approval for payment of remuneration to Mr. Nikhil Prakash, Director as
minimum remuneration under schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, Schedule V and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 {the "Act”) and Hules framed
thereunder, including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof and the Articles of
Association of the Company and in furtherance to the Special resolution passed at the 41st
Annual General Meeting held on December 31, 2020 ("41st AGM") and subject to such other
approvals as may be necessary, ratification and approval of the Members be and is hereby
accorded for payment of remuneration upto Bs. 500,000 (Five Lakhs Only} to Mr. Nikhil
Prakash (DIN 00434328), Director, and that such remuneration shall be the minimum
remuneration payable in terms of Schedule V of the Act in case of no profits or inadequate
profits, calculated in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act. 2013,

“FURTHER BRESCOLVED THAT save and except as aforesaid, all other terms and conditions of
appointment of Mr. Nikhil Prakash at the 41* AGM shall continue to remain in force and effect”

Date: 04.09.2023

Place: Kolkata By Order of the Board
CIN: LE7020WB1979PLC031867 Kanak Projects Limited
Registerad Office:

41, Chowringhee Road

Kolkata—700071 Sdi-
Ph:91-33-2288-3870/3972 Ginni Lohariwala
Fax:01-33-2243-5462/2288-3581 Company Secretary

E-mail:diapkanak@gmail.com
Website:www . kanakprojecisitd.com




NOTES:

1.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Register of the Company shall remain
closed from 22™ September, 2023 to 28™ September, 2023 (both days inclusive).

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY

6.

TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIM/HER. A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER
OF THE COMPANY. The Proxy in order to be effective, must be duly completed, signed,
stamped and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours
before the commencement of the Meeting. A person can act as proxy on behalf of
Members not exceeding fifty (50} in number and holding in the aggregate not more than
ten percent (10%) of the total share capital of the Company. In case a proxy is proposed to
be appointed by a member holding more than ten percent (10%) of the total share capital
of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any
other member.

Corporate Members are requested to send to the Company, a duly certified copy of the
Board Resolution/Power of Attorney, authorizing their representatives to attend and vote
at the Annual General Meeting.

Members holding shares in physical form may obtain the Nomination forms from the
Company’'s Registrar & Share Transfer Agenis. Members holding shares in electronic
form may obtain the Nomination forms from their respective depository participants.

Members are requested to notify immediately any change of address and also
particulars of their Bank Accounts viz., Name of the bank, branch, complete address of
the bank and bank account number for printing the same on the Dividend Warrants to
avoid fraudulent encashment:

« To their Depository Participants (DP) in respect of their Demat Account(s); and

* To the Company at its registered office or to the Registrars & Share Transfer Agents
of the Company in respect of shares held in physical form.

Members halding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holding
to dematerialized form to eliminate all risk associated with physical shares and for ease of
portfolio management. Members can contact the Company or Niche Technologies Private
Limited for this purpose.

Members/ Proxies are reguested to produce the attendance slip duly signed as per the
specimen signature recorded with the Company, for admission to the meeting hall.

Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint
accounts in the same order or names are reguested to send the share certificates to the
Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agents for consolidation into a single folio.




10.

11

12

13.

14.

15.

16.

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the Members whose name appears as the
first holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be
entitled to vote.

Members are requested to notify immediately any change of address to the Depository
Participants in respect of electronic share accounis and to the Regisirars and Transier
Agents, NICHE TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED, 3A, Auckland Place 7th Floor,
Room No. 7A & 7B, Kolkata 700017 in respect of physical share accounts.

In case the mailing address mentioned in the Annual Report is without the Pin Code,
members are requested to inform their Pin Code immediately.

Members are requested to bring their copy of the Annual Report to the meeting.

Pursuant to sections 101 and 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant
Rules made there under, Companies can serve Annual Reports and other communications
through electronic mode to those members who have registered their e-mail address either
with the Company or with the Depository. Members who have not yet registered their e-mail
address with the Company or their Depository are requested to do so.

Te support the '‘Green Initiative’, the Members who have not registered their e-mail
addresses are requesied to register the same with NICHE TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE
LIMITED Depositories.

Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant Rules of the
Act, and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements), the
Company is providing the facility to Members to exercise their rights to vote by electronic
means. The Company has engaged the Services of CENTRAL DEPOSITORY SERVICES
(INDIA}) LIMITED for providing e-voting faciliies. The e-voting rights of the
Members/beneficial owners shall be reckoned in proportion to ordinary shares held by them
in the Company as on 21st September, 2023 (Cut-off date fixed for this purpose). The e-
voting period will commence at 03:00 a.m. on 25th September, 2023, and will end at 5:00
p.m. on 27th September, 2023. The Company has appointed CS Shristi Garg, Practicing
Company Secretary, Partner of Prateek Kohli & Asscciates, a Peer Reviewed Firm, to act
as a Scrutinizer, for conducting the scrutiny of the votes cast. Detailed instructions for
availing e-voting facility are being sent separately as a part of this Notice.

A copy of this Notice has been placed on the website of the Company and the website of
CDSL.

Date: 04.09. 2023
Place: Kolkata

By Order of the Board

CIN:L67020WB1979PLCO31887 Kanak Projects Limited
Beqistered Office:

41, Chowringhee Road

Kolkata—700071 Sd/-
Ph:91-33-2288-3970/3972 Ginni Lohariwala
Fax91-33-2243-5462/2288-3581 Company Secretary

E-mail: diapkanak@gmail.com
Webwww. kanakprojectsitd com




Voting through Electronic means:

I

)}

In compliance with the provisions of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as
amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendments
Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), the Company is pleased to provide members facility to
execute their right to vote on resclutions proposed to be considered at the
Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be
fransacted through e-Voting Services. The facility of casting the votes by the
members using an electronic voting system for a place other than venue of
the AGM (“remote e-voting”) will be provided by Central Depository Services
India Limited (CDSL).

The faeility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM
and the members atiending the meeting who have not cast their voie by
remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting through
ballot paper. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior
to the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their
vote again.

Ill) The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:

0

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii

The remote e-voting period commences on Monday, 25" September 2023
(09.00 a.m. IST) and ends on Wednesday, 27" September 2023 (5.00 p.m.
IST). During this period, members’ of the Company, holding shares either in
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of Thursday,
21% September 2023, may cast their vote by remote e- voting. The remote e-
voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Once the
vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed
to change it subsequently.

The shareholders should log on 1o the ewvoling website
www.evotingindia.com during the voting period.

Click on “Shareholders “tab.

Now Enter your User 1D:

a. For CDSL : 16 digits beneficiary |D,

b. For NSDL : B Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client 1D,

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number
registered with the Company, excluding the special characters.

MNext enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
If you are holding shares in Demat form and had logged on to

www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of any company, then
your existing password is to be used.

) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below.




For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Depariment

{Applicable for both Demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

» Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository
Participant are requested to use the two letters of their names and the 8 digit

of
the sequence number in the PAN Field.

DOB

* In case the seguence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable
number of 0's before the number after the first two characters of the name in
CAPITAL letters. Eqg. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence number
1 then enter RAO0000001 in the PAN Field.

Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account with the depaository or in|
the

Company records for your folio in dd/mm/yyyy format.

Bank
Accoun
i
Numbe
r (DBD}

Enter the Bank Account Number as recorded in your demat account with the
depository or in the company records for your folio.
¢ Please enter the DOB or Bank Account Number in order tolLogin.

* | both the details are not recorded with the depository or company then
please enter the member-id / folio number in the Bank Account Number

details field as mentioned in above instruction (iv).

(viii)  After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT" tab.

(ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the
Company selection screen. However, members helding shares in Demat
form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to
mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note
that this password is to be also used by the Demat holders for voting for
resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided
that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. I is strongly
recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(x) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only
for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

(xi) Click on the EVSN for the relevant Company Name i.e. DLX LIMITED on
which you choose to vote.

(xiij On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and
against the same the option “YES/NO™ for voting. Select the option YES or
NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and
option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

{xiit)  Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire
Resolution details.

(xiv)] After selecting the resolution you have decided fo vote on, click on
“SUBMIT". A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your
vote, click on "OK", else to change your vote, click on "CANCEL" and
accordingly modify your vote.




(xv)  Once you “CONFIBM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed
to modify your vote.

(xvi) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click
here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xvii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then Enter the
User ID and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password &
enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xviii) Motes for Institutional Shareholders & Custodians:

» |nstitutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, and NRI
etc.) & Custodians are reqguired 1to log on to
https://www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporate.

* A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp & signed
of the entity should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

» After receiving the login details they have to create compliance user
should be created using the admin login and password. The
Compliance user would be able to link the accouni(s) for which they
wish to vote on.

 The list of accounts should be mailed to
helpdesk.evoling@cdslindia.comand on approval of the accounts they
would be able to cast their vote.

» A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney
(POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any,
should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to
verify the same.

(xix) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer
the Frequently Asked Questions (*FACQs") and e-voling manual available at
www.evotingindia.com under help section or write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

(xx) Institutional Members / Bodies Corporale (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI
elc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDFEAJPG Format) of the relevant Board
Resolution / Authority letter elc. together with attested specimen signature of duly
authorized signatory (ies) who are ‘awthorized to vote through e-mail al
shristigare07 @& omail.com With a copy marked lo_helpdesk.evoling @cdslindia.com
on or before 25" September, 2023, up to 09:00 A.M. without which the vote shall
not be treated as valid.

{xxi) The voting right of shareholders shall be in propertion to their shares of the paid-up
equity capital of the Company as on the cut-off date of Thursday, 21" September
2023,

(xxii) The shareholders shall have one voie per equity share held by them as on the cut-off
date of Thursday, 21® September 2023, The facility of e-voling would be provided
once for every foliof client id, irrespective of the number of joint holders.

(xxiii) Since the Company is required Lo provide members the facility lo cast their
vote by electronic means, shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in
physical form or in dematerialized {orm. as on the cut-off date of Thursday. 21%
September 2023, and not casting their vole electronically, may only cast their vole ai
the Annual General Meeting.



{xxiv) Notice of the AGM along with allendance slip, prexy form along with the
process instructions and the manner of conducling e-voling is being seni
electronically Lo all the members whose e-mail 1Ds are registered with the Company
/ Deposilory Parlicipant(s). For members who request for a hard copy and those who
have nol registered their email address, physical copies of the same are being senl
through the permitted mode.

(xxw)Investors who became members of the Company subsequently to the dispatch of the
Notice / Email and holds the shares as on the cut-off date i.e. Thursday., 21"
September 2023, are requested to send the written / email communication to the
Company al dlapkanak@ email.com by mentioning their Folio No/DP IID and
Client ID to obtain the Login-1D and Password for e- voling.

(xxvi) Mrs. Shristi Garg. Practicing Company Secrelary, (Membership No.
F11577 and Certilicate of Practice No. [7447), has been appointed as the Scrutinizer
lo scrutinize the remote e-voling process and voling at the AGM in a fair and
transparent manner.

{xxwvii) The Chairman shall, at the AGM, al the end ol discussion on the resolulions
on which voling is to be held, allow voling with the assistance of scrulinizer, by use
of “Ballol Paper™ for all those members who are present at the AGM bul have nol
casl their voles by availing the remote e- voting Facility.

(xxwviii) The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voling at the peneral meeting,
will first count the votes cast al the meeting and thereaflter unblock the votes cast
through remole e-voting in the presence of at least lwo wilnesses nol in Lhe
employment of the Company and shall make, nol later than three days of Lhe
conclusion of the AGM. a consolidated scrutinizer’s repori of thetoial voles cast in
favor or againsl, if any, lo the Chairman or a person authorized by him in wriling,
who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voling forthwith,

(xxix) The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on
the Company's websilte www.kanakprojecislid.com and on the website of CDSL
viz www cdslindia.com. The same will be communicated to the stock exchange. The
Calcutta Stock Exchange 1.1d, where the shares of the Company are listed.

{xxx)Since e-voting [acility (including Ballot Forms) is provided to the Members pursuant
to the provisions of Section 108 ol the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies
(Managemenl and Administration) Rules, 2014, voling by show ol hands are not
allowed

Place: Kolkata

Date: 04.09.2023 By Crder of the Board
CIN:LEY020WB1979PLCO31867 Kanak Projects Limited
Reqistered Office:

41, Chowringhes Road

Kolkata—700071 Sd/-
Ph:91-33-2288-3970/3872 Ginni Lohanwala
Fax:91-33-2243-5462/2288-3581 Company Secretary

E-mail:dlapkanak{@agmail.com
Websitewww kanakprojectslid.com




Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Secfutn 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (*the
Act™)

The following Statement sets out all material facts relating to the businesses mentioned under tem Nos. 2, 5
and & of the accompanying Motice

Additional Information of Direclors seeking re-appointment at the 58™ Annual
General Meeting as required under Requlation 36(3) of SEBEI (Listing Obligations and

disclosure Requirements) Requlations,2015 and Secretarial Standard- 2 on General
Meetings

ltemNo.2 &4

Additional information of Mr. Anshuman Prakash

MName of D‘lret_ﬂur

Mr. Anshuman Prakash

Directors Identification Number DIN- 00434909
Date of Birth 09/03/1973
Date of First Appointment 21/11/1996
Educational Qualification Graduate

Expertise in specific functional areas

Mr. Anshuman Prakash is on the board of
the Company since 21/11/1996 and
providing advisory in the real estate sector.

Chairmanship/Membership of Commitiees
in this Company

Mone

Present status of directorship in this Director
Company

Directorship in other Public Limited 2

Companies

Chairmanship/Membership of Commitiees Mone

in other Public Limited Companies

Shareholding as on 31* March, 2023 56780 Shares

Seeking appointment/re-appointment

Retire by rotation and seeking re-
appointment

Rotational Status

Hetire by Hotation

Hesignation from any listed entity in past
three years

N.A.

Relationship with other directors, manager
and other Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company

Except for Mr. Sudhir Prakash (Father of
Mr. Anshuman Prakash) and Mr. Nikhil
Prakash (Brother of Mr. Anshuman
Prakash) who are related to Mr. Anshuman
Prakash; no other inter se relationship
exists beitween the remaining directors,
manager and other Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company.

Terms and Conditions of appointment or re-
appointment along with details of
remuneration sought to be paid

He-appointment pursuant to retirement by
rotation.
Last Remuneration paid: 30,62,400 annually

Details of remuneration last drawn

Rs. 30,62,400 annually

In case of independent diractors, the skills
and capabilities required for the role and the
manner in which the proposed person meets s
requirements.

N.A.




Justification for choosing the appointees for
appointment as Independent Directors

MN.A.

ltem No. 5

Additional information of Mr. Sidhant Prakash

Name of Director

Mr. Sidhant Prakash

Directors Identification Number DIN- 06850941
Date of Birth 23/07/1889
Date of First Appointment 30/06/2015
Educational Qualification Bachelors of Business Administration

Expertise in specific functional areas

Mr. Sidhant Prakash is on the board of
the Company since 30/06/2015, as such
he has experience and knowledge of the
company for many years.

Chairmanship/Membership of Committees in this
Company

None

Present status of directorship in this Company

Director

Directorship in other Public Limited Companies

2

Chairmanship/Membership of Committees in oth
Public Limited Companies

Mone

Shareholding as on 31* March, 2023

Seeking appointment/re-appointment

Retire by rotation and seeking re-
appointment

Rotational Status

Retire by rotation

Resignation from any listed entity in past
three years

N.A.

Relationship with other directors, manager
and other Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company

No other inter se relationship exists
between the remaining directors,
manager and other Key Managerial
Personnel of the Gompany.

Terms and Conditions of appointment or re-
appointment along with details of remuneration
sought to be paid

Re-appointment pursuant to retirement by
rotation.

Last Remuneration paid: 30,62,400
annually

Details of remuneration last drawn

Hs. 30,62,400 annually

In case of independent directars, the skills
and capabilities required for the role and the maf
in which the proposed person meets such
reguirements.

MNLA.

Justification for choosing the appoinieas for
appointment as Independent Directors

N.A.

ltem No. 6

Additional information of Mr. Nikhil Prakash

Name of Director

Mr. Nikhil Prakash

Directors Identification Number DIN- 00434328
Date of Birth 22/01/1976
Date of First Appointment 30/06/2015
Educational Qualification Graduate

Expertise in specific functional areas

Mr. Nikhil Prakash is on the board of the
Company since 30/06/2015, as such he




has experience and knowledge of the
company for many years.

Chairmanship/Membership of Committees in thi§ None
Company

Present siatus of directorship in this Company | Director

Directorship in other Public Limited Companies | 1

Chairmanship/Membership of Commitiees in oth) None
Public Limited Companies

Shareholding as on 31 March, 2023 15,370

Seeking appointment/re-appointment Retire by rotation and seeking re-
appointment

Rotational Status Hetire by rotation

Resignation from any listed entity in past N.A.

three years

Relationship with other directors, manager No other inter se relationship exisis

and other Key Managerial Personnel of the between the remaining directors,

Company manager and other Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company.

Terms and Conditions of appointment or re- He-appointment pursuant to retirement by

appointment along with details of remuneration | rotation.

sought to be paid Last Remuneration paid: 30,62,400
annually

Details of remuneration last drawn Rs. 30,62 400 annually

In case of independent directors, the skills LA,

and capabilities required for the role and the mar
in which the proposed person meets such
requirements.

Justification for choosing the appointees for N.A.
appointment as Independent Directors

ltem no. 3

As per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act’), transactions with
related parties which are on an arm's length basis and in the ordinary course of business, are
exempted from the obligation of obtaining Eriur agpmva] of shareholders. However, in terms
of the provisions of Hegulation EBE& of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Hegulations, 2015 ('SEEI LODR’) such transactions, If material, require prior
approval of shareholders by way of an ordinary resolution, notwithstanding the fact that the
same are at an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business.

As per Regulation 2(1) read with the proviso to Regulation 23(1) of the SEBI LODR, effective
April 1, 2022, transactions involving transfer of resources, services or obligations between a
listed entity and any person or entity forming a part of the promoter or promoter group of the
listed entity will be considered as ‘relaied party transactions’ {‘HF’T’E, and as ‘material related
party transactions’, if the transaction to be entered into individually or taken together with
previous fransactions during a financial year, exceeds Rs. 1000 crore or 10 per cent. of the
annual consolidated turnover of the listed entity as per the last audited financial statements of
the listed entity, whichever is lower.

The Company, during the ordinary course, enter into and/or proposed to be entered into and/
or mntmuintt;ewim Transaction(s) / Contract(s)/ Arrangement(s) / Agreement(s) (in any form
and by whafever name called), whether by way of an individual transaction or transactions
taken together or a series of fransactions or otherwise between the Company and each of the
party(ies), whether by way of fresh or renewal(s) or extension(s) or any modification(s) of
earlier Transaction(s) / Contraci(s)/ Arrangemeni(s) mgreem&r;gs% or otherwise including the
Pa ment of interest or Iev.é\/ of charges for any services provi y the Company, from time
to time on such terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed between the Company and
its related parties (‘RPs’). Therefore, it is required to seek the prior approval of the
shareholders of the Company for the aforesaid transactions.

Further, SEBI vide its circular no. SEBI'HO/CFD/CMD1/ CIR/P/2022/47 dated April 8, 2022,
ciarified that the Member's approval of omnibus RPTs approved in an Annual General
Meeting (AGM) shall be valid during the financial year ending on March 31, 2023 and upto



the date of the next AGM io be held on year 2023 for a
roval of the

Hence, it is also proposed to seek a

transactions at this AG

in order to have

riod not exceeding fifteen months.
embers for the below mentioned
e resolution valid till next AGM.

In view of the above, approval of the Members is sought w.r.i. Transaction(s) / Contract(s)/
Arrangement(s) / Agreement(s) (in any form and by whatever name calied), enter into and/or

Fmpnsed ic be entered into and/ or continuing with (whether by wa .
ether or a series of transactions or otherwise) between

ny and each of the party (ies), including the information required to be disclosed in
ursuant to the

ransaction or transaciions taken t

the Com
the

lanato

Statement

of an individual

SEBI Circular No.

SEBVHO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2021/662 dated Naovember 22, 2021, are as follows:

DESCRIPTION

DETAILS

Details of Summary of information provided by the Management to the Audit Committes:-

MName of the Helated party
{izs) relationship

Key Management Personnel:-

Sudhir Prakash, Managing Director
Anshuman Prakash, Director

Meelima Jain, Director

Mikhil Prakash, Director

Sidhant Prakash, Director

Nitin Kandoi, independent Director
Princey Kandoi, Independent Director
Lalita Kanta Samal, CFO

Ginni Lohariwala, Company Secretary

Entities significantly influenced by Promoter{s)/ Key
Managerial Personnel (s) and their relatives:

DLX Lid

Amrita Media Private Limited

Darshanlal Anand Prakash & Sons Private Lid
Barsana Farms Pvt Lid.

Arihant Solvex Private Lid

Purbanchal Concast Private Lid

Datanet Ecommerce Services Pyt Lid.,
Megapix Strips & Tubes Pyt Lid

Associate Company -

Laojan Tea Company Private Ltd

Associate Company (in respect of which the Company is
an investes)

Ahinsha Properties Ltd

Whether the transaction(s)
is in ordinary course of
business

Yes

Whether the transaction(s)
is at Arm's Length basis

Yes

Mature of concern or
interest of the related party
{financial/otherwise)

Financial

Type. material terms,
monetary value and
particulars of the

proposed RPTs

The company during its ordinary courses of business inter
glia enter into and/or proposed to be entered into and/ or
continuing with following Related Party Transaction(s) /
Contract{s)/
Arrangement{s) / Agreement(s) whether by way of an
individual transaction or tfransactions taken together or a
series of transactions or otherwise between the Company
and each of the related party{ies) whether by way of fresh
or renewal(s)
or extension{s) or any modification(s) of earler
Transaction(s) /' Contract{s)  Arrangement{s) !
Agreement(s) or otherwise -

= Transfer of Resources (Unsecured Loan/

Investments).




= Hendering and receipt of any sarvice or
Hesources.

* |Interest received and paid on outstanding
balances and.

= other fransactions for business purpose
from/to Related Parties.

f Value and Tenure of For an aggregate value not exceeding Rs. 15 crore with
Transaction{s) each of the Helated Parties during financial year 2022-23
upto the date of the 30th Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held in the year 2023.

g Percentage of annual | Approximately 25%
consolidated turnover
considering FY 2021-22

as the immediately
preceding

financial year that
represented by the value of

the each RPTs

2 Justification for the | These transactions are done in furtherance of the ordinary
transaction(s) course of business.

3 Details of transaction(s) relating to any leans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or
investments made or given by the listed entity or its subsidiary:-

a details of the source of | NA

funds in connection with
the proposed transaction(s)

b where any financial | NLA.
indebtednass is incurred o
make or give loans,
inter-corporate.  deposits,
advances or investments:-
— nature of indebtedness;

- gost of funds; and

- tenure

c applicable terms, including | Interest Hate :- Not less than the RBI Bank Rate.
covenants, tenure, interest | Tenure:- Upto 1 Year of as decided by the Board
rate and repayment | Repayment Schedule:- On Maturity

schedule, whether secured | Security :- Unsecured

or unsecurad; if secured,
the nature of security

4 Any other information that | All important information forms part of the statement
may be relevant setting out material facts, pursuant to Section 102(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 forming part of this Notice

The maximum balance at any day, during FY 2022-23 and for the next financial year {until the holding of
45th Annual General Mesting of the Company), between the Company on one side and promoter
entities, as mentioned above, individually on the other side, may exceed the threshold of ‘material related
party transactions’ under the SEBI LODR, i.e., 1,000 crore or 10 per cent. Of the annual consolidated
turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial statements of the Company, whichever is
lower, for each such Parly. All these transactions will be executed on an-arm’s length basis and in tha
ordinary course of business of the Company. Based on the information on the transactions as provided
abowve, the Audit Committee has approved entering into the said fransactions and the Board of the
Company has recommended for the approval of the Members, the resolution set out at item No. 6 of this
Motice, by way of an Special resolution. The Members may please note that in terms of provisions of the
SEBI LODR, no related party shall vote to approve the Special Hesolution at item No. 3 of this Naotice.
Except Mr. Sudhir Prakash, Anshuman Prakash and Nikhil Prakash and Sidhant Prakash none of the
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and/or their relatives are, in any way. concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in the aforesaid resolution. Your Board of Directors, therefore, recommends the
passing of the ordinary resolution as set out at ltem No. 3 of this Notice.




ITEM NO. 4

APPROVAL OF PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION TO MR. ANSHUMAN PRAKASH, DIRECTOR
OF THE COMPANY

The Members of the Company at the 41* Annual General Meeting held on December 31, 2020 ("41%
AGM"} had changed the designation of Mr. Anshuman Prakash, from Non-Executive Director to
Executive Director by way of a Special resolution, as the Director of the Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Schedule V to the Companies Act, in case of no profits or inadeguate
profits, remuneration shall be paid to the other Director as per the applicable slab prescribed based
on the "Effective Capital’ of the Company. Provided, remuneration in excess of the permissible slab
may be paid, if shareholders pass a special resolution.

Hemuneration paid to Mr. Anshuman Prakash for the FY 2022-23 was Rs. 30,62.400 all inclusive,

In view of the losses for the FY 2022-23, the remuneration paid to the Director as approved by the
shareholders, exceeded the applicable slab. Therefore, ratification and approval of shareholders is
required by way of a special resolution.

Further, the remuneration is also approved for a period of 3 years in terms of Schedule V of the Act.

Statement as reguired under Section I, Part Il of the Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 with
reference to Special Resolution at ltem MNo. 1 is provided under Annexure B.

Except Mr. Sudhir Prakash, Nikhil Prakash and Anshuman Prakash, himself none of the Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and/or their relatives are, in any way, concemed or interested, financially
or otherwise, in the aforesaid resolution.

Pursuant to the recommendations of Momination and Hemuneration Committee, your Directors
recommend the Hesolution sef out in ltem Mo. 4 as a Special Resolution for approval of the
Members,

Statement containing additional information as required in Schedule V of the Companies Act,
2013.
1. General Information

1. Mature of industry

Heal Industry

2. Date or expected date of commencement
of commercial production

Existing Company in operation since 1979

3. In case of new companies, expected date
of commencement of activities as per project
approved by financial institutions appearing
in the prospecius

Mot Applicable

4, Financial performance based on given
indicators

In the financial year 2021-2022, the
Company made a fumover of INR
16,5491 473 and Net Profit of Bs.
4 .80.11.304 after Tax.

5. Foreign Investments or collaborations, if
any

2. Information about the appointee:

Mot Applicable

1. Background details

2 Past remuneration (excluding Commission)

Mr. Anshuman Prakash is Director from since
21st November, 1996. . A graduate, he has
around 30 years of work experience in real

-estate and Tea Cultivation.
2022-2023 2021-2022 2020-201
30,62,400 30,90,000 2850000

3. Recognition or awards

Hefer Company’s website




4. Job profile and his suitability

5. Hemuneration proposed

Since Mr. Anshuman Prakash took charge as
the Director in November, 1986, the company
has achieved all-round excellence in its
business of Industrial Infrastructure.

Upto Rs. 5,00,000/- per month

6. Comparative remuneration profile with
respect fo industry, size of the company,
profile of the position and person

The remuneration of Mr. Anshuman Prakash
is comparable to that drawn by the peers in
the similar capacity in the industry and is
commensurate with the size of the Company
and diverse nature of its business.

7. Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly
with the Company or relationship with the
managerial personnel, if any

Except Mr. Sudhir Prakash, Anshuman
Prakash and Nikhil Prakash none of the
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and/or
their relatives are, in any way, concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the
aforesaid resolution

3. Other Information:

1. Aeasons of loss or inadequate profits

With regards to the retrospective revision of
the annual valuation of municipal tax. the
company paid Rs. 24.80,00,000 during the
financial year 2022-2023 as part of a mutual
settlement agreement reached between the
company and the Kolkata Municipal
Corporation. Of this amount, Rs. 3,53,21.840
has been accounted for as an adjustment
against provisions. Additionally, according to
a Demand Order, Hs. 9945711 is
categorized as an advance payment of
municipal tax, while Rs. 20,37 32449 has
been recognized as an exceptlional item in
the Statement of Profit & Loss.

2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for
improvement

The management anticipates no  further
losses in the companies as this year there
was an exceptional loss during the FY.

3. Expected increase in productivity and
profits in measurable terms

ITEM NO. 5

The management anticipates no further
losses in the companies as this year there
was an exceptional loss during the FY. Also
the management with its skill set is confident
for robust growth taking into consideration
the anticipated boom in the Indian real estate
market.

APPROVAL OF PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION TO MR. SIDHANT PRAKASH, DIRECTOR OF
THE COMPANY

The Members of the Company at the 415 Annual General Meeting held on December 31, 2020 ("41%
AGM") had changed the designation of Mr. Sidhant Prakash, from Non-Executive Director fo
Executive Director by way of a Special resolution, as the Director of the Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Schedule V to the Companies Act, in case of no profits or inadequate
profits, remuneration shall be paid to the other Director as per the applicable slab prescribed based
on the 'Effective Capital' of the Company. Provided, remuneration in excess of the permissible slab
may be paid, if shareholders pass a special resclution.

Remuneration paid to Mr. Sidhant Prakash for the FY 2022-23 was Rs. 30,62.400 all inclusive.

In view of the losses for the FY 2022-23, the remuneration paid to the Director as approved by the



shareholders, exceeded the applicable slab. Therelfore, ratification and approval of shareholders is
required by way of a special resolution.

Further, the remuneration is also approved for a period of 3 years in terms of Schedule V of the Act.

Statement as reqguired under Section |l, Part Il of the Schedule V of the Companies Act;, 2013 with
reference to Special Resolution at ltem No.1 is provided under Annexure B.

Except Mr. Sidhant Prakash himself, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and/or their
relatives are, in any way, concemed or interested, financially or otherwise, in the aforesaid resolution.

Pursuant to the recommendations of Momination and Hemuneration Commitiee, your Directors
recommend the Hesolution set out in ltern No. 5 as a Special Resolution for approval of the
Members.

Statement containing additional information as required in Schedule V of the Companies Act,

2013.
1. General Information

1. Mature of industry

Real Industry

2. Date or expected date of commencement
of commercial production

Existing Company in operation since 1979

3. In case of new companies, expecied date
of commencement of activities as per project
approved by financial institutions appearing
in the prospectus

Mot Applicable

4. Financial performance based on given
indicators

In the financial year 2021-2022, the
Company made a tumover of INR
165491473 and MNet Profit of Rs.
4.80.11,304 after Tax.

5. Foreign Investments or collaborations, if
any

Mot Applicable

2. Information about the appointee:
1. Background details

‘Mr. Sidhant Prakash is Director from since

30" June, 2015. . A graduate, he has around
5-7 years of work experience in real estaie
and Tea Cultivation.

2. Past remuneration {excluding Commission) 2022-2023 2021-2022 2020-2021
30.62,400 30,990,000 28.50.000
3. Recognition or awards Hefer Company’s website

4. Job profile and his suitability

Since Mr. Sidhant Prakash took charge as the
Director in June, 2015, the company has
achieved all-round excellence in its business
of Industrial Infrastructure.

5. Aemuneration proposed

Upto Rs. 500,000/~ per month

6. Comparative remuneration profile with
respect to industry, size of the company,
profile of the position and person

7. F’euﬁniéfy "r'efaﬁun-sh"f'p diredﬂf or mr:ﬁrectty
with the Company or relationship with the
managerial personnel, if any

The remuneration of Mr. Sidhant Prakash is
comparable to that drawn by the peers in the
similar capacity in the indusiry and is
commensurate with the size of the Company
and diverse nature of its business.
Except Mr. Sidhant Prakash, himself none of
the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and/or therr relatives are, in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise, in the aforesaid resolution

3. Other Information:

1. Reasons of loss or inadequate profits

With regards to the refrospective revision of
the annual valuation of municipal tax, the
company paid Hs. 24 9000000 during the




financial year 2022-2023 as part of a mutual
setlement agreement reached between the
company and the Kolkata Municipal
Corporation. Of this amount, Hs. 3,53,21.840
has been accounted for as an adjusiment
against provisions. Additionally, according to
a Demand Order, Rs. 9945711 is
categorized as an advance payment of
municipal tax, while Rs. 20,37,32,449 has
been recognized as an exceptional item in
the Statement of Profit & Loss.

2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for
improvement

The management anticipates no  further
losses in the companies as this year there
was an exceptional loss during the FY.

3. Expected increase in productivity and
profits in measurable terms

The management anticipates no further
losses in the companies as this year there

was an exceplional loss during the FY. Also
the management with its skill set is confident
for robust growth faking into consideration
the anticipated boom in the Indian real estate
market.

ITEM NO. &

APPROVAL OF PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION TO MR. NIKHIL PRAKASH, DIRECTOR OF THE
COMPANY

The Members of the Company at the 41% Annual General Meeting held on December 31, 2020 ("41%
AGM") had changed the designation of Mr. Nikhil Prakash, from Non-Executive Director to Executive
Director by way of a Special resolution, as the Director of the Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Schedule V to the Companies Act, in case of no profits or inadequate
profits, remuneration shall be paid to the other Director as per the applicable slab prescribed based
on the 'Effective Capital’ of the Company. Provided, remuneration in excess of the permissible slab
may be paid, if shareholders pass a special resolution.

Remuneration paid to Mr. Nikhil Prakash for the FY 2022-23 was Rs. 30,62,400 all inclusive.

In view of the losses for the FY 2022-23, the remunerafion paid to the Direclor as approved by the
shareholders, exceeded the applicable slab. Therefore, ratification and approval of shareholders is
required by way of a special resolution.

Further, the remuneration is also approved for a period of 3 years in terms of Schedule V of the Act.

Statement as required under Section |l, Part Il of the Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 with
reference to Special Resolution at [tem No.1 is provided under Annexure B.

Except Mr. Sudhir Prakash, Anshuman Prakash and Nikhil Prakash, himself none of the Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and/or their relatives are, in any way, concemned or interested, financially
or otherwise, in the aforesaid resolution.

Pursuant fo the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, your Directors
recommend the Resolution set out in tem No. 6 as a Special Resoclution for approval of the Members.

Statement containing additional information as required in Schedule V of the Companies Act,
2013.
1. General Information

1. Mature of indusiry Heal Industry

2. Date or expected date of commencement
of commercial production

Existing Company in operation since 1979

3. In case of new companies, expecied date
of commencement of activities as per project
approved by financial institutions appearing

Mot Applicabie




in the prospecius

4. Financial performance based on given
indicators

In the financial year 2021-2022, the
Company made a tumover of INR
16,5491473 and Net Profit of Rs.
4 80.11,304 after Tax.

5. Foreign Investments or collaborations, if
any

Mot Applicable

2. Information about the appointee:

1. Background details

2. Past remuneration {excluding Commission)

Mr. Mikhil Prakash is Director from since 30
June, 2015. A graduats, he has around 15
years of work experience in real estate and
Tea Cultivafion. :

2022-2023 2021-2022 2020-2021

30,62.400 32,50,000 28,50,000

3. Recognition or awards
4_ Job profile and his suitability

5. Remuneration proposed

Refer Company’s website

‘Since Mr. Nikhil Prakash took charge as the

Director in June, 2005, the company has
achieved all-round sxcellence in its business
of Industrial Infrastructure.
Upto Rs. 500,000/~ per month

6. Comparative remuneration profile with
respect to industry, size of the company,
profile of the position and person

The remuneration of Mr. Nikhil Prakash is
comparable to that drawn by the peers in the
similar capacity in the indusiry and is
commensurate with the size of the Company
and diverse nature of its business.

7. Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly
with the Company or relationship with the
managerial personnel, if any

Except Mr. Sudhir Prakash, Anshuman
Prakash and Nikhil Prakash, himself none of
the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and/or ther relatives are, in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or
otharwise, in the aforesaid resolution

3. Other Information:

1. Reasons of loss or inadequate profits

With regards to the refrospective revision of
the annual valuation of municipal tax, the
company paid Hs. 24,90.00.000 during the
financial year 2022-2023 as part of a mutual
sefflement agreement reached between the
company and the Kolkata Municipal
Corporation. Of this amount, Rs. 3,53,21 840
has been accounied for as an adjustment
against provisions. Additionally, according to
a Demand Order, Hs. 9945711 is
categorized as an advance payment of
municipal tax, while Rs. 203732449 has
been recognized as an exceptional item in
the Statement of Profit & Loss.

2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for
improvement

The management anticipates no further
losses in the companies as this year there
was an exceptional loss during the FY.

3. Expected increase in productivity and
profits in measurable terms

The management anticipates no further
losses in the companies as this year there
was an exceptional loss during the FY. Also
the management with its skill set is confident
for robust growth taking into consideration
the anticipated boom in the Indian real estate
markst.




Kanak Projects Limited
Regd.Office:41, Chowringhee Road, Kanak Building,
Kolkata 700071 Tel: 2288 3970
CIN: L67020WB1979PLC031867

Email:diapkanak@gmail.com
Website:www.kanakprojectsiid.com

44™ Annual General Meeting at the registered office of the company at
41Chowringhee Road, Kanak Building, Kolkata

700071
Folio No., DP ID No.
Client Id No.
Name of the Member
Signature

Name of the Proxy holder,

Signature

| certify that | am registeraed sharehoider / proxy for the registered shareholder of the Company.

| hereby record my presence at the 44 Annual General Meeting held on Thursday, 281
September, 2023.

............ Member's /
Proxy’s Signature

Mote: Shareholders / Proxy holders desiring to attend the meeting should bring their
copy of the Annual Report as the same will not be distnbuted again at the meeting.




Kanak Projects Limited
CIN: LE7020WB1979PLC031867
Regd.Office:41,ChowringheeRoad, KanakBullding,Kolkata70
0071 Tel: 2288 3970

Emall:dlapkanak@gmail.comWebsite:
www.kanakprojectsitd.com

Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
CIN: L67020WB1979PLC031867
Name of the company: Kanak Projects Limited

Registered office: 41, Chowringhee Road, Kanak Building, Kolkata 700 071

Name of the member (s):
Registered address:

E -mail Id:

Folio No/ Client Id:

DP 1D:

|/We, being the member(s)of ............ shares of the above-named company, hereby appoint

YoNamet s
Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature.............. , or failing him

2. Name: ....ccaimmniiiinnn
Address:

E-mail |d:

Signature.............. , or failing him

K 4Ty ]
Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature.............. , or failing him

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a pell) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 44™
Annual General Meeting(AGM) of the Company to be held on Thursday, 29" September,
2023 at 11:00 AM. at 41, Chowringhee Road, Kanak Building, Kelkata - 700071 (W.B) and
at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:




Sl No

Item

Yes

i [

To recelve, conslder and adopt the Auodited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022 (Including
Audited Consolidated Financlal Statement) and
the Statement of Profll and Loss [or the year
ended on that date and the Reports of the Board
of Directors and Auditors thereon.

To appolnt a Director In place of Anshuman
Prakash (DIN: 00434909) who retires by rotatlon
at this meeting and belng ellgible, offers herself
for re-appolntment.

To amend and approve the Related Party
Transactions of the Company.

Ratificatlon & Approval for payment of
remuneration fo Mr. Anshuman Prakash, Director
as minlmum remuneration under schedule V of the
Companles Act, 2013

2]

Ratificatton & Approval for payment of
remuneration to Mr. Sldhant Prakash, Director as
minimum remuneration under schedule V of the
Companles Act, 2013

Ratificatton & Approval for payment of
remuneration to Mr. Nikhil Prakash. DMrector as
minimum remuneration under schedule V of the
Companles Act, 2013

Signed this...........day of 2023

Signature of shareholder .......................

MNote:1.

holding of meeting.

Affix

coseseeesmsie Signature of Proxy holder(s).....ccoooooiciiniiiia

The Proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at 41,
Chowringhee Road, Kolkata — 700071, not less than 48 hours before the time for

The form should be signed across the stamp as per specimen signature registered

with the Company.




Kanak Projects Limited
CIN: L67020WB1979PLC031867
Regd.Office:41, Chowringhee Road, Kanak Building,
Kolkata - 700071 Tel: 2288 3970
Email:dlapkanak@amail.com
WEDSHE:M.HEHEHEFDIEHSHH.CDM

(ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE FOR THE 44* ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY TO BE HELD ON
28.00.2023)

Mame & Registered

Address of Sole/First

named Member:

Joint Holders Name (I any):

Folio No. / DP D & ChentiD:

Mo. of Equity Shares Heid:

Dear Shareholder,

Subject: Process and manner for availing E-voting facil

Pursuant to Provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Bules,
2015 and regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements), Regulations, 2015, the
Company is pleased to provide E-voling facility to the members fo cast their voles electronically on all resolutions
proposed to be considered at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) to be held on Thursday, 28" September, 2023 al
02:30 P.M at “Kanak Buikding™, 41, Chowringhee Road, Kolkata-700071 and at any adjournment thereof.

The Company has engaged the semvices of Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) fo provide the e-voting
facility. The e-voting facility is available atthe link hitps:/"www.evolingindia.com.

The Electronic Voling Particulars are set out below:

EVSH User PAN [ Sequence
({Electronic Voting 1D No.
Seguence Mumber)

The E-voting facility will be availabls during the following voting perod:

Remote e-Voting Start On Remote e-Voting End On
Monday. 25 Sepiember, 2023 at 3.00 Wednesday, 27™ Seplember, 2023 at 5.00
AM(IST) P.M{IST)
Please read the instructions mentioned in the Notce of the AGM carefully before exercising your vote.
By Order of the Board
For Kanak Projects Limited.
S/
Ginni Lohariwala
Place: Kolkata Company Secretary

Date: 04.09.2023




Dear Shareholders

Y our direciors have pleasure in presenting the 44™ Annual Report together with the Audited

BOARDS REPORT

Statement of Accounts of Kanak Projects Limited for the vear ended March 31, 2023.

1 SUMMARISED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

STANDALONE

Particulars For the Year ended 31# | For the Year ended 31st
March. 2023 March. 2022
Total Revenue 146532619 23,74,.39,580
L. Total Revenue 14.65.32.619 23.74.39.580
Il. Total Expenses 11,16,65.719 18.01.24898
I11. Profit Before Taxes 3 4866901 5.73.14.684
Exceptional Iltems (20,37,32. 449 -
IV. Income Tax expense
Current Tax 5 1.39.49 750
IDeferred Tax (2.85,79.819) (28.72.271)
Income Tax for earlier year 1197176 (17.74,008)
V. Profit/loss) for the year (14, 14,82 906) 4.80,11.303

CONSOLIDATED

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended 31st
3st March. 2022 March. 2022

Revenue from Operations 14.6532.619 23.74.39.580
il._'l"utal Revenue 14,6532.619 23.74.39.580
[I1. Total Expenses 11,16,65,719 18,01,24.896
[I11. Profit Before Taxes 3.48.66.901 5.73.14.684
lIV. Share of Profit/{Loss) of (27,102.09) (27.68.139)
Associates (Net of
Tax)
V. Income Tax expensc

‘urrent Tax = 1,39,49,750
E‘fﬂ‘ﬂ'ﬂﬂ Tax (2.85.79.819) (28.72.271)
[Income Tax for earlier year 11,97.176 (17,74.098)
V. Profit/(loss) for the year (14.41.93.114) 4,52.43,165




2. BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The Company has incurred a Nel Loss of Rs. (14, 14,82 906) during the period under review. The
present financial situation of the Company has been staled in the Financial Statements In details.
Y our directors are continuously looking for avenues for future growth of the Company,

Your Company discloses Slandalone and Consolidaled Unaudiled Financial Results on a
quarterly basis, Standalone and Consclidated Audited Financial Results on an annual basis. The
Financial Statements of your Company have been prepared in accordance with the applicable
Accounting Standards notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Acl, 2013, as
applicable.

A detailed review on the operation and performance of the Company and its business is given in
the Management Discussion and Analysis Repori. The same is enclosed as Annexure - A Lo Lhis
Repaortl.

3. COMPLIANCE WITH INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD

The Company has complied with all relevant Provisions of Indian Accounting Standards
nolified by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. while
preparing the Financial Statements.

4. FUTURE OUTLOOK

The Management of the company always believes in its corporate and moral ethics at the time of
dealing with ils stakeholders. The management is oplimistic aboul the [uture growth of the
company.

5.  DIVIDEND & TRANSIFER OF FUND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND

Our Pirectors did not recommend any dividend for the current financial year. The provisions of
Seclion 125(2) of the Companies Act. 2013 do not apply as there was no dividend declared and
paid lasl year.

6. SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up Eguily Share Capilal as on March 31, 2023 was Rs. 4, 45, 24 000 divided into 44,
52,400 Eqguity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each.

7. RESERVYES & SURPLUS
There has been no transfer 1o Lthe General Reserve during the period under review.,
8. SUBSIDIARY COMPANY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

As on 31s1 March, 2023, the company doesn’t have any Subsidiary but has an Associate
Company M/s. Lao Jan Tea Company Private Limited the details of the same are given in
Form AOC — | atlached herewith and marked as *“Annexure — B".



HIGHLIGHTS OF PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES / ASSOCIATES AND THEIR
CONTRIBUTION TO THE OVERALL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

Pursuant Lo the provisions of Section 134(3)(q) of the Companies Act. 2013 read with Rule 8(1)
of the Companies (Accounts) Ruleg, 2014 the details ol the associate Company M/s, Lao Jan Tea
Company Private Limited is elucidated in Note No. 50, 51 and 52 of the Consolidated Financial
Statements. The annual accounts of its Associate Company will also be kept for inspection by
any Member of the Company al the regislered office of the Company. The Consolidated Financial
Statements presented by the Company include the financial information of its associales. As per
the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has placed separate
audited accounts ol its associates on its websile hitp://kanakprojectslitd.com/compliance-corner/.
and copy of separate audiled financial stalements of its Associate will be provided o the
shareholders al their request.

9.  PUBLIC DEPOSIT

The Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Companies { Acceplance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

0. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

The company has outstanding loans advanced covered under Lhe provisions of section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The details of the investments made by company are given in the notes Lo the [inancial slalements

1. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In lerms of Section 135 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Direclors
have constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (C5R) Commitlee and on the recommendation
of the said committee, the Board has approved a Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR") policy
and the same has been  wploaded in the website of the Company
hitp//kanakprojectslid.com/compliance- corner/. which contains the CSR activities being carried
out by the Company, covernance structure, implementalion process, etc.

The Financial Year 2022-23_ was a grim year; a vear of unprecedented challenges for individuals
and instilutions globally, including India. Despite the turbulent business environmenl caused by
the pandemic. your Company continued Lo illusirate its commitment towards social and
environmenlal priorities. The Company believes that CSR is a way ol crealing shared value and
contributing to social and environmental good. Company's strategy is to inlegrate its activilies in
community developmenl. social responsibility and environmental responsibilily and encourage
each business unit or funclion to include these considerations into ils operations.



¥ our Directors are pleased to inform that the Company has fulfilled its C5R obligations pursuant
lo Section 135(5) of the Companies Act. 2013, for the vear 2022-23 inter-alia on CSR projects.
During the period under review the Company has spent an amounl of Rs. 240000000 towards
CSR (expenditure required to be made Rs. 17.395,57.00/-). Details of the CSR spending is
attached herewilh in “Anmexure - .

12. HUMAN RESOURCES

The well-disciplined workforce who has served the company [or three decades lies at the very
foundation of the company's major achievements and Lhis trend is set lo conlinue. The
management has always carried oul systemaltic appraisal of performance and imparted training
al periodic intervals. The company has always recognized talent and has judiciously followed the
principal of rewarding performance.

13, INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Company is equipped with a proper and adeguale system of internal controls for maintaining
proper accounling cost control and efficiency in operation. The Company also has adeguate
system to ensure that all of its asseis are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized
use or disposition, and (ransactions are authorized, recorded, and reported correctly. The internal
control system is supplemented by internal audits, review by management, documenied policies
and procedures.

14, VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Pursuant to Section |77 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has complied with the laws
and the codes of conduct applicable Lo il and has ensured that the business is conducted with
integrily and accordingly the company has adopled a vigil mechanism policy. This policy is
explained in corporate covernance report and also posted on the website of company,

15. SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY

The Company has also framed a policy on prevention of Sexual Harassmeni of Women at
Workplace which commits to provide a workplace that is [ree from all forms of discrimination,
including sexual harassmenL.

As per the Policy, any complaint received shall be forwarded Lo an Internal Complaint Commillee
("ICC") formed under the Policy for redressal. The investigation shall be carried out by ICC
constituted for this purpose. There was no such complaint during the year.

a. Number of Complaints Filed during the FY ]

b. E#rmber of Complaints Disposed of during the 0

c Number of Complaints pending as on the 0
end of the FY




16.

DIRECTORS, KMPS" & COMMITTEES

None of the Director's & KMPs were appoinled or resigned during the [inancial year under
review:

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The provisions relaling to composition of Independent Directors is complied with the provisions
of Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made there under. The Independent Directors meel the
criteria of gualification stipulaled in Rule 6 of Companies (Appointment and Qualilication of
Directors) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant Lo the provisions of companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation, 2015, the Board has carried oul annual performance evaluation ol its
own performance, the directors individually as well the evaluation of the working of its Audil,
Nominalion & Remuneration and Stakeholder commitlee.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Commiltee framed
a policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their Remuneration.

MEETINGS

During the year, 8 Board Meetings, 4 Audit Committee Meeting, | Corporale Social
Responsibility Commiltee, | Nomination and Remuneration Committes and, were held.

The provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation, 2015, as amended from time (o time were adhered o while
considering the lime gap belween two meelings.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The company is having an audil commitlee comprising of the following direclors:

Name Status Category
Mr. Nitin Kandoi Chairperson Non Executive &
Independent Director
Mrs. Princey Kandoi Member Non Executive &
Independent Director
Mrs. Neelima Jain Member Non-Executive
Director

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The company is having a Nomination and Bemuneralion committee comprising of the following
directors:

Name Status Category
Mr. Nitin Kandoi Chairperson Non Executive & Independent
Direclor
Mrs. Princey Kandoi Member Non Executive & Independent
Director




| Ms. Neelima Jain | Member | Non-Executive Director |
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPOSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The company is having Corporate Social Responsibility Commitlee comprising of the
[ollowing directors:

Name Status Category
Mr. Nitin Kandoi Chairperson Non Executive & Independent
Director
Mrs. Princey Kandoi Member MNon Executive & Independent
Director
Ms. Neelima Jain Member Non-Executive Director

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The company is having Stakeholders Relationship Commiltee comprising of the following
directors:

Name Status Calegory
Mr. Nitin Kandm Chairperson Non Executive & Independent
Director
Mrs. Princey Kandol Member Non Executive & Independent
Director
Ms. Neelima Jain Member Non-Executive Director

17. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT DISCLSSION AND
ANALYSIS:

{A) Corporate Governance:

Your Company is listed with the Calcuita Stock Exchange and is compliant with all the
provisions required to be complied with as per the provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements). 2015 and has taken adequate steps to adhere to all the stipulations
as laid down in Regulation 17 to 27 read with Schedule V and Clauses (b) to (1) ol Sub-regulation
(2) of Regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Resulations,
2015 [hereinafter relerred Lo as Listing Regulations] as applicable. with regard to Corporate
Governance. As reguired, a reporl on Corporale Governance is provided in this Annual Report
along with certificate from Mrs. Shristi Garg, Partner of Prateek Kohli & Associales conflirming
the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the said
Regulations is altached to this report. The Corporate Governance Report is attached as
“Annexure — D",

The Paid up Equity Capital of the Company is 445,24 000 which is less than 10 Crores but the
MNet Worth of the Company is greater than 25 Crores. Due to this there is conflict of opinion
between Managemenl and differenl professionals for applicability of Clause of Corporate
Governance on the company. Hence, we are complying with the Corporale Governance
compliances applicable as per Regulation 15 of Securities and Exchange Board of India {Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,



18 REPORTING OF FREAUDS BY THE AUDITORS

The Board hereby informs that there was no such reporting made by the Auditors in their report
for the Financial Year ended 31.03.2023.

19. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
obtained by them, vour Direclors make the following stalements in lerms of Section 134{3)(c)
of the Companies Act, 2013;

a)That in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2023, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation
relating Lo material depariures, if any;

b)That such accounting policies as mentioned in Notes to the Financial Statements have been
selected and applied consistently and judgment and estimates have been made that are
reasonable and prudent so as (o give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
asat March 31, 2023 and of the loss incurred by the Company for the year ended on that date;

c)That proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequale accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assels of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d)That the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) That proper internal [inancial control was in place and that the financial conirols were
adequate and were operating effectively.

f) That svstem to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws was in place
and was adequale and operaling effectively.

2. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There were contracts or arrangements enlered into by the company in accordance with
provisions of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 which were in Ordinary Course of
Business.

All Related Party Transactions in usual course were placed before the Audit Committee as also
the Board for approval. The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is
uploaded on the Company's website.

None of the Directors has any pecuniary relationships or transaclions vis-a-vis the Company.
Further, there were Related Party transactions with the Promoters of Promoters Group who hold
more than 10% Shareholding or Voling rights in the company. Details of such Relaled Parly
Party Transaction is mentioned in Annexure-G.

21, SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS

There are no significant maierial orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact
Lthe going concern status of the Company and ils fulure operations. Whereas with regards to the
retrospeclive revision of the annual valualion of municipal lax, the company paid Rs.
24 9000000 during the Nnancial year 2022-2023 as part of a mutual settlement agreement
reached between the company and the Kolkata Municipal Corporation. Of this amount, Rs.
3.53.21.840 has been accounled for as an adjustment against provisions. Additionally, according
to a Demand Order. Rs. 99.45,711 is categorized as an advance payment ol municipal tax, while



Rs. 200,37.32.449 has been recognized as an exceplional item in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

22, AUDITORS
STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. Salarpuria & Pariners., Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company having
Firm Registration Number 3021 | 3E were re-appointed and their current term of appointment
will end on the Annual General Meeling o be held in the year 2026,

Further, the report of the Statutory Auditors alongwith notes to Schedules is enclosed with this
report. The observations made in the Auditlors Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not
call for any further comments.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant 1o the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Acl, 2013 and The Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has
appoinled Mrs. Shristi Garg Pariner of Praleek Kohli & Associates (CP No.: 17447, FCS:
11577}, Company Secretaries 1o underiake the secretarial audit of the company. The Secretarial
Audit Report is annexed herewith as *Annexure-E’

Remarks from Secretarial Auditor:-

The Company has not followed Regulatiom 17 of the LODR, 2015 in respect of appointment
af Independent Director.

Explanation from Board:-

The Company is presently having 2 Independent Director. The Paid up Equity Capital of the
Company is 4.45,24,000 which is less than 10 Crores and Nel Worth of the Company is greater
than 25 Crores. Due to this there is conflict of opinion between Management and different
professionals for applicability ol Clause of Corporate Governance on the company. Thus the

Company is require Lo appoint | more Independent Director on the Board. The Company will
appoint the same in the F.Y, 2023-24,

INTERNAL AUDITORS

Mr. Santosh Kumar Agarwal, by profession a Chartered Accountants, holds office as the Internal
Auditor of the Company upto the conclusion of Lthe forthcoming Annual General Meeting and
is eligible, for re-appointmenLl. The company has received a letter from them lo the effect that
their re- appointment, if made, would be within the prescribed limits under the Companies Act,
2013 and they are not disqualified lor re- appointment.

23, ENERGY CONSERVATION. TECHNOLOGY ABSORI'TION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information on conservalion of energy. lechnology absorplion and foreign exchange
earnings and outgo stipulaled under Section 134({3)(m) of the Companies Acl, 2013 read with
Rule, 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is as follows:



The Company has used all possible efforts to minimize the Consumption of Energy.
24, EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Retum in form MGT - @ is disclosed on
the website of the company on the following link hitp:/kanakprojectsiid.com/compliance-
corner/.

25, PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information required pursuanl to Secltien 197 read with Rule 5 of The Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees
of the Company is altached as “Annexure F. In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the Report
and Accounts are being senl Lo the Members and olhers entilled thereto. excluding the complete
information on employees’ particulars which is available for inspection by the Members al the
Registered Office of the Company during business hours on working days of the Company up
Lo the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeling. Il any Member is interested in obtaining a
copy thereof, such Member may wrile to the Company Secretary in this regard.

26, SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company is generating revenue from 1 (One) segment of business i.e. Rental Income in the
E.Y. 2022-23.

(Amount in Ks.)
Rental Income: Rs. 7.40.24.439.00

27. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The rules regarding mainienance of cost records which have been specified by the Ceniral
Government under sub-section (1) of section-148 of the Companies Act 2013 are not applicable
Lo the Company.

28, FINANCIAL VIABILITY OF COMPANY

The linancial viability of the company is totally dependent on the ability of the company to
infuse funds into the company and to bring growth in the revenue of the Company.

29, PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING:

The Company already has in place a structured Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider
Trading Policy with a view to regulate trading in securities by the Direclors and designated
emplovees of the Company. The Code has been further streamlined to keep parity with the new
Companies Act, 2013,

The Company has also adapted SEBI {Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and
given appropriate disclosures (o the Stock Exchanges.

The Code requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibiis the purchase
or sale of Company's shares by the Directors and the designaled emplovees while in possession



of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company and during the period
when the Trading Window is closed. The Board is responsible for implementation of the Code.

All Directors Jand the designated employees, who hold any shares in the Company, have
confirmed compliance with the Code.

30. DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER

-

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

During the year under review. there were no applications made or proceedings pending in the
name of the Company under the Insolvency & Bankrupicy Code, 2016.

31. DETAILS OF MFFERENCE BETWEEN VALUATION AMOUNT ON ONE TIME
SETTLEMENT AND VALUATION WHILE AVAILING LOAN FROM BANKS AND
FINANCIAL INSTITUTTIONS

During the year under review, there has been no one lime seltlement of Loans Laken [rom Banks
and Financial Institutions.

32, DISCLOSURE OF CERTAIN TYPES OF AGREEMENTS BINDING LISTED
ENTITIES

It is hereby informed Lo the shareholders of the company Lhal there are no binding agreements
existing in the company.

353, ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The company has been very well supported from all quarters and therelore your directors wish
to place on record their sincere appreciation for the support and co-operation received from
Employees. Dealers, Suppliers, Central and State Governments, Bankers and others associated
with the Company.

Your Directors wish to thank the banks. financial institutions, shareholders and business
associates for their continued support and cooperation.

We look forward (o receiving the continued patronage from all gquariers to become a better and
stronger Company.

3, CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The statements contained in the Board's Report and Management Discussion and Analysis
conlain certain stalements relating lo the future and therelore are forward looking within the
meaning of applicable securities, laws and regulations.

Various faclors such as economic conditions,; changes in covernmenl! regulations, lax regime,
other statues, market lorces and other associaled and incidental factors may however lead to
varialion in actual resulls.

Date: 04.00.2023 On Behall of the Board
For Kanak Projects Limited

Place: Kolkata Sd/- Sd/-
Sudhir Prakash Anshuman Prakash
Managing Director Director

DIN: 00434020 DIN: 00434909



Annexure - A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT
REAL ESTATE BUSINESS

The Real Estale Industry in India is Mourishing but presently it is facing problems of
increased inveniory stock, significantly reduced number of iransaclions by the
Customer & increased Cosl of Land & Construction. The Company is in continuous
process of making a vivacious presence for itsell in real estateIndustry. Your Company
has earned a Rental Income of Rs. 7.40,24.439.00 in the Current Year as compared to
Rs. 6,08 22 886.00 in the P.Y.

Furlhermore. with regards to the retrospective revision of the annual valuation of
municipal lax, the company paid Rs. 24.90.00.000 during the financial year 2022-
2023 as parl of a mutual settlement agreement reached between the company and the
Kolkata Municipal Corporation. OFf this amount, Rs. 3.53.21 840 has been accounted
for as an adjustment against provisions. Additionally, according to a Demand Order,
Rs. 9945711 is catecorized as an advance payment of municipal tax, while Rs.
20,37.32,449 has been recognized as an exceplional item in the Stalement of Profil &
Loss.

OTHER ACTIVITIES
The Company's allied business activities also includes investing, acquiring, holding or
otherwise dealing in shares, stocks and other securities.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

Since the beginning ol economic reforms and pragmatic and visionary policies
adopted by the Governmenl, the Indian economy has been wilnessing strong economic
ocrowlh along with demographic impetus of a growing population in the working-age
category. This is crealing a massive demand-supply mismatch across the real estale
sector. The sheer increase in the “need for built-up space’ is opening up several
opportunities {or developers- be il for constructing residential properties. crealing
commercial space for offices or retail. Your Company is all sel to avail such
opportunities and take a giant leap in the path of progress.

Aparl from normal business risks, your company will be lacing stiff compelition lrom
existing as well as other new entrants in the same line of business. However pragmatic
and prudent policies and induclion of young and dynamic visionaries with experiise
coupled with infusion of high-tech approach, your company will be progressing by
leaps and bounds.



OUTLOOK

Leading experts in the Indian property market is viewing 2023-24 as a booming year
for the industry. According o them, in the next nine months, there will be 10-15%
hike in collection commercial segments.

RISK AND CONCERN

Real estate industries oflen navigale uncerlain walers in a world where economic condilions can
change rapidly. Economic downturns and fluctuations can lead to decreased properly demand,
stagnant property values, and increased competition among real estate businesses,

To address this challenge, real estate professionals must develop adaptive strategies o weather
economic storms. Diversification of investment portfolios, focusing on properties with consistent
demand (such as rental properties). and staying well-informed aboul market trends are essential
steps Lo mitigate the impact of economic volatility.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM ANDITS ADEQUACY

The Company has in place adequate internal control system covering all its operations
in order to provide reasonable assurance wilh regard lo informalion and maintenance
of proper accounting records, the economy and efficiency ol operations, safeguarding
of assels against unauthorized use or losses, and the reliability of financial and
operational information.

The Internal Control mechanism comprises a well-delined organization structure, pre-
determined authority levels and clearly defined policy guidelines for appropriate
delegation of authority

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

The Financial performance of the Company has been given separately in the Directors’
Report.

SEGMENTWISE OR PRODUCTWISE PERFORMANCE

The Company is primarily engaged in the business ol renting of immovable properlies
and sale of billets. lis allied business aclivities also includes investing, acquiring,
holding or otherwise dealing in shares, stocks and other securities. Segment revenue
includes sale and olher income directly identifiable with/allocable (o the segment
including inter segment transfers. Inter segment transfers are accounted for based on
the transaction price agreed Lo between the seements.

Revenue, expenses, assels and liabilities are identified to segments on the basis of
their relationship Lo operating activities of the segmenl. Revenue, expenses. assets and
liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable on direct
and/or on a reasonable basis, have been disclosed as Unallocable.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
FRONT. INCLUDING NSUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPPLOYED

The Company [irmly believes thal "People” and "People driven Strategies” are the
pivolal force behind success of its growth. The HR philosophy is communicated Lo the



employees through various group interactions with the Top Management. In order Lo
ensure that its HR philosophy is translated into demonstrated action, the Company has
sound, pro-active and progressive HR stralegy and practices.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES (LE. CHANGE OF 25% OR MORE
AS COMPARED TO THE IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR)
IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS, ALONG WITH DETAILED EXPLANATIONS
THEREFOR, INCLUDING:

There is no such change in the (inancial ratios of 253% or more as compared Lo the last
financial year. A briel detail of the Ralio analysis and ils elements is elucidated in
Note No. 48 of the Financial Stalement.

DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT:

There is no change in the accounting policies adapted by the company and the
accounting policies adapted by lhe company is as per the Accounting Standards
prescribed under the relevant laws.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Managemenl Discussion and Analysis Report in regard (o
projeclions, estimates and expecltalions have been made in good faith. Many
unforeseen factors may come into play and affect the actual results, which could be
different from what the Directors envisage in terms of [ulure performance and
outlook. Market data and product information contained in this Report have been
based on information gathered [rom various published and unpublished reports, and
Ltheir accuracy, reliability and completeness cannol be ensured.

Place: Kolkata
On Behalf of the Board

Date: 04.09.2023 For Kanak Projects Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Sudhir Prakash Anshuman Prakash
Managing Director  Director

DIN: 00434020 DIN: 00434909



ANNEXURE - B

Form AOC-1

IPart B: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant o Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related lo Associale
Companies and Joint Venlures

MName of associales/Joinl Ventures Lao Jan Tea Co. Pvi. Lid.

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31* March, 2023

2. Shares of Associate/Joinl Ventures held by
the company on the year end

No. E000

Amount of Investment in AssociatesfJoint Venture | SO00000

Exlend of Holding%: 49.91
3. Descnplmn of how there is signiﬁ:;zmt 'l-'l-:.ll.di-ng is more than 20%
influence

4. Reason why the associale/joinl venture is -
not consolidated

5. Mel worth attributable Lo shareholding as Rs, 255,87 400 (2.49% of
per lalest audiled Balance Sheet consolidated nel assets)

6. Profit/l.oss for the year

i Considered in Consolidation Rs. -27,10,209.00

ii. Mol Considered in Consolidation -

Dated: 04.09.2023

Place: Kolkata
On Behalf of the Board

For Kanak Projects Limited

Sd/f- Sd/-
Sudhir Prakash Anshuman Prakash

Managing Director  Director
DIN: 00434020 DIN: 00434909



1.

g

3.

Annexure - C

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The CSR policy of the Company has been formulaled and adopted in terms of Section
135 of the Companies Acl, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. The Company will
endeavour tocarry oul various aclivities which have been stated in Schedule V11 of the
Companies Act, 2013, Kanak Projects Ltd. (Hereinafter refers to as KPL). KPL stands
commitled Lo Lhe social and economic development of the communities in which it
operales. The company's commitment lowards this includes giving increasing
opportunities for socially and economically disadvantageous seclions of the society.
The Company has been coniributing its lime, experiise and resources lo help
communities and underiaking a series of Iniliatives thal are locally relevant.

KPL. aims al laking up the programmes that benefit the communilies in and around its
work centres and over a period of lime. resulls in enhancing the guality of the life of the

people inthe area of ils business operalions.

Composition of CSR Committee:

SI. | Name of Director| Designation Number of Number of
No. meetings ol CSR | meelings of CSR
Commillee Commillee
held during atlended during
the Year the
Year
1. | Meelima Jain Non Executive and | l
Non Independent
Director
2. | Nitin Kandoi IndependentDirector | | |
3. F-'FI'ncey Kandoi | Director 1 1

Provide the weblink where composition of CSR commitiee, CSR Policy andCSR
Projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.-
www . kanakprojecislid.com

Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance
of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companics (Corporate Social responsibility policy)
Rules. 2014, if applicable: NA



5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub rule (3) ofrule 7 of
the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility policy) Rules, 2014 and amount
required for set off for the financial year.: NA

6. Average nel profil of the company as per seclion 135(5): Rs. 8,69 77 847/-

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5); Rs.
17.39.557.00/-

(b  Surplus arising oul of the CSR projects or programme or activities of the
previous financial years;- -

() Amounl required to be sel off for the financial year: -

(d} Total CSR obligation for the financial year (T7a+7b-7c): Rs. 17.39.557.00

8. (a) CS5R amounl spenl or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Amount Total Amount (ransferred o | Amount transferred Lo any [und
Spent for the | Unspent CSR Accounl as per | specilied under Schedule VI as
Financial section 135(6) per second proviso Lo seclion
Year (in Rs.) _ 135(5)

Amount Date of Transfer; Amount Date of Transfer
24,00.000.00| Not Applicable




(b) Details of CSR amounl spenl against ongoing project for the financial vear:

1 (2 3 4 |5 6 7 8 9 10 11
SI|Na |Item | Lo | Locatio | Proj | Amo | Am | Amou | Mode of | Mode of
. |me |fro |ca |nofthe |ect |unt |o nt Impleme | Implementati
N |of [m | project dura | alloc | unt | trapsf | ntation | on Through
. | the | the ar tion | ated | spen | erred | Direct Implementing|
Pro | list ed - for Lin Lo Apgency
j ol St | Dis the the | Unspe
ecl | acti i l_ Proj | curr | nL
vi il ect |enmt |CSR N | C5R
ties (in fina | Accou a Registr
in Rs.) | n nt for m | alion
Sch cial | the e No.
£ year | Projec
dule (in Las
Vil Rs.) | per
to Sectio
the n
Acl 135(6
)
; (in Rs.)
Not Applicable

{c] Delails of CSR amounl spenl againsl other than ongoing projects for the
financial year;

1 2 3 4 3 6 7 )
51 | Name of ltem Loc | Location of Amount | Mode | Mode of
No. | the from al the Project spent for | of Implementation
Project the list | area |guio | pDistri | e Imple | through
of (Yes ct Project menta | implementing
activitie | /MNa) {inRs.) Lion agency
5in Direcl | Name CSR
Schedul { Rf_-_gj
eVII 1o Yes/ sl
the Act N o) ratio
. . . : . . : | nNo.
SHEO Social | No Uttar | Dehra 24, Direct| SHEO CSR
PRASAD Welfa a dun 00, PRASA | 0002
1 DARSHAN re khan 00 D 0378
LAL d i DARSH
CHATWAL ANLAL
ETRUST CHAIW




ALE
TRUST
TOTAL Rs. 24,00.000
(d) amount spent in Administrative Overheads: N.A.
() Amount spent on Impact Assessmenl, if applicable: NA
(f} Total amount spent for the financial vear (8b+8c+8d+8e); 24,000,000
(2] Excess amount for set off, if any: -
5L Particular Amount (in Rs.)
MNo.
(i) Two percent of average nel profit of the 17.39.5571-
company as per section 135(5)
(ii) Total amount spenl for the Financial Year 24 00,000/
(i) Excess amounl spenl for the linancial year(ii-i) 6,.60.443/-

{iv) Surplus arising oul of the CSR projecis or
programmes or aclivilies ol the previous
financial years, if any

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding 660,443/
financial years(iii-iv) _ el .
9. In case of creation or apquisilion of capital assel furnish the details réf:{uing

to theassel so created or acquired through CSK Spent in the firancial year:

NA

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset

(b) Amounl of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital

(] Details of the entity or public authority or beneliciary under whose

namesuch capital assel is registered, their address elc

(d) Provide details of the capital assel created or acquired (including

completeaddress and location of the capital asset)

10. Specily the reason if the company has failed to spend lwo percent of the
averagenel profit as per section 135(5): NA

On Behalfl of the Board

For Kanak Projects Limited

Date: 04.09.2023 Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Kolkata Sudhir Prakash Anshuman
. Prakash
Managing
Director Director

DIN: 00434020 DIN: (0434909




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuani to Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Begulations, 20135, a Report on Corporate Governance is as follows:

1. COMPANY PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance aims al the attainment of the highest
levels of transparency, accountabilily and responsibility in all operations and all interaclions
with its Shareholders, Investors, Lenders, Employees, Government and other stakeholders.

As parl of our commitment to un a values-driven and processes managed company, this
responsibility is taken up with highest discipline and vigilance by the Company’s Board of
Directors and its management team. The Company believes that all ils operations and actions
must serve the underlying goal of enhancing overall shareholder value consistently over a
sustained period of time. The Board considers itsell a Trustee of its shareholders and
acknowledges its responsibilities lowards them for creating, enhancing and safeguarding their
wealth.

Z. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Company's Board comprises of adeguale mix of Independent and Non-Independent
Directors as well as Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

The Company's board members have diverse areas of knowledge and expertise, which is
necessary in providing as independent and objective view on business issues and assess lthem
from the stand poinl of the stakeholders’ of the Company.

a. Composition of Board of Directors

The Company’s policy is to maintain optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive
Directors. The Constitution of the Board as on March 31, 2023:

Mr. Sudhir Prakash [Mr. Anshuman Prakash

Managing Director Executive Director (Promoler)

Executive (Promoler)

Mationality Indian MNationality Indian

Age T4 Ape a0

Date of O1/1 171988 Date of 21111996

appoiniment appoiniment

Tenure on Board 33 years Tenure on Board 27T years

Termending dale | NA Term ending date MNA

Shareholding 1350 (0.03%) “Shareholding 56780 (1.28%)

Board memberships — Indian listed companies | Board memberships — Indian
listedcompanies




DEA Limited

Managing [irector
Execulive

DL Limited

Director & CFU
Non Executive

Listing Regulations

Listing Regulations

E K Commercial| Non-Executive Director| R K Commercial Executive Director
Lid and Non- Independent | l.td and Non-
Director ( Promoter) Independent
Director { Promoler)
Commitiee Member: NIL Commitiee Member: NIL
details as per details as per
Regulation 26 of Chairperson: NIL. Regulation 26 of Chairperson: NIL.

Areas of expertise

Finance Background

Areas of expertise

Finance Background

Mr. Sidhant Prakash
Executive Director (Promoler)

Mr. Nikhil Prakash

Execulive Director (Promoter)

Board memberships — Indian listed companies

Mationality Indian MNationality Indian

Ape 34 Age 47

Date of 3W0e/2015 Date of 3W0a2015
appoiniment appoiniment
Tenure on Board K Tenure on Board ]

Termending dale | NA Term ending date MNA
Shareholding 0 (0%:) Shareholding 15370 (0.35%)

Board memberships — Indian

listedcompanies

Listing Reaulations

Listing Regulations

DLX Limited Director R K Commercial Managing Director
Mon-executive Lid { Promoter)

R K Commercial |Executive Direclor and

l.id Non-Independent
Director ( Promoter)

Commiltee Member: NA Commillee Member: NA

details as per details as per

Regulation 26 of Chairperson: NA Regulation 26 of Chairperson: NA

Areas of expertisc

Finance Background

Areas of expertise

Finance Background

Ms. Neelima Jain

Non-Executive Director and
Director (Non-Promoler)

Independent

Mr. Nitin Kandoi

Non-Executive Direclor and Independent
Director { Mon-Promoler)

appoiniment

appointment

Nationality Indian Nationality Indian
Ape T2 Age 37
Date of 30372015 Date of 1272020




Tenure on Board 9 Tenure on Board 3
Term ending date | NA Term ending daie 30.11.2025
Shareholding Nil Shareholding Nil

Board memberships — Indian listed companies

Board memberships — Indian

listedcompanies
-Nil

DLX Limited Director DLX Limited Diirector
MNon-Executive Non-Executive

R K Commercial| Direclor R K Commercial Director

Lid Nop-execulive Lid Non-Execulive

Commitles Member: Audit| Commilttee Member: Nil

delails as per Committee. Nomination | details as per

Regulation 26 of | and Remuneration | Regulation 26 of Chairperson:

Listing Committee. Corporate | Listing Audit

Regulations Social Responsibility | Regulations Commiltee,
Commitiee and Nomination
Stakeholders and
Relationship Committee Remuneration
ol DLX Limited. Commillee,
Audil Commitlee, Corporate
Nomination and Socia
Remuneratlion IResponsibility
Commiltee and Commillee
Stakeholders and
Relationship Commiltee Stakeholders
of R K Relationship

Commercial Commiltee of

Limited. DLX
Chairperson: N.A Limited.

Audil Committee and
Nomination and
Remuneration
Commilles of R

KCommercial
Lid.

Areas of expertise

Finance Background

Areas ol expertise

Finance Background

Mpr. Princey Kandoi

MNon-Executive Direclor and Non-Independent
Director (Non-Promoter)

Nationality Indian

Age 38

Date of appointment 01/1272020
Tenure on Board 3




Term ending dale J0.11.2025
Shareholding Nil

Board memberships — Indian listed companies
Nil

DLX Limited Director
Non-Executive

R K Commercial Lid Director
MNon-executive

Commilles Member: Audit
details as per Commiltee and
Repulation 26 of Nomination and
Listing Remuneration
Regulations Commiltee of RK

Commercial Lid
Audit Commiilee and
Nominalion and
Remuneration
Committee of DLLX
Ltd

Chairperson: Nil

Areas of expertise | Finance Background

The Board periodically reviews lhe Compliance reporl pertaining lo all laws
applicable to the Company, prepared by the Company as well as steps laken by the
Company to rectifly instanceol non-compliances.

b. Attendance record of Board meetings

During the year under review, 7 (Seven) Board meetings were held. The Board
members arg given appropriate documents and information in advance of each board
meeling.

The attendance record of all directors on the Board and the last AGM and the number
ol Companies / Committees where he / she is a Direclor / Member as under.

Name Altendance Date of Total No of No % of
of the at last AGM original Directorship Board of Attenda
Direct Appointmen|  jpeluding Meetin Board nce
or t this gheld Meeti
Company ng
attend
ed
Mr. Neelima Yes 3V03/20 4 7 4 37%
Jain 15




M. Sudhir Yes OI/T1/19 _ < 7 100%
Prakash 88 15

Mr. Nikhil Yes 30/06/20 5 - 3 57%
Prakash 15

Mr. Yes 2111719 7 7 100%
Anshu 96 16

man

Prakas

h

M. Nitin Yes 01712720 < 7 100%
Kandoi 20 T

Mr. Sidhant Yes 30/D6/20 " 7 i 100%
Prakash 15

Mr. Princey Yes 0112720 7 T 100%
Kandoi 20 3

¢. Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se:

Sr. Name of Director Relationship with other Directors

No.
I | Mr. Sudhir Prakash Father of :

Mr. Nikhil Prakash

Mr. Anshuman Prakash

2 Mr. Sidhant Prakash Nephew of Mr. Sudhir Prakash
3 Mr. Neelima Jain Mot relaled to any other Director
4 Mr. Nitin Kandoi Mot relaled to any other Director
5 Mrs. Princey Kandoi Mot relaled to any other Director

d. Number of other board of directors or committees in which a directors is a member or
chairperson and with effect from the Annual Report for the year ended 31st March
2019, including separately the names of the listed entities where the person is a director
and the category of directorship:

The details above-mentioned are available on  the website of the company
hitpafwww. kanakprojectsiid.com/
e. number of meetings of the board of directors held and dates on which held
the details above mentioned are available on the websile of the ompany in the Annual Return
for the Financial yvear 2022-23 and is available at hitp://'www_kanakprojectslid.com/

f. number of shares and convertible instruments held by non- executive directors
Mo shares of convertible instruments are held by the Non-execulive directors of the company.,

2. A chart or a matrix setting oul the skills/expertise/competence of the Borad of Direclors



Leadership Experience of
experience of running crafling

large enterprise business strategy

k. confirmation that in the opinion of the Board with regard to the Independent Directors
It is hereby confirmed that fulfill the conditions specified in these regulations and are
independent of the management.

COMMITTEES OF THE COMPANY':
{fa) AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of
Section 177 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 18 ol the SEBI (L.isting
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Audil Commiltee of
the Company consist of three directors. All the directors have gond knowledge of
finance. accounts as well as company law. The Chairman of the Commitiee is Mr.
Nitin Kandoi. The other members of the committee are Mrs. Princey Kandoi, Ms.
Neelima Jain.

Terms of Reference —
The board lerms of reference of the Committee inter alia includes the [ollowing:

1. Owversight of the Company's [inancial reporting process and the disclosure of ils
financialinformation o ensure thal the financial stalement is correct, sulficient
and credible.

2. Recommending the appoiniment, remuneration and lerms of appointment of
auditors ofthe Company.

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by
the statutory auditors.



Reviewing, with the management the annoual financial statements and the
auditor's report thereon, before submission to the board for approval, with
particular reference to:

{a) Matters required to be included in Director's Responsibility Statement
included in Board's report:

(b} Changes, il any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

(¢} Major accounting entries based on exercise of judgment by management;

{d) Significant adjusiments made in the (inancial statements arising oul of audit findings;

{e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relaling Lo financial stalements;

10.
1.
¥ 5

i3.

14.
15.

16.

([) Disclosure of any related party ransaclions;
(g) Qualificalions in the drafl audit report.

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before
submission to the Board for approval.

Reviewing, with the management, statement of uses and application of funds
raised through an issue, statement of funds wtilized [or other purposes and reporl
of monitoringagency.

Review and monitor the auditors’ independence and performance. and
effectiveness of audil process.

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with
related parties.

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company. wherever il is necessary.
Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.
Reviewing, with the management, performance of statulory and internal
auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audil funclion, if any, including the
structure of theinternal audil department, slaffing and seniority of the official
heading the depariment, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal
audit.

Discussion with inlernal auditors of any significant findings and follow up thereon.
Reviewing the findings of any internal investizations by the internal audilors
inlo matterswhere there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal
control systems of amaterial nature and reporting the matter to the Board.
Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences about nature and

scope ofaudil as well as post-audil discussion Lo ascertain any area ol concern.



17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment o

depositors, debenture holders,

the

18. Shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

19. To review Lhe [unclioning of the WhisUle-Blower mechanism.

20. Approval of appointment of Chiefl Financial Officer.

21.To review reporl submitled by Moniloring Agency informing material
deviations in the utilization of Issue proceeds and lo make necessary
recommendations to the Board, if, when and where applicable.

22, Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of relerence of the

Audil Committee,

During the year under review. the Audit Committee mel 04 (Four) times on
3052022, 11082022, 14/11/2022 and 13/0272023. Atlendance of the members

after re-constitution at the meetingwas as follows:

{b) NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Nomination & Remuneration commitiee comprise of three directors, viz, Mr.
Nitin Kandoias Chairman, Mrs. Princey Kandoi and Ms. Neelima Jain as other

members.

Allendance of the members aller re-constitulion al the meeting was as [ollows:

Name of the Member Designation No. of Meetings
attended
Mr. Nitin Kandoi Chairman 4
Mirs. Princey Kandoi ‘Member 4
Ms. Neclima Jain Member 4

Name of the Member Designation No. of Meetings
attended
Mr. Nitlin Kandoi Chairman 1
Mrs. Princey Kandoi Member 1
Ms. Neelima Jain Member 1

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall identifly persons who are qualified
lo becomedirectors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance
with the criteria laydown. Recommended to the Board their appoiniment and removal

and shall carry oul evaluationof every direclor performance.




The Committee had been consulied to review and approve the annual salaries,
commission, service agreement and other employment conditions for the executive
directors. The remuneration policy is in consonance with the existing industry
praclice.

The terms of reference of the Commiltee are in line wilh the requirements ol the
CompaniesAct, 2013 and Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule 11 to the SEBI
LODR.

The terms of reference of the Committee are broadly as under:

1. formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, posilive attributes
and independence of a direcior and recommend to the board of direcltors a
policy relatingto, the remuneration of the direclors, key managerial personnel
and other employees.

2. Formulalion of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent direclors
and theboard.

Devising a policy on Board diversity.

4, ldentifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be
appointed insenior management in accordance with the criteria laid down,
and recommend Lo the board of direclors their appointment and removal.

5. Whether to exiend or continue the term of appomtment of the independent
director, on the basis of there of performance evaluation of independent
directors.

During the year under review, the Committee mel 01 (One) limes on 15/03/2023
and all members were present al the meetings.,

Details of the remuneration to the Execulive Direclors provided as per accounts for
the year ended March 31, 2023 are given below:

Executive Director Salary (In Rs Commission (In Hs)
Mr. Nikhil Prakash 30.62.400 NIL
Mr. Anshuman Prakash 30,62.400 NIL
Mr. Sidhant Prakash 30.62.400 NIL
Mr. Sudhir Prakash NIL NIL




Non-Executive Director Sitting Fees Commissio | Total
(In Rs.) n{ln Rs.) (In
Rs.)

NIL NIL NIL
Ms., Neelima Jain

Delails of the remuneration (o the Non-Executive Direclor provided as per accounts for the
Year ended March 31, 2023 are given below: NA

Familiarization Programmes:

The managemenlt conducts [amiliarization programmes for its Directors which
includes discussion on industry outlook and updales on various mallers viz
Regulalory. Business, Stock exchange operations, Finance, Internal Control,
Information Technology etc. The details of programmes lor familiarization of
Direclors and independent directors are available on lhe Company’s websile
hilp:/fwww_kanakprojectslid.com/

(c) STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders Relalionship Commiltee comprise of three directors. viz, Mr. Nilin
Kandoi asChairman, Mrs. Princey Kandoi and Ms. Neelima Jain as other members.

The Commitlee has been constituted lo specifically look into redressal of
shareholders' grievance malters. The Commillee has also been dealing the power (o
approve lransler / lransmission, issue of new or duplicale certilicates, sub-division of
shares, splil ol shares and all mallers related to shares.

Mrs. Ginni Lohariwala, the Company Secretary of the Company is the Compliance Officer.

During the year under review, the Commitiee met (8 (Four) time on 30/05/2022,
1170872022, 14/11/2022 and 13/02/2023 and all members present at the meeting.

The company has not received any number of complaints during the year ended
31.03.2023 and in view of the same the number ol unresolved and complainis not
resolved as per the satisfaction of the shareholders is also NIL.

(d) SENIOR MANAGEMENT:
There has been no change in the Senior management of the company since Lhe pasl
financial year.

(¢} CORPORTE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders Relalionship Committee comprise of three directors, viz, Mr. Nilin
Kandoi asChairman, Mrs. Princey Kandei and Ms. Neelima Jain as other members.

The Committee mel 01 (One) lime on 15/03/2023 and all members present at the meeling.



REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS:

All pecuniary relationship or transactions of the | The Non-executive directors of the
non-exccutive directors vis-a-vis the listed entity | company have no material pecuniary
relationship with the company except
from receiving the sitting fees.

Criteria of making payments to non-executive The Non-executive directors of the

directors company are only paid sitting fees on
the basis of their expertise and
competencics.

Disclosures with respect to remuneration: in The details related to the same are

addition to disclosures required under the placed on the website of the company

Companies Act. 2013 at htip://www kanakprojectsiid.com/

SEPARATE MEETINGS OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

As required by SEBI LODE, the Independent Directors held (] meeting during the
year. All Independent Directors attended the same.

The Independent Directors discussed / review the matters specified in Regulation 25
of SEBI LODR.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

Year | General Meeting Date Time Special Resolution Passed
2021-22 Annual General 29/002023 11 1-00 | Special Resolution was
Meeting AM. passed.
2020-21 Annual General IOT22021 |1 1-00aM | | Special Resolution was
Meeting passed.

2019-20 Annual General 3122020 230 P.M. | 6 Special Resolution was
Meeting passed.

During the last year no Special Resolutions were passed by way of Postal Ballot. Further
no Special resolution is proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot, whereas in case of
any such requirement the Board might contemplated the need to pass the resolutions
through Postal Ballot.

DISCLOSURES

{a) Basis of related party transactions
All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on
an arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business. There are no



malerially significanl related party transaclions made by the Company with
Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which
may have a polential conflict with the interest ofthe Company at large.

All Related Pariy Transaclions are placed before the Audil Commiltee for approval.

(b) Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, and strictures
imposed on theCompany by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any
statutory authority, on any matters related to Capital Markets during the
last three years:

There have been no penallies or structures imposed by SEBI or any statutory
authority on any matter related to the capital markets during the last three years.

{c) Vigil Mechanism

The Company has a vigil mechanism for directors and employees (o report genuine
concerns. The Vigil mechanism provides for adeguale safeguards against
victimization of direclor(s) or employee(s) or any other person who avail the
mechanism and also provide for direct access lothe chairperson of the audil commiltee
in appropriate or exceplional cases.

(c) The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements of Regulations as
per Chapler IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 201 5.

Compliance Report on Non mandatory requirements under Regulation 27(1).
(d) Risk management

The Company operales in an increasingly volalile and challenging business
environment. The Company’s overall risk management seeks Lo minimize polential
adverse effects on its performance. The Company has created the Risk Management
charter for building a strong riskmanagement culture.

Board of Directors confirms that there exisl no elements of risks, il any. which in the
opinion olthe Board may threalen Lthe existence of the Company.

{2) Compliance by the Company

There are no instances of non-compliance by the Company on any mallers, nor
have any

fsirictures been imposed by the Slock Exchange or SEBI or any other statulory
authority on anymatter relating lo SEBI Compliance norms during the Financial Year
ended on March 31, 2023,

{f) Performance Evaluation:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requiremenis) Regulations, 2015 the Board has carried out the annual
performanceevaluation of its own performance, the Directors individually as well as
the evaluation of the working of its Committees.



The Nomination and Remuneration Commitlee laid down the criteria for performance
evaluation of Independent Direclors and other Directors, Board of Direciors and the
various committees of the Board of Directors. The criteria for performance evaluation
cover the areas relevant Lo their functioning as Chairman, Independent Directors or
olther Direclors. Member of Board or committees of the Board. A Structured
questionnaire, evolved through discussions within the Board, has been used for this
PUrpPOsE.

The purposes of evalualion of the Board and its Commillees was Lo analyze how the
Board and ils commillees are funclioning, the lime speni by the Board while
considering matlers and whether the terms of reference of the Board Commillees have
been mel, beside compliance ofprovisions of the Act and Listing AgreemenL.

The Direclors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. However,
given the nascent nature of this process, lhe evaluation process will be strengthened
through experienceand also by identifying best practices used by other companies.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has adopted a Code of Conducl [or Directors and Senior Management
of the Company, as required by Regulation 17(5) of the SEBI LODR. The Company
has received conflirmation from the Direclors and Senior Managemenl regarding
compliance with the code forthe year ended March 31, 2022, The code has been
displayed on the Company’s website. A declaration from Managing Direclor forms
part of this repori.



To.
The Board of Direclors
Kanak Projects Limited

41, Chowringhee Road 4P Floor,
Kolkata —700040

Dear Sir,
Sub: Compliance with the Company's Code of Ethics and Business Conduct

In accordance with Schedule V (D) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, all Board Members and Senior Management
Personnel have allirmed compliance with Code of Ethics and Business Conduct of
the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

Place: Kolkata For Kanak Projects Limiled
Date: 04.09.2023 sdf-

Sudhir Prakash
Managing Direclor
DIN: 00434020

Fees paid to Anditors:

Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a
consolidated basis.to the statulory auditor and all entities in the network [irm/metwork
entity of which the statutory auditor is a part:

Statutory Audit Fee: Rs.

3.50,000¢/- Tax  Awudit

Fee: Rs. 50,000/-

Fees are exclusive of laxes as applicable. No payment has been made to the statutory
auditorsfrom subsidiaries of the Exchange or lo any network [irm/entity.

COMPLAINTS PERTAINING TO SEXUAL HARASSMENT:

a. number of complaints filed during the financial year: Nil

b. number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: Nil

<. number of complaints pending as on end of the linancial year: Nil
Non-Compliance with the Conditions of Corporate Governance:

The Cempany is in compliance with the requirements stipulaled under Regulation 17
lo 27 read with Schedule V and clauses (b) o (1) of Regulation 46(2) ol the Listing
Regulalions. to the extenl as applicable, with regards Lo Corporate Governance.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING:

The Company has adopled a revised “Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and
Report Trading in Securities and Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive
Information™ (Revised Code) in Compliance with SEBI (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018. The same was effeclive [rom April Olst



2019 and shall be made available on the Company's websile
bitp:/f'www kanakprojecislid.com.

DISCLOSURE ON NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS:
a. The Board has an Executive Chairman. The Independent Directors are only
receiving sitting fees for altending meetings.

b. Shareholders Righis: Annual Accounts are circulated Lo all the shareholders and
also published in the websile of the company aller passing by the shareholders in the
Annual General Meeting.

c. Audit gualifications: There are no qualifications contained in the Auditor’'s Reporl
on the standalone financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023,

d. Training ol Board members: The Directors are also appraised of all imporiant
changes in applicable legislalion, enactmenl, guidelines. accounting standards, etc. o
enable them (o take informed decisions.

e. Disclosures of web-link for disclosing policy for delermining ‘material’
subsidiaries, policy on dealing with related parly Ulransaclions, disclosure of
commadity price risks and commodity hedzing activities and disclosure of details of
utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or gualified institutions
placement as specilied under Regulation 32(7A) are not applicable to the Company.

PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS RE APPOINTED

As required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures) Regulations, 2013
as amended from time to time, the details of membership and other relevant
details in respect of Directors who are being recommended for re-appointment
are given hercunder;-

Name of the | Age Qualification Experience Directorship in
Director other Public
Limited
Companics
Mr. Anshuman | 49 Graduation Finance, 2
Prakash Management,
Legal
Updation and
management of
multiple
companies.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION




1. Annual General Meeting

Day, Date & Time

Venue

Thursday, 28" September, 2023 at 11.00
AWM. Kanak Building, 41, Chowringhee Road,
Kolkata-700071

2. Financial Year

April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023

3. Dividend payment date

The Company has not declared and paid any
Dividend.

4. Listing Details

The Calcutia Stock Exchange Limited
(CSE)

7. Lyons Range,
TOO001, West Bengal.

Dalhousie. Kolkata-

5. Stock Codes

Scrip Code:
ISIN: INEY28EOL016
CIN: L6e7020WB 1979P1.CO3 1867

each month in last financial year

7. Performance in comparison to broad-
hased indices such as BSE Sensex,
CRISIL Index ete.

6. Market Price data- high, low during!

Mol Applicable as the Company 's shares are
not traded.

Not applicable as the Company s shares are
nol actively trading.

8. Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

Share Transfer System is managed by the
RTA.
NICHE
LIMITED
(Registrar &  Share Transfer

Agent) 3A. Auckland Place, 7th
Floor
Room No. 7A and 7B. Kolkata - 700017

TECHMNOLOGIES PRIVATH

9. Share Transfer System

Maintained by the Registrar and share transfer
agent and approved by the Board of Directors
in case of Physical Transfers.

10. Dematerialization of shares and
liguidity

11, Compliance Officer / Company
Secretary

‘Ginni Lohariwala

No  Dematerialization requesl have been

during the Financial Year.

2A. Kedar Bose Lane, 3rd Floor, Kolkata
—700025




Sharcholding Pattern as on March 31, 2023

Sharcholding Category No of Number of %% of Holding
Sharcholders Shares
IP'romoter & Promoter
Group
3 3313300 74.472
Individual! HUF
1 100 0oz
I_:’-_ﬂd}: [_I_ulljpcrrale _
Public Shareholding
Institutions
Non-Institutions
Bodies Corporate 3 1138520 25571
Individual Shareholders 3 280 0.006
holding nominal value upto
Rs. 2 Lac
Individual Shareholders ] 0 0
helding nominal value
ereater than Rs. 2 Lac
Any Other (NR1 & Clearing | 0 ] 0
Members)
] 0 0
Total iz 4452400 10
Other Disclosures:

disclosures on materially significant
related party transactions that may have
polential conflict with the interests of
listed entity at large

NIL

details of non-compliance by the listed
entity, penalties, strictures imposed on
the listed entily by slock exchange(s) or
the board or any statutory authorily, on
any maller related lo capital markets,
during the last Lhree years

NIL

details of establishment of wvigil
mechanism whistle blower policy, and
alfirmation that no personnel has been
denied access Lo the audit commiliee

NA

details of compliance with mandatory
requirements and adoplion of the non-

The Board of Direclors of the Company have
keeping in mind the requirement of Corporate




mandatory requirements;

zovernance and the to maintain high standards of
Corporate governance made all efforts to comply
with the mandatory and non-mandatory
requirements.

web link where policy for determining
‘malerial” subsidiaries is disclosed

hitp:/'www.kanakprojectsltd.com/compliance-
corner/

web link where policy on dealing with
related parly transactions;

hitp:/f'www. Kkanakprojectsltd.com/compliance-
corner/

disclosure of commodity price risks and | NA
commodity hedging aclivities
Details of utilization of funds raised | NA

through  preferential  allolment  or
qualified institutions placemenl  as
specilied under Regulation 32

a certificate from a company secretary
in practice that none ol the directors on
the board of Lthe company have been
debarred or disgualified from being
appointed or conlinuing as direciors of
companies by the Board/Ministry of
Corporate Affairs or any such statutory
authority

A certificate to that effect is annexed herewith to
this repori.

where the board had not accepted any
recommendation of any commitiee of
the board which is mandatorily
required, in the relevant financial year,
the same Lo be disclosed along wilh
reasons thereol

The recommendations of the commitiees made to
the Board of directors have been taken and
implemented.

lotal lees for all services paid by the
listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a
consolidaied basis, (o the statuiory
auditor and all entities in the network
[irm/network  entity of which the
statutory audilor is a part

Disclosed in the Financial Staltements of the
Company. Further, the company has no
subsidiary.

disclosure by listed enlity and ils
subsidiaries of Loans and advances in
thiz nature of loans Lo [imms/companies
in which directors are interested by
name and amount

Disclosed in the Financial Statements of the
Company

Details of material subsidiaries of the
listed enlity, including the date and
place of incorporalion and the name
and dale of appointmenl of the slatutory
auditors of such subsidiaries

MNA

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER/CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATE:
In terms of Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, the CFO made a certification
to the Board of Directors in the prescribed formal for the yvear at the review, which
has been reviewed by the Audit Commillees and laken on record by the Board. The



same is allached Lo this reporl.

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE:

A Cerificale from Mrs. Shristi Garg, Partner of Prateek Kohli & Associates,
confirming compliances with the conditions of Corporale Governance as stipulated
under the Listing Regulations is attached to this report.

NON-COMPLIANCE OF ANY REQUIREMENT OF

GOVERNANCE REPORT
NA

CORPORATE

DISCLOSURES SPECIFIED IN REGULATION 17 TO 27 AND CLAUSES (B)
TO (1) OF SUB-REGULATION (2) OF REGULATION 46 SHALL BE MADE
IN THE SECTION ON CORPPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE ANNUAL

REPPORT.

Disclosures relaled Lo the same are made by the Company.

Equity Shares in the Suspense Account: NIL

ANNUAL REPORT:

Annual Kepori containing, inter alia, Audited Financial Statement, Auditor's Reporl,
Boards' Report, Corporate Governance Report, Management Discussions and
Analysis Report and other material and related matters/ information is circulated by
email to the Shareholders and others entitled therelo. The copy of Annual Report is
also available on Company’s websile at www_cse- india.com.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Quarterly results

By dissemination on the Calcutta Stock
Exchange. and publishing in one English
daily having wide circulation ion the state
where the company has its registered ofTice
and in one Bengali daily.

Newspapers wherein resulls normally
published

Financial Express (English) and Aaj Kal
{Bengali)

Any website, where displayed

On the websile of the CSE and the Company

Whether il also displays olficial news releases

NA

Presentations made to institutional investors
or to the analysts

NA

DECLARATION SIGNED BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER STATING THAT
OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL HAVE AFFIRMED COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT OF

THE MEMBERS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

This is 1o declare thal to the best of my knowledge and belief, all the members of the Board and
Senior Management Personnel of the Company have afTirmed their respective compliance with

the Code of Conduct as laid down by the Company for the Year ended 3 1st March, 2023.




The above Report was placed before and approved by the Board of Directors al their Meeting
held on 04.09.2023.

Place: Kolkata
Date: (4092023 On Behalf of the Board
For Kanak Projects Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Sudhir Prakash Anshuman I'rakash
Managing Director  Director

DIN: 00434020 DIN: 00434909



CFO Compliance Certification

To.
The Board of Directors
Kanak Projects Limited

I. Lalita Kanta Samal, Chiel Financial Officer of Kanak Projects Limited, (o the best of my
knowledge and belief, certify that:

{a) I have reviewed the linancial stalements and the cash Now statement for the year ended on
31.03.2023 and that to the best of my knowledge and belief:

(1) These statements do nol contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact
or conlain statements that might be misleading;

(ii) These statements logether present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounling siandards, applicable laws and Regulations.

(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the
Company during the year ended on 31.03.2023 which are fraudulent, illegal or velatile of the
company's code of conducL

{c) I accept the responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for Financial
Reporting and I have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company
pertaining to [inancial reporting.

(d) I have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee:

(1) That there was no signilicanl changes in inlernal control over financial reporting during the
year,

(i1) That there was no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the
same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

(iii)There are no instances ol signilicant fraud of which 1 have become aware of and (he

involvement of the management or an employee having a significant role in internal control
system over linancial reporting.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Kanak

Place: Kolkata Projects Limited

Date: (04.09.2023
sd/- Sd/f-
Lalita Kanta Samal Sudhir Prakash
CFO/KMP Managing Director

PAN: AKTPS1351M DIM: 00434020



Company Secretaries

ﬂs Prateek Kohli & Associates

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

The Members,

Kanak Projects Limited
LaT020WER19TPLCO3186T

We have examined the compliance ol conditions ol Corporate Governance by Kanak Projects Lud
(*the Company”) for the vear ended 31st March 2023, as stipulated in Regulation 17 to 27, 46(2) (b}
lo (1), Schedule 11 and V (paragraphs C, D and E) of the Secunties and Exchange Board ol India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015 (“Listing Regulations™) as
amended from time to lime. We have oblained all the information and explanations which Lo the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary lor the purpose ol certificalions.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management.
Ouor examination was limited lo procedures and implementations thereofl. adopled by the
Company lor ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporale Governance. It is
neither an audil nor an expression of opinion on the [inancial slalements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given Lo us,
and the representations made by Lhe directors and the management, we certify that the Company
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned
Listing Regulations.

We turther state thal such compliance is neither an assorance as (o the loture viability ol the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

Place: Kolkata

Date: 29% August, 2023

UDIN: F011577E000886132 For Prateek Kohli & Associates
Peer Review No.: 2042 /2022 Company Secretaries

Shristi Garg
Partner
C.P.No.: 17447

Office Address : 16/1A. Abdul Hamid Street 6* Floor, Suite 6K Kolkata — 700069
B4 : cspkohli@ email.com; T 491 90384 10495; T +9] OR74737484




Compuany Secretariey

I}s Prateek Kohli & Associates

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(pursuant fo Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para € clause (10)(7) of the SEB{
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Reguilations, 7015)

To,

The Members,

KANAK PROJECTS LTD

41 CHOWERINGHEE ROAD

KANAK BUILDING KOLKATA WE 700071

We have examined the relevant régisters, records, forms, réturns and disclosures received from the Directors of
EANAK PROJECTS LTD (CIN L&7020WE1979PLC031867) and having registered office at 41 CHOWRINGHEE
ROAD KANAK BUILDING KOLEATA WE 700071 [hersinafter referred to as ‘the Company”), produced before us by
the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule
¥ Para - C Sub clause 10 (1) of the Securities Exchange Beard of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosurs
Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DINY status at the portal www.mea.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations
furniched to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that'none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 315 March, 2023 have been debarred-or disqualified
from being appointed or continiing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Beard of India,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Rtz of appeinkm et in
Company
1] NEELIMA JAIN 00348042 30/03/2015
2 SUDHIR PRAKASH 00434020 01/11/1988
3. NIEHIL PRAKASH 00434328 30/06/2015
4, ANSHUMAN PRAKASH 00434909 21/11/1996
5 ~ NITIN KANDOI 035591786 01/12/2020
6. SIDHANT PRAKASH 06850941 30/06/2015
7 PRINCEY KANDOI 08946234 01/12/2020

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the management hasconducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Kolkata For Prateek Kohli & Assoclates
Date: 26% Angust, 2023 (Company Secretaries)
UDIN: F011577E000872074
Peer Review MNo.: 204272022
Sd/-
Shristi Garg
{Partner)

(C.P. No.: 17447)

Office Address - 16/1A. Abdul Hamid Street 6* Floor, Suite 6K Kolkata — 700069
B @ cspkohhi@ smail.com: @ +91 9038410495; T +91 9RT4T37484




l}s Prateek Kohli & Associates

Company Secreiaries

Annexure-A

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIALYEAR ENDED 317 DAY OF MARCH, 2023
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companics Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Kanak Projects Limited
LoTOZO0WER19T9PLCO31EGT
41 Chowringhee Road

Kolkata- 700071

We have conducted the Secretarial Andit of the compliance of applicable Statutory Provisions and the
adherence o good corporate practices by Kanak Projects Limlted (herelnafter called “ihe
Company™).Sccretarial Audil was conducted in a manner thal provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the Corporate Conducts/Stalutory Comphiances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers. minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and alse the information provided by the Company. its
officers, agents and authorzed representatives during the conduet of Secretarial Audit, we hereby
report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31™ March, 2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent. in the
manner and subject Lo the reporting made hereinafter:

We have cxamined the books, papers, minute books. forms and returns filed and other records

miintained by the Company for the financial year ended 319 March, 2023 according 1o the provisions
ol

L. The Companies Act, 201 3(the Actiand the rules made thereunder;
It The Securities Contracts {Regulation) Act. 1956 and the rules made thereunder;
[II.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thercunder;

IV. The following Regulations (as amended (rom time to time) and Guidelines prescribed under
the Securities and Exchange Board ol India Act 1992:-

a) The Sccurities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 201 1;

b]  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2815;

Office Address : 16/1 A, Abdul Hamid Street 6 Floor, Suite 6K Kolkata — 700069
24 : cspkohli@ email.com; @ +91 9038410495; T +91 0874737484




€] The Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Tssue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993;
We have also examined the compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i.The uniform Listing Agreements entered into by the Company, with The Calcutta Stock
Exchange Limited.

ii. The Securities & Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (LODR).

iii. The Secretarial Standards (88 - | and 88 2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, ete. mentioned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Dircetors of the Company comprises of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors. Independent Directors and a Woman Director as stipulated under the Act.

The composition of Committecs as required to be constituted under the Act and LODR are
duly constituted as per the provisions of the Act bul the Company has not followed Regulation
17 of the LODRE, 2015 in respect of appointment of Independent Director.

Adeguate Notice is given (o all Directors lo schedule the Board/Committee Meetings.
Information and circulation of the agenda with detailed information thereof, convening of
mectings was done in compliance with the applicable laws, rules. regulations and pumdelines,
eic. A system exists for sceking and oblaining further information and clarfications on the

agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meetings.
Resolutions were carried through majority decision. The minutes of the mectings held during
the audit period did not reveal any dissenling members' views.

We further report Lhat there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company Lo monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, Rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there were no major events which ook place in
the compuany.

Place: Kolkata For Prateek Kohll & Associates
Date: 26.05.2023 wm”
UDIN: FOLIS7TEODO872118 Shristi Garg
Partner
Peer Review No.: 2042/2022 C.P. No.: 17447

Cur report is also 1o be read with our letter annexed in Annexure 1.



ANNEXURE -1
To,
The Members

Kanak Projects Limited

Owr reporl of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
company. Our responsibility is lo express an opinion on these secrelarial records
basedon our audil.

2, We have followed the audil praclices and processes as were appropriale Lo oblain
reasonable assurance aboul the correciness of the contents of the secrelarial records.
The verification was done on lest basis (o ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe thal the processes and practices, we [ollowed
providea reasonable basis for our opinion,

3. We have not verilied the correciness and appropriateness of linancial records and
Books of Accounts of the company.

4. Wherever required, we have oblained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening ol evenls etc.

3. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulalions, slandards is the responsibilily of manmagemenl. Our examinalion was
limited Lo the verification of procedures on lest basis.

g. The Secretarial Audit reporl is neither an assurance as to future viability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the company.

For Prateek Kohli & Associates
Place: Kolkata Company Secretaries

Sd/-
f)ﬂff.‘ 25.“3.3“23 Shﬂxliﬁarg

Partner
UIMN: FOTISTTEMMIST2 18 CP. No. 17447

Peer Review No.: 20422022



Annexure-F

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

(i) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chiel Financial Officer & Company
Secretary during the Financial Year 2022-23, ratio of the remuneralion ol each Direclor to the median

remuneration of employees of the Company:-

5. | Name ol the Person | Designalion | % of increase | Remuneration | Ralio of
No. compared o Remuneralion to
B the median
remuneration of
emplovees
1 Mr. Sudhir Prakash Managing - - -
Director
2 [Mr. Anshuman Executive - 30.62.400
Prakazh Direclor
3 Mr. Nikhil Prakash Executive - 30,62 400
Director
4 Mr. Sidhant Executive - 30,62 400
Prakash Director
5 Mrs. Ginni | Company - 75,000
Lohariwala Secrelary

(ii} Other Direclors of the Company are paid only sitting fees which are nol considered as

remuneration.

(ifi)
Financial Year 2022- 2023: NIL

The percentage increase in the median remuneration ol employees in Lhe

{iv)The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company:- 19

Average percentage increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last Anancial year and its comparison with the percentage
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there
are any exceplional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:-

NA as the remuneration of the employees above mentioned have decreased since the last year.

(vi) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company:-
Yes

. There is no employee who is in receipt of remuneration in excess of the remuneration that is drawn
by the Managing Director or Whole-lime Director or Manager and holds by himsell or along with
his spouse and dependent children, two per cent or more of the equity shares of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

of
Kanak Projects Limited
Sdi- Sd/
Place: Kolkata Sudhir Prakash Anshuman Prakash
Date: (04.09.2023 : ; Direct
Managing Director Irector
DIN: 00434909

DIN: 00434020



FORMNO.AOC -2
I t o b- io i 34 he d 2} ofthe
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
Kanak Projects Ltd.

Form for Disclesure of particulars of contracts/arrangemenis entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including

certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm's length basis,

Mame (s) of the | Nature of | Nature of | Duration ]
5L No. | related party contracts relationship | of the Salient Amount in Bs.
contracts. ferms
Furbanchal License Fees Enterprise 12
Concast Put. Lid. Received Owned or MOMNTHS
Significanthy
Infl dh
1 i N/A 98100
Key
Manageriz!

Personnel or
their relatives

Enterprise
DOwned or
significantly
Barsana Farms License Fees influenced by | 12
Private Ltd Received Key NMOMNTHS
Managerial
Personnel or
their relatives

N/A 26160

On Behalf of the Board

For Kanak Projects Limited

Sdf- Sd/-
Sudhir Prakash Anshuman Prakash
Managing Director  Director

DIN: 00434020 DIN: 00434909



SALARPURIA & PARTNERS
7, Chittaranjan Avenue
Kolkata 700 072

Phone No.2237 5400/01
Fax No. : 2225 0992

E-mail ; salarpuria.jajodia@rediffmail.com

KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS AND
CASHFLOW STATEMENT AND STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
EQUITY SHARES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2023




Salarpuria & Partners

% CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
7. C. R. AVENUE, KOLKATA - 700 072
Phone : 2237 5400 / 5401, -1::15 5400 - 5410
website : www.salarpuriajajodia.com
a-mail : salarpuria.jajodia@rediffmail.com

office@salarpuriajajodia.com
Branches at New Delhi & Bangalore

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Kanak Projects Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of Kanak Projects Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023, and the statement of Proflt and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS Financial Statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and ather explanatory information.

In aur opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
{“Act”) In the manner so required and give a true and fair view In confarmity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companics (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, {“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), ¢hanges in
equlity and its cash tlows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
{ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the ind AS Financial Statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Ind AS
Eimancial statements,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the current period, These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole, and in foarming our opinlan thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on thesa matters,

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.
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Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The ather information comprises
the information included in the, Beard’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, and Shareholder’s
Information, but does not include the Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
infermation and, in doing so, consider whether the other infermation is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS
Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained In the audit or atherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there Is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statement.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134{5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making Judgements and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
Internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud orerror.

In preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Financial Statements as a whale
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee tha
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. . it

can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregd

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decision of user taken on the basis of these
Statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exerclse professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of materlal misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, lorgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Dbtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the crcumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate Internal financial controls

system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accountinge policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by managemeant,

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a geing concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to drow allention in our auditor’s repert to the related
disclosures in the Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencles |n internal control

that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding Independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other malters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report] Order, 2020 {"the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11} of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give In
the Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent
applicable.
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2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3] of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(&)

(h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinlon, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, read with
relevant rules.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Sectien 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure =B” to this report.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

{i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending fitigations as at 31st March, 2023 on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements — Refer Mote 39 to the standalone financial

statements.

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses,

{iil) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.
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{iv) {a)

{iv) (b)

liv) {c)

(v)

{vi)
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The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or In any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries"), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwlise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclased in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person or entity, including foreign entity {“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and {1i) of Rule 11{e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the financial year. Hence,
compliance in accordance with Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account
using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trall (edit log) facility is
applicable to the Companywith effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule
11{g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year
ended March 31, 2023.

& Partners

Chartered Accountants

Firm ICAl Reg. No.302113E
UDIN: 23069 23 BGUYM WA 294

M

Sarvesh Kumar S i‘ngh

Partner

Membership No: 069367

Place: Kolkata

Date: 79- pPC-2023
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ANNEXURE "A"TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referredtoin paragraph 1under ‘Report on Other Legaland Regulatory Requirements’ section of our Report).

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the course of audit, we state that:

i. a) A) The Company has generally maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

b)

d

e)

. {a)

details and situation of Property Plant and Equipment.

B} According to information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any intangible

assets. Hence the comment on the clause 3{i){a)(B) is not required.

As explained to us the Property Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management
at reasonable intervals. According to the infarmation and explanations glven to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of company.

The Company has not revelued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. So, comment
on the clause 3(i){d} is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated during
the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2023 fer helding any Benami Property
under the Benam| Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Refer
Note 50 of the Ind AS Financial Statements.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the inventories consists of enly securities
held in demat statement so there s no need of physical verification. Hence comment on the clause ii(a)
is not applicable.

{b) The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in

aggregate from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. So, comment
on the clause ii{b) is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has made investments and
granted unsecured loan to companies during the year, in respect of which-

{a) The Company has provided loans or advances in the nature of loans to any other entity-

{A) The Company has not provided loans or advances in the nature of loans and guarantee and
security to subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.

(8) The aggregate amount of loan provided during the year and balance outstanding as at balance
sheet date with respect to such loans to companies other than subsidiaries, oint ventures or
associates is ¥1,27,500.00 and ¥ 1,11,519.78 respectively. Further, the outstanding balance of
loans to companies other than subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates provi in earlier
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(b}

[c)

(d)

(e)

(f)
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According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, we are of the opinlon that the terms and conditions in relation to investments
made, grant of loans prima facie are not prejudicial to the Interest of the Company save and except
refer note 47 of the Standalone Financial Statements.

In case of the loans and advances in the nature of lpan, schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest have been stipulated and the borrowers have been regular in the payment of
the principal and interest save and except refer note 47 of the 5tandalone Financial Statements.

According to the information and explanations given to us there are no amounts overdue for more
than ninety days in respect of the loan granted to the Companies except loan amounting te ¥
11,71,776.01 (gross of expected credit loss) [Figures in Hundred) and company has taken reasonable
stepsfortherecoveryofthe loan ocutstanding. Refer note 47 of the Standalone Financial Statements.

According to the information explanation provided to us, the loan or advance in the nature of loan
granted has not fallen due during the year. Hence, reporting under paragraph 3{ill) (e) of the said
order is not applicable.

According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has granted loans which is
repayable on demand. Aggregate amount of loan repayable on demand Is ¥ 12,83,295.79 (gross of
expected credit loss) (Figures In Hundred) granted to related parties which is 100% of the total loan
gramied.

In our opinion and according to the Information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
wherever applicable with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans,
investments, guarantees and security made.

Accarding to the information and explanations given to us, there is no such deposits, taken by the
Company, for which directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76
or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under, are
required to be complied with. Hence, comment on clause 3(v) of the said order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the company. Thus, reporting under
clause 3({vi) of the said order is not applicable to the Company.

vil. a) According to the records of the Company and as per the information and explanations given 1o us, it s
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues like Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess, Goods and services tax and Qther
Statutory Dues with the appropriate autherities and there is no statutory due outstanding as at 31st
March, 2023 for a period of more than six manths from the date they became payable.
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b) On the basis of information and explanations given to us, the dues of income tax or sales tax or service
tax or duty of custom or duty of excise or goods and services tax that have not been deposited on
account of any dispute have been mentioned below:

Name of the Statute | Nature of | Amount |  Period Forum where dispute is |
Dues (" 00) ' pending

Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax 15,849.20 AY 2013-14 C.LT Appeal

Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax | 33,74418 | AY2017-18 | C.L.T Appeal

viii. As per the information and explanation provided to us there were no transactions that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during thie year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961(43 of 1961). Hence comment on Paragraph 3|viii) of the said order is not applicable.

ix. (a) As per the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records of
the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loan or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender. Hence comment on Paragraph 3(ix) (a) of the said order is
nat applicable.

{blAs per the information and explanations given to us the company has not been declared wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender. Refer Note 52 of Ind AS Financial

Statements.

(c) As per the information and explanations given to us the company has not taken any term loan during
the year, hence, reporting under clause 3(ix){c) of the sald order is not applicable.

(d} On an overall examination of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company, funds raised on short-
term basis have not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

{e) On an overall examination of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures.

() As per the information and explanations given to us the company has not raised any loans during the
year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures ar associate companies, hence
reporting under clause 3({ix)([} of the said order is not applicable.

x. (a)} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any money by
way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Hence
comment on Paragraph 3(x){a) of the said order Is not applicable,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
recards of the Company, the company has not made any preferential alletment or lacement

comment on Paragraph 3(x)(b) of the said order is not applicable.
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(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or any fraud on
the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub section (12) of section
143 of the Companies Acl, 2013 has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 aof
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year.

(c] As per Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013, there is no whistle blower complaints received by
the company during the year, therefore comment on this clause of the said order Is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the informatlon and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3{xii)(a to ¢) of the said order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the
Act where applicable and such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required
by the applicable Indlan Accounting Standards,

(@) In our opinion the Company has an adeguate inlernal audit system commoensurale with the size and
nature of the business,

{b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the period under audit.

According to the information and cxplanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transaction with directors or persons connected to its directors and hence provisions of Section 192
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Comipany.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934, has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities and is not a Core
Investment Company as defined in the repulations made by the Reserve bank of India. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(xvi)(a), (B), (c) and (d) of the said order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses during the immediately preceding financial year.
However, the company has incurred the cash loss in the current financial year amounting to
F16,26,590.11{in hundreds)

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. Hence,
comment an paragraph 3(xvii) of the said order is not applicable,

On the basis of financial ratios, apeing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payments of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Ind As Financial Statements and
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any materiality uncertainty exists as on the date of audit report indicating that company s not
capable of mecting its liabilities existing as on the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assura !- _-_;_,_,__H\\
liabilities falling due within a pericd of one year from the balance sheet date, will get dﬁ i

Company as and when they fall due.
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¥x. [a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing
projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Companles Act in compliance
with second proviso to sub section (5) of Section 135 of the sald act. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xx){a) of the said order is not applicable.

{b) There is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility {C5R) on ongoing projects. So,
compliance with sub section [6) of Section 135 Is not applicable. Accordingly, reparting under
clause 3(xx)(b) of the said order is not applicable.

For Salarpuria & Partners
Chartered Accountants
Firm ICAl Reg. No.302113E
UDIN: 2306933 HUMM 9296

v

Sarvesh Kumar Singh
Partner
Membership No: 069367

Ploce: Kolkata
Date: 729-05-1003
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ANNEXURE "B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 [“the Act”)

{Referred to Paragraph 2 (f) of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements of our Report of even
date)

We have audited the internal financial controls over Tinancial reporting of Kanak Projects Limited (“the
Company") as of 21st March, 2023, In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements ot the
Company far the year ended an that date.

Maonagement's Responsibility for Internal Financiol Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over Tinancial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intermal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial contrals that were aperating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adhercnce to company's
policies, the safepuarding of its assets, the provention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation ol reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements based on cur audit. We conducted our audit in accordance wirth
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contrals over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAlI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable te an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financlal contrels over financial
reporting was estahlished and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audil evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their
operating effectiveness, Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting Included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtalned is sufficient and appropriate to pravi
audlt opinion on the Company’s Internal financlal controls system over financlal report
these financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financlal reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A company’s internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

{1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

{2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and

{3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may otcur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial contrals ever financial reporting with reference to these financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial contrel over financial reperting with reference to these
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate Internal financial controls system over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at 31st
March, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Cantrols Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Salarpuria & Partners
Chartered Accountants

Firm ICAl Reg. No.302113E
UDIN: 2306937 BlUYMWALAE

Sarvesh Kumar Singh
Partner
Membership No: 069367

Place: Kolkota
Date: 29-05-2D129




KANAK PROMECTS LIMITED
CIN : LETOZO0WRB19T9PLCO3186T
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31s1 March, 2023 {Amcisnt in Hundreds)
Ly .:m__: = = m = - _;ﬁ_ =
(1] [Mon-carrent assets
[} Prapetty, Pant and Eguipment | 5025 40 1229090
[b) Imvestment Praperty 1 1297, 845 1,301,826 69
(e} Finarcial masts -
I, e stments 5 6,680.927.52 57513061
. Leans [0 : L1 rG.0n
i, Cthes Temancial assrts 7 34,656,456 73193091
|d) Deterred Tas Assets (Net) L] 21529293
{d) Cther non-turrent s55ets B 106,727.35 B8, 507 72
Totd nan-current assets d,341,484.93 5,723,465.84
(2] |Current psats
(o) venineist 5 340,694 36
ib]  FEnancial asets .
i, Trade Aecateallas 0 36, 656,95 319570 .44
li Canty and Cavh Equreabents 11 34,912 £5 §7,709.93
il Bank Bemnie: ather than Cash & Cah Eguivaients 12 BB ATLES 1055 J8E T
i, Leany b L16611E15 05 107 0a
¥, Dther financial assets 7 19713718 154 835 78
i) Current Taw Astet {net) 11 19552538 VoA 1AL
(d} Cthercumren assets 14 15304637 8045 05
Total urrant assets LEEI.H,!H:I? 2,06%9,633.91
Total assets [L+2) wﬂm 12,093,099.75
- & e L ~ ':ﬁ_ Te——a—|r -ﬁ,ﬂ— 1
T PARTCULARS otas 315t Marcn, 2023 | 315t March, 2002
rtll JEQUTTY
la} Fepsity share caplts 15 443, 7020 Ad% 24000
|b) Cbesr squity & 9.571 38007 10,819,985 41
Total equity 10,018 62007 11,265,205 21
(B
(1) |[MNon-gurrent Dabilthes
Hal  Finascis Liabkdlites
I, Borrowing ir =486 23 171141
i, Ot flnancid liabdties (1] 173,07736 192.895.98
[b] Daferred Tan Liabitios (Mel) 19 . IR E0LT
(e} Othes Mo Current lanitiss 0 1B6,450. 74 105208 54
l Total nan-ouerin flabliities 467,063.32 302,561,180
(2} |Current Habilities
Mol  Finaecad Libdties
I Barrowings F i | 73r18 EETO S
Il Trade Payable -
[A) total outstanding dwes of micro enteprses snd small enterpies; snd 9080 43
| B} eoveal purstamding dues of crediton othe. thas ffitro Bfilsiprises and 7 1480152 45 355 51
sl enlerprised
. Other fimanoadl |latiiities 23 493200 11,740:61
(b)  Currahit Taw Lintility {net] 13
€] Other current abilities 1 #1,894.62 FHA0E13
(6]  Prowidan . 1 A EAS S0 AT LDHGA4
Total current iahilities 11860090 AH5.331.17
Tuotal Mabilities (1-2) 5585,754.23 H27 400 35
Tolal eeslty and labilities (A=0) Il:l-iiui!ﬂ.ﬂ 12,097,050.75
Significant Accounting Pollties and Other Notes
Thi sccompanying Notes ste integral pert of the Flnaial Statement For and on behall of the Board of Directors
s per our separate report of even date attached,
Far SALARFURIA & PARTNERS
Charered Accountanty 7
Firm Hug, Ko 3021138 M Sk Mgﬁﬂéﬁ
Sudhli Prakash Arshurnan Prakash
{Wianaging Directer] (Divector]
AN D04 3020 DM -D0& IS
g nrs
C“-, = W-’“‘u‘
Sarvesh Kumar Sagh M ,
Farines éﬂdé m ';;: T
Mermzership No - 069367 Lalita Kants Samal Ginnl Lohariwala
(Chimi Flovanveial Oifier] [Carmpany Secrirtany)
Plare ; Kolcita PAN-ATRSIESM PAN-AIYPLSABEC
oee ¢ 19-05-2013




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
CIN : LE7020WB1979PLCO3 1867

Statement of Standalone Profit & Loss Tor the year ended 315t March, 2023

- At Meeds
raTcuUS ot | 3158 Mot 3023 | 3152 Warch. 022
; : e Wl Sl -Im- s m,\_ =
I |Revenue
Revenue from Dperations 6 LOFR2 144,53 1654 914,73
Oihar Income Ir 37318166 719,481 .07
|Tetal incomae (1} 1,465,326,15 2,374,395.80
. Epenses
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade ¥ THO.095.50
[Chamges in Inventories of Finshed Goods and Siock-n-Trade 5 340,554 35 105,459 48
Employes Senefit Eapernse 0 L0065, 22 194 554,43
Fiinanca Costs n 31445 55 19,153.73
Deptec|ation and Amortisaton Expenie 31 1403714 75.535.35
Cithied Expebnses 13 Si0,413.91 B266EL.47
Total Expenses (1) 1,116,657.19 1,800, 748,95
1L {Profin/|ioss) before esceptional iRems sod Lax [111) 348,669.01 573,185 14
. |Exceptional [lams (2,087, 074.49) -
V. [Profi/{ioss] before tan (1I11-0v) (1,688, 655.48)| 573,145.84
VL jincome tsx expanse
« Cufrent tax 139,457 50
=« Deferred tax {285, 758.15] (28,722.71)
Inegmee Tax For Earlier ¥ee 1197176 {17, 74058}
Tobsl Lox expene (Vi) (273,824.4%) 93,001.81
VIL {Profit for the year (V- V) {1,414,529.06) 480,113.04
VL [Other Comprehenive Income
A1) trems that will not be reclissified 1o Profin or Less
Changes in Fabr Value of AWOO Eguity instruments H05,056.02 66,580 10
f . ;
Hzm:l}::mli of post-employment dofined beneht (1,20 30 {3,120.1
ALl scoma Tax relating to Rems that will not be reclasaified 1o (38 537.36) {4, B8E.018)
Profit or Loss .
{B(1) tems that will be reclassifies to Profit or Loss
Changes in Fair Value of FYO0) Del insramems TAs1.20
B[] income Tax relating 1o items that will be reclasilied 1o M3 [623.36)
Frofit or Lows -
. i i
Vel ol S e oo oo i psmsel _ susse
VUL £ armings per oguity share
Bas & Dhuted 3E (3t '-"B!I 78

Slgnificant Accounting Policles And Dther Notes
The accompanying Notes are integral part of the Asancial Statement
Az per our separate report of cwen date attached.
For SALARPLURIA & PARTNERS
Chartered Accountants
Fitm Reg. No 3021136

bate : 1L9-05-20721 PAN-AKTPS1351M

Far and an behalt of the Board of Directors




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Statement of Standalone Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Amount in Hundreds

it il ;ﬁm ;‘:‘;‘"md"-’d
bl Tey i : / t March,
PARTICULARS 023 | 2022
_ Fitths it o
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax [1,6E8,655.48) 573,146.84
Adpstments for . -
Deprecation and Amortisation Expenses T, 037.14 75,335.35
Cradend on Investiments (1,889.50) [4.144.60)
Expected Credit Loss on Financial Assets 117,177.60 -
Fravision for Doubtful Debt 6, 734.15 =
{Profit}/Loss on Sale of Investments {195,354.56) (1595,676.21)
Finance costs 1,207.57 347499
et Gain on Financial instruments measured at Fair Value through Prafit and Loss 55,767.85 (218,345 62)
Interest Incomie (8,833 83) (151,108.70)
Income from Operating Activities before changes in Operating Assets and Taxes (1,711, B09.06) A2,686.99
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventonies 340,624 36 105,469.48
{Inerease)/Decrease in Trade Recelvables 286,785 33 (10,623.38)
(Increase)/Docrease in Loans Curront 193,682.26 (B0.282.71)
(Intrease)/Decrease in Other Fnanaal Assets- Current (42 301.42) 231.542.95
[Inerease)/Decrease in Correnl Asuels [145,001.32) 39,283.70
|ncreasef{Decreate] in Trade Payables (43,634.52) 16,005.69
|ncreasef(Decrease] in Other Financial Lizbilitizs-Current 1223330 (9.938.31)
Imcrease/(Decrease] in Other Current Liabilities {350,607, 74) A0L, /5156
Cash generated from operations {1,460,528.81) 6A2,195.97
Income Laxes paid {1003 296 52 [254,/00.90)
Met cash inflow from operating activitics - {1,563,625.33) 397, 495,00
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchasc of Property, Plant and Equipment (3,779.75) (12,681.72)
Purchase of lnvestment Property [37.£410.4H]) {338,355.00)
Payments for (Purchase)/Sale of Invesrments [Mat} {588,250.76) {1,329,703.34)
Interest Received 75,306.23 191,103.76
[Rvidend Raceived 1,B8%.50 £.142.80
Foued Depasits(net) 1,370,138.5] 618,730.08
Advance [Given)/Retund 537,860.37 [454,500.00)
Met cash outflow from investing activities 1,355,754.62 {1,319,261.62)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest pafd (1, 207.57) (3,474.99)
Loan/ Advance Taken [5,679.95) {6,679 95)
Loan/ Advance Paid {3.019.97) [38,650.02)
(Repayment)/ Acceprance of Security Deposit (Mel) 188,000.91 4,158.99
Net cash inflow {outflow) from financing activities 175,093.42 (23,944.97)
Met increase [decrease] in cash and mFuquiualents [32,777.28) [965,711.52)
Cash and cash equivaients at the beginning of the financial year b7, 70993 1,033,421 44
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 34,932.65 67,709.93




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Statement of Standalone Cash Flow Tor the vear ended 3181 March, 2023

Amount in Hundreds

i e gl 1 St | Shm

PARTICULARS il : 31st Mar March,

EE i foic) 15 2023 2022
! ] if 1w m
Balances with banks

=W STem Accouty 777213 42,712.36
Cheques on hand 24,881.45 22,723.57
Cash on hand 2,279.07 2.274.00
Baltances as per statement of cash flows 34,932,685 £7.709.93

Mote ;

(1} The sbove Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method™ as prescribed under Indian Accounting
Standard 7 (Ind AS 7} natified In Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,
() Previous year's figures have beon regrouped/ recastod whorever apcessary

As per our separate report ol even date attached hersto.

For SALARPURIA & PARTNERS
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.302113E

AL
R

Sarvesh Kumar Singh
Parthir
MMembership No @ 069367

Place : Kolkata
Date : 29-05-2D003

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

e 1A~

Sudhir Prakash
{Marapging Director}
DiN-00434020

Lalita Kanta Samal
{Chief Financial Officer)
PAN-AKTPS1391M

Poasloris ks

Anshuman Prakash
| Director)
DiN-004240908

Ginni Lohariwala
(Company Secretary)
PAN-AJYPLS4EEC
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KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement as ot and for the year ended March 31, 2023

CORPORATE INFORMATION
KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED bearing CIN - L70Z0WB1979PLCOILBET s a Public Limited Company, listed In Caleutta Stock
Exchange, incorporated in Indla on February 5,1979 with the name Sreela Chem Industrial Investmeant Limited. Further on 2 15t
November 1988, the company amalzamated with Xanak Investments Limited, Semni Valley Investrnents Private Limited and
kytharam investments Private Umited and changed s nome to Kanak Prodects Limited as per the High Cowrt Order. The
registered office of the Company is situated at 41, Chowringhees Road, Kanak Building, Kolkara 700071,

The Company is primarily engaged In the business of renting of Immaovable praperties, ts allled business activity also Indludes
Investing. acquiring, holding or otherwlse dealing in shares, stocks and ather securities,

The financial statement for the year ended 315t March, 2023 was apgroved for lzsue by the Beard of Directors of the company
on 29 th May, 2023 and subject te adoption by the sharsholders [ tha ensuling Anmusl General Mesting.

NOTE 1= SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1 Significant Accounting Policles

al

€]

d}

a)

Statement of Complionce with Ind AS

In accordance with the notification dated 16th February, 2015, lssued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has
adopred indian Accounting Standards (referred 10 as “Ind A5") notified under the Companies [Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended) with sffect from 1st April, 2016. Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Ind AS prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2003 (“Act") read with Aule 3 of the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 ax amended fram time to time.

All the Ind AS issued and notified by the Ministry of Corparate Affairs under the Companies {indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (a3 amended) til the finandial statamants are approved for lssue by the Board of Directors has been considersd
in preparing these financial statements.

Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements comply In ali material aspects with indian Accounting Standards [Ind AS| notified under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act] Companles (Indian Accounting Standards) Aules, 2015] znd other relevant provisions
of the Act.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and
aszumptions that sffect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of 2<sets and liabilities, the
disclasure of contingent assets and ||abilities ot the date of the fnancial staterments, and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions
ara reviewed on an ongoing basis. Reveions to accounting éstimates are recognised In the period in which the ectimate iz
revised if the revision affects only thal period; they are recognized in the pedod of the revision snd future perods if the
ravision 2ffects both current and future periods.

Historicol Cost Convention

The financial statements have been prepared on the hstoncal cost basls except for certaln (tems which are measured at fair
value at the end of each reparting period, as explained balow:

(i} certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value;
(i) defined benefit plans— plan assets measured at fair value;

Operating Cyoie

All assets and liabilities have been classilied as current or non - current @5 per the Company’s normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out In the Schadule 1 to the Companies Act, 2003, Based an the nature of products and the time between
the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has aseertained their
operating cycle as twalve months for the purpose of currant — non-currant classification of assets and abilities.

Functional and Presentation Currency

Itemsz included in the finandal ststementz of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic
enviroment in which the Company operates (“functional currency™) The financial statements are presented in Indian
Rupees|fs. ), which is the functional currency of the Company.




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Noles to the Standalone Financial Statement as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

2 Revanue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probabie that the econamic benefits will low to the company and the revenie
cin ber reliably mensured
Effective April 1 ,2018,the Company had applied Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers which establizhes a
comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognised The Company has
adopted Ind AS 115 using cumulative effect mathod. The Impact of adoption of this Standard on the financial statements of
the Company is insignificant

2} Rental Income
Leass rentals are accounted for on accrual basis,

b} Interest Income
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking inta account the amount outstanding and the applicable
interest rate,
interest income s Included under the head “Other Income” in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

¢} Dividend Income
Dividend Income (s recognised when the Company’s right to recelve the dividend |s established |.e. in case of interim
dividend, an the date of declaration by the Board of Directors; whereas in case of final dividend, on the date of approval
by the sharcholders

d) Al ather iIncoma are sccounted for on accrual basis:

3 Expenses
All expenses are accountad for on accrial basls.

4 Property, plant and equipment
Freehold land s carcled at historical cost, All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment |osses, Fany.
Histariczl cost of an asset includes the purchase cost of asset, Including import dutles and non-refundable taxes, and any
directly attributalde costs of bringing an asset to the location and condition of its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included [n the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only whien itis
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the Item can be
measure reliably. The carrying amaunt of dny component accounted for a3 8 separate asset iy derecognized when replaced. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurraed.

fa) Depreciotion methods, estimated useful lives and residual valie
Freehold Land s not depreciated, Dopreciation (s calculated using the written down methed to allocate their cost. net of
their residual values, over their estimated useful lives.
The useful life is taken as per prescribed useful life in Part € of Schedute || to the Companies Act, 2013, The asset's residual
values (5%) and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reparting period.
An asset’s carmying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amounl.
Galns and losses on disposals ano determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit ar
Ioss within other gains/{losses).

5 Investment Property
Investiment properties include those portions af land and bulldings appurtenant thereto that are held for long-term rental vields
and/or for capital appreciation and properties under operating leases, that is held for leng-term capital appreciation of for a
currently indeterminate use but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods ar
dervices of for administrative purposes.

Investment properties like land are initially recognised at cost and investment property like building s recorded at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impainment losses, if any. These are also subject o renovations or improvements at
regular intorvals. The cost of major renovatlons and Improvements i capltalised and the carrying amounts of the replaced
components are recognised in profit or loss. The cost of mantenance, repains and minor improvements is recognised in profit or
lerss when Incurred.

On disposal of an investrment property, the difference between the disposal procoeds and the carryng amount is recognised in
profit or lass,

g, ,

p LA




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statemont as at and fTor the year ended March 31, 2023

Depreciation methods, estimoted wseful fives and residual value:
Freehold Land is not depreciated. Depreciation is calculated using the written down method to allocate their cost, net of their
redldial values, over their estimated wseful lves

The useful life [s vaken as per prescribed useful life in Part C of Schedule | to the Companies Act, 2013 The asset’'s residual
values {5%) and useful lives sre reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, st the end of each reporting period.

6 Inventorias
Securities held as stock-in-trade
) Securities acquired with the intention of shore-term holding and trading positions are considered as Inventories and shown
as current assets,
b} In respect of securities held a inventories, brokerage and stamp duty are written aff as revenue expenditure,

€} The securities held as Inventories under current assets are valued at Faw Value using Ind AS 105 - 'Financial Instruments”,

Building held as stock-in-trade

a) Building scquired with the intention of short-term holding | trading posilions and to earn rentaf income is considered as
Inventories and shown as current assets.

b} The building held as inventories under current assets is valued al Cost.

T Borrowing Costs
General and specific borrowings costs that sre directly allribolzbls (o the acquisition, construction or production of a gualifying
asyet are capitalized during the period of time that s required bo complete snd prepare the mset for its intended use or sale.
(ruahilfying assets are assets that necessarily take substantial period of time to get ready for intended use or sale,

Invesstnent incote earned on the temporary investment of specific bosrowings pending thair sxpundibure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.
Oiher boreowing costs are expensed in the perlod In which they are nourred.

B Loases
Fffective from 1 .April 2019, the Company has applicd Ind AS 116, which replaced the exlsting leess standard, Ind AS 17 |eases
and-other mterpretalions.
The Company at the [nception of @ contrect, sssmes whathar & contract, is or containg a lease, Turther such lease is classifed
as gither Financial Lease or Operating Lease:
Fimnancial Lease - Asreements are classificd as Financial Leases, if substantizily sl thee risks 2nd rewards incidental to ownership
of the leased asset is transferred to the Lesses

Dperating Lease - Agreements which are not classified as finance lcases are considered as operating l=ase.

a) Whaen the Company is a lessor
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially 2l the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are dassified
35 operating leases. Payments received under aperating leases are recognlzed as income In the Statement of Prafit and Loss
o A Systematic basis over the leaze term,

b} When the Company is a Lessee
Ind AS 116 introduces @ single, on-balinoe shest lease acoounting model for lessees where 3 lesses recognises a right-of-use
("ROU") asset representing [t right o use the underlying asset and 3 lease kabilily representing its obhgation to make leass
payments. The nature of expenses related to those |eases will change a5 Ind AS 116 replaces the Operating lease cxpens
[i.e8,, rent) with depreciation charge for ROU assets and interest expense on lease liahilities.




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Noles to the Standalone Financlal Statement as al and for the year ended March 31, 2023

9 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Azsets

a)

b)

&l

d)

A provision [s recognized if, a9 & result of & past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can
be estimated refiably, and it & probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required 1o settla the obligation.
Privaisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

If the affect of the time value of money is material, provisions are dotermined by discounting the expected future cash flows
at current pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessmants of the time value of money and the risks: specific to the
labsifity.

When discounting s used, the increase in the passage of time Is recognized as finance coyls

The amount recognized as & provision is the best estimate of the consideration required ta settle the present obligation as
at the balance sheet date, taking Inte accaunt the risks and unceraintias surrounding the cbligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required Lo setthe 4 pravision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
the receivable is recognized as an asset, If it is virlually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reflably. The expense relating Lo provision s presentad in the Statement of Profit and Lass, net
of any reimbursement.

A contingent liability is not recognised in the fimancial statements, howsvir, 1s disclosed, unless the possibility of an outfiow
of resources embodying economic bonefits is remato.

I it becormes probable that an outfiow of future economic benefits will bee roguared for gn ilem deall with &8 a2 contingent
lighility, & prowision is recognized in the financial statements-of the periad (except in the extremely fare Circumsiances
where no reliable estimate can be made),

A conlingen! asset s not recognised in the financial statements, however, s disciosed. where an inflow of econcmic
benefits iv probable,

When the realisation of income |5 virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, and s recognised
A% AN ANEEL

Provdisions, continpent liabilities and continpent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

10 Impairment of Assels

aj

b)

Non-financial assets

Property, piant and equipment, Investment property and intangibic assets arc evaluated for rocoverability whenover cvenis
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carmying amounts may not be recoverable,

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount b the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

For the purpote of assessing impairment. assets ore grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identitiable
cash flows [cash-generating units).

I Essiessing vatue inuse, the etimated futune cash Tows are discoented (o thile pressnt valus wing & pre-tax diseount rmEte
that reflects current rnarkul assessmenls of thae tmae value of momey and te ida specflic lo the assel.

If at the balance sheet date there (s an indication that a previously ossessed imipairment loss no longer oxists, the
recoverable amount i5 reassessed and the impairment loss previowsly recopnized is reversed such that the asset is
recognized at its recoverable amount but not exceeding written down wliee which would have been reported If the
impairment loss had not been recegnized.

Financial assets
The Company recognices loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) mode! for the tinancial assets which are not
fair valued through profit or loss.

ECL impalrment loss allowance is measured at an amount egual to lifetme ECL

ECL impairment loss allowance (of reversal) recagnized during the period |s recognized as income or expense [n the
Statement of Profit and Loss. This amount is reflacted under the head “Other expenses” in Lthe profit or loss. ECL s
prasented 35 2n allowance, e, a5 an Integral part of the messurement of those assets in the Balanee sheet. The allowasnce
reduces the net carmying amount,

Until the asset meets write-off criterla, the Company does not reduce impaisment allowance from the gross carrying
amount,
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11 Toxes
Income tax expense CoMprises current tax and deterred tax and s recognized o the Statement of Profit and Loss excepl to the
extent it relates 1o ltems directly recognized in Eguity or in OCL

b)

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and babilities for the current and prior pericds are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or pald to the taxation authorities using Uhe tax rates and tax laws that are enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date and applicable for the period.

Current tax ilems in correlation to the underlying transaction relating 1o OC! and Equity are recognized in OCT and in Equity
reapectively,

Management periodically evaluates pasitions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicabile |ax
regulations are subject to intoapretation and esiablishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expecied to
be pald to the tax suthodities

The Company offsets current tax assets and currenl tad liabilities, where [t has a legally enfarceable right to set off the
racognized smounts and where it intends either o settle on 2 net bagis ar @ realise the assets and settie the labilities
simultaneouishy.

The amendment in ind 45 12 regarding the income Tax uncartainty ower Income Tax treatments clarifies the recognition and
measurement requirements when there |5 unceriainmy over inCome tax reatmenis [n assessing Lhe uncertainty, an entity
shall consider whether it |5 probable that a taxation autherity will accept the uncerbain Lax treatment.This notification s
ffective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1,°2019. As per the Company's assessment, There are no
material income tax uncertainties over income x treatments,

Deferred income tax

Neterred income tax is recognized wsing the balonce sheetl approdch. Deferced income tax assnts and labilitles are
recognized for deductibie and taxable temporary differenoes arising between the b base of susets and labilities and their
carrying amount i financial stateme s, axcept whon the doeferred income ax srises lrom the inllisf recognition of goodwill
ar an asset or liahility in a transaction that &s Aot @ business combingtion and alocls neither accounling moe Laxsbile grafity
or foss 3t the time of the transaction.

Deferred tax Assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, e carry forward of unused tax credits and any
urnmet! tan losses to the extent that it is probsbie that taxable profit will be available against which the doductible
temporany differences, and the carry farward of unused Lax credils smd unused lax losses can be utiised

The carryimg amesnt of deferred tax assmls iy reviewed at each haltance sheet date acd reduced to the sxtent that it is ne
longer probabda that sufficient taxzble prafit will be avaiabde (o allow 2l or part al the deferred tax assels bo be ufilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets dare re-assessed at eoch balance sheet date and are secogniscd 1o the axtent that it has
become probable that future taxsble profits will afow the deferred tax asset to be rocovercd.

Deferred tax assets and Habilities are measured at the toe rated that are expected to apoly in Lhe year when the assel is
resiised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax [aws) that have bean enacted o substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assels inciude Minlmam Albermale Tax (MAT] paid in sccordance with the e ews o the exlent it is lkely 1o
glve future cconomic benafits in the form of svafability 1o sot off against futdre incoma tax Fability. Accordingly, WAT i
recognised as deferred tax asser in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and [t i= probable thar the
future econamic benefit associated with the asset will be real|sed.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilites are offset T a legally enforceable right exists to set off deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabdities and the gefamed taxes relate 1o the same taxable entity and the same taxation suthority.

12 Earmings per Share

aj

bl

el

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit/[ioss) after @y by the weighted averape number of equity
shares outatanding during the year,

Diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profiv/(loss) after 1ax by the welghted average number of eguity
shares consldered for derlving bask earnings per share and also the welghted average nember af equity shares which could
be issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares, Dilutive polential equity shares are determined as at the
end of each perind presented. Dilutive polential equity shares are determined independantiy for each period presented.

The number of equity shares and potential dilutive equity shores are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for
any shars split and bonus shares ssues induding for changes effected prior to the approval of the financial 5 by
the Board of Direclors.
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13 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance sheet comprise cash on hand, cheques an hand, balance with banks on current
aceounts and short term, highly lguid Investments with an original maturity of three months or less and which carry
Insignificant risk of changes in value.
Fer the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, Cash and cash equivalents consist of Cash and cash equivalents, as defined above
and net of outstanding book overdralts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

14 Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows are reporied using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a
non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or paymaents and item of income or expenses
associated with Investing or financing flows. The cath flows from operafing, investing and financing activities of the Company
are segregated,

15 Employee Benefits
a) Short-term employes benefits
Short-term employee benefits in respect of salaries and wapes, including non-monetary benefits are recognised as an
expense at the undiscounted amount In the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year in which the related service s
randered.

b) Defined contribution plans
The Company makes contributions to defined benefit schemes which are mainly administesed through duly constitute
Provident Fund contributions are in the nature of defined contribution scheme. Providens funds are deposited with the
Government and recognized as eipernse.
Past retirement defined benefits Le gratulty Is funded with UCI and are determined through independent acturial valuation,

The service costs and net intérest expense of income |5 reflected in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Gain or Loss an
aceount of remeasurerments are recognised immediately through other camprehensive income in the period in which they
oCour

16 Financial Instruments

Flnancial assets and financial liabilites are recognised in the Balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the Instrument. The Company determines the classification of its financial assets and financial

[labilities at initial recognition based on its nature and characteristics.

{A) Financial Assets

(i} mnitial Recognition & Measurement
All the financial assets are recognised at Fair Value on [nitial recopnition, except for trade receivables which are initially
measured at transaction price. Transaction costs thal are directly attributabde to the squisition or issue of financial assets,
that are not measured at falr value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

The finandal assets include equity and debt securities, trade and other recelvables, loans and advances, cash and bank
balances and other financial instruments.

(i) Subsequent measurement
Far the purpose of subsequent measuremant, financial assets are classified in the following categorics:
1} At amortised cost,
2] At fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOC), and
3] At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

{a) Investment in Preference Shares at omortised cost
A 'debt instrument’ [s measured at the amortised eost |f bath the follawing conditions are met:
1] The asset s hald within 2 business model whose objective i to hold the atset far collecting contractual cash flaws, and

2] Contractual terms of the ssset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
After initlal measurement, such financial assers are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective interest
rate (EIR) method . Amortised cost |3 caloutated by taking into account any discount or premium on acgu
or costs that are an integral part of the Effective Interest Rate (EIR] Methad.
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{b) tnvestment in Debentures of amartised cost

1]

2]

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured a1 the amertised cost if both the lellowing conditions are met:
The assat s held within & business model whose objective 5 1o hald the asset for collecting contractual cash flows, and

Contractual termns of the asset give rise an specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest an the grincipal amount outstanding,

After initlal measurement, such financial assets are subseguently measured at amartised cost using the Effective interest
rate (EIR) method . Amortised cost is calculated by aking into account any discount or premium on acguisition and fees
or cosis that are an Integral part of the Effective Interest Rate (EIR} Method,

fe) inwestment in Mutuel Funds of Falr Value through Profit or Loss [FVTPL)

The Investments held in the liquid funds whether being debt or equity instruments, generate cash flows that represent
payments of principal and interast. However, the holder of the liquid fund at it's discretion has the option sell its
Investments in order to optimise returns, Therefore, the cash flows paid by the fund 1o the unit holder comprise
gains/flosses on the instruments hield by the fund, In addition to interest and principal cash flows from those instruments.

The business model objective i achieved by both collocting contractual cash flows and salling it's financial assets.
Therefore the liguld funds are classified s Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPLL

{d) investment in Equity investments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income [FVTOC)

All equity investments in the scope of Ind AS 109 are measured ot falr value except in case of [nvestment in associptes
which are carried at cost. The Company makes such alection on an mstrument by instrument basis.

All queted equity instruments ae measured at fair value which i determined based on Level-1 inputs that is quoted
prices {unadjusted) in active markets and last traded prices.

All unguoted equilty instruments are measured a1t falr value by taking into account the financal statements of such
instriments to the extent available to the Company.

if the Company decides to classify an egquity Instrument at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
exncluding dividends, are recognized bn OCL.The Company transfers amounts from this reserve to retalned earmings when
the relevant equity securities are derecognised.

However, the Company may transfer the cumulative galnor loss within 2gquity.

(iil} De- Recognition
The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it
transters the financlal asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset,

(B) Financial Liabilities

i

Initial Recognition & Measurement

A financial llabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of financial Rabiities classified at amortised
comt, net of directly attributable transaction costs,

The financial liabilities include security deposits trade and other payables, lcans and borrowings Including bank
overdrafts, ether financial mstruments, etc

Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, Financial lisbilities are classified through amortised cost.

Finonciol Linbilities at amortised cost

The security deposits are held for collecting the contractual cash flows (Le. original amount of deposit), which 5 the
principal amount outstanding (the interest being nil), it meets the criteria for measuremant at amortised cost using the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method.

The difference between the fair value of the depasits and the transaction price on Initial recognition of the deposit is
accountad for separately as "Pre-received income® shown under the head 'Other Financial Liabilities”. The accounting
treatment for these will depend upon the nature of the eléement included (n the deposits. Had the entity not placed the
deposits with the lessor, the monthly rentals would have been higher, This indicates that the nature of the interest-frea
element in these deposits represents a pre-received income. Hence, this difference will be recognised as Pre-received
Incaomae’, which will be amortised to the statemaent of profit and [oss over the lile of the deposit on a straight line basls.

(E18) methpd. The entity should, over the perlod of the ease/coniract, recognise and accrie |4
deposits as finance cost caiculated at the market rate of interest for such deposits.
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(C) Offsetting of Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial |labifities including derivative instruments are offsst snd the net amount & reported in the
Balance sheet, If there is currently anforceable legol right to offset the recognised amounts and there |s an intention to
sotthe on a net basis or to redlise the assets and settle the liagilites smultaneausly,

(D) Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, Under ind AS, fair valuation of financial
Instruments ks gulded by Ind AS 113 "Fair Value Measurement” .

For same assets and liabllitles, observable market transactions or market information might be available. For other assels
and liabilities, observable market transactions and market information might not be available. However, the abjective of 3
fair value measurement in both gases |s the same to estimate the price at which an orderdy transaction te sell the asset or to
travefer the labllity would take place between market participants at the measurement date upder current market
conditions|ie. an exit price at the measurement date from the perspactive of a market participant that holds the asset ar
owes the Hakdliey),

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the falr valee of financial instruments by
valuation technigue:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) n active markets for Identical assets or Habilities.

Level 2! Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level L that are observable for the asset ar liahility,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3; Inpists for the assets or liabllities that are not based an ebservable market data (unobservable
imputs),

MOTE 2 : USE OF CRITICAL ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition would seldam
equal the actual results. Management also needs to exerclse judgment and make certaln assumptions In applying the
Company’s accounting pollcies and preparation of lnsnc|al statements

Estimates and assumptions
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which
have most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statement

il Estimation of Defined benefit obligations
The cost of the defined benefit gratulty plan and the present value of the gratuity cbligation are determined using
actuarial waluations. An actuarial valuation Involves making various assumptions that may differ from  actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future satary Increases and maortallty
rates. Due o the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-1erm nature, & defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive 1o changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each financial year end.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determiaing the appropriate discaunt rate for plans, the
actuary considers the interast mtes of povernment bonds, The martality rate is based on publicly avallable mortallty
tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at [nterval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases and gratulty increases are based on expectied fublire [nflation rates

M) Estimoted fair value of uniisted securities
The fair values of fimancial instruments that are not traded in an active market and cannot be measured based on quoted
prices in active marksts is determined based on the netwaorth of underlying companies.




|
bLBIS'SET . 181022y EEO9E'EEL | pO'6SE'LET - LL189°TT IE'LLT'SHE oy i
BELT9'T = BEEET 10 PEY'T L LT = . L5FELT | UL | dEe
E0'ZvL'0r . GFEEY'T F5IEE'61 FO'ELT'ST . - PEBLTSZ Leiasds Uondaqnag a4 i
TE'SIE'Y . LT E9G'T SULrs't LYOTE'L . [THTTHG THITE'S Iandwin]
VIE = = rE S8 - * £3 09 qUe| LM
T9LI6 L - £V EZE BL'SO9'T E6TLST - ODBSE'T EGELZE syuawdinhy Aloie] g 2340
SSEPD'L - LAl 15961 16'165'6 = . 16°165'G SAU (923
b2snz'el s LEe8r L6'6L6'TE 15 1I8'rE - - TEITh'rE ws o)
B5085'TT VESER'DE . ZTRSOE'E LS GISLE £y LY - 0E 91t ELE0ET Y Sauni g g aaniaan g
ERESS 99°PER - GELTT ££7904 BFEES'T . 1 BT EGS'T e diang|
85 91T'E SEELL'E - TEESET ESELTTY 16685 1T . 9LSIL'y SEYIN Ll uaqipUa) iy
T TEs'9g [T T = Y9 BOE'SE BORITZE PEBSOPIT B - PERSOTIT iy o0
BOSELIZ | BSERZ LT - SE'EEE'y EZ'DSE'L LTELL'PE - ooEEL'y LTTEY0E AuipE g gl
T es | - . . . et . I = res e
20T IE Jrad
yuewszse lan) | zzozte  [surdunnpsajes| aeakau TE0Z'TE 0T 1L makagiBupnp | realagFuunp | TZ0ZTE uoudinsag
jenowy Sudue) | yuepissy | fauswsnfpy | Suunp suopippy | uNenIesy | yaEmaesy | sapes seeunsnlpy SUOIPRY. | yeew e sy i
NOILVII38430 GILVININNDIY. INNDNY SNIAEEYD 55089
PESI0'ES S6EL9'BOT 2 TTShO'EE PLERESLT GEGES TOE = SEBLL'E YYESE LET o]
19805 96 LT - 307011 G LIA'T LG 9ET'L . - LSBT T ity yodlgead) jaep]
ErIee's TTESR'TE 3 FISTTT 0 IeloT PEBRLTST - - YIRLTST WA EAG UG BU1g
ELvEl’E TE T - GFTE6'L ZE'SIG'Y b6 0v0's . LPeEL't LFOTEL I R
VLS (T - - e SR ' - SE'00 [T
EF RN BCEET'Y - LETISTT 19I5 T ITIES'9 - BTES0'T EBTLSY suawdmb3 S0
BLE96'T ELHIYL - g1°585 55 E00'L 161656 . 161656 Huijhy [Pl
TLTET'E GO'DET'SL - i TIR'T PTEIE'E TBTIF'VE : 3 TETIH'VE #5 o
CrEsa'e B LO9'EE . SEEIZL'T +E'CRE'0E E0'5ab' 2y : * £094E' Y Naunx|d g N |
B1rEb TETOT'T . 50°59T 99 vEG 68651 . - EFE6ES 1 Uiy dwng
EFais’L BFEI0'RT . ET06S'T SEELR'ET T6'6385'1Z 5 % TE695 1L DI PUE JfY
CHELLBE E5viL'vL - OF LOE'LT [T vEESORTT . - TEBSOPLT 183 JoIoW
tHRPO'ET EEDL9'ST . tEIEE Y BSEET'TT LTETIL'YE . - (TETL'YE Asaufypepy 5 i)
Z0rs FI - - 'S i B L
ﬁ:ﬂﬂnuﬂl_ f202 e _._..-._.: JO T zor'te | seoe'te | eakaquunp  fieakonBuunp | rzoz'TE
v Buthue (UL iswsaunsnipy Tuunp WOMERY | yuRAESY | yue e sy | Ssges fousugsnipy | TROpRY | yaeopy e sy wondarsag
NOLWIIINDI0 QLLVINNNIDY ANNDRAY SNIABYYD SS0UD -
SEIpURNN Ui JLnoLIY purnioiy Buikai e jo uone)|suoray
jusiwdinba pue juzjd ‘lusdoud 'f 0N
ETOT "YRY IS LE popud JERA 2y JOj PUT B ST SI0MUELS [BOURU]Y MIOERUELS 1Y) 0) S0N
(ALIAN SLI3MdHd YWYNYH




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes fo the Standalone Financial Statomenis as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Note 4: Investment Property
Reconciliation of Carrying Amount

Armount in Hundreds

As at 31st As at 31st
g PM'I'EM H' : ™ 202 :
Ereehold Land -
Gross Carrying Amount of Property -
Opening Gross Values 150,525.00 450,525.00
Balance at the end of the Year 450,525.00 450,525.00
Accumulated Depreciation x =
Net Carrying Amaunt 450,525.00 450,525.00
Building
Gross Carrying Amount of Property
Cpening Gross Values 1,000,102, 70 6B3,747.70
Additions During the Yoar 37,410.48 336,355.00
Balance at the end of the Year 1,037,513.18 1,000,102.70
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Balance 145,201.01 115,067 .47
Depreciation duning the year 40591893 3313354
Closing Balance 190),1592.594 149,201.01
Met Carrying Amount B47.320.24 850,901.69
Total 1,297, 845.24 1,301,426.69
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Mot 5: Non-Current Investments

{Amount in Husdreds)

L et TS ] A3 it 315t March, 2023 - - As av st March, 2002
1) {investment in Eguity Instruments
(8] Quoted Shares (Measored at FUTDCI)
Aditys Birla Capital Lid 10 ) S60.67 10 an b
Aditya Birla Fashlon & Retall Lid, il 51 9oz 10 ] 2,77%.32
s DRarmond Sec.Lid. . 23 800 138,00 - 23,R00 238.00
Chennai Meenakshi Muftispeciallly Hospital 0 1,000 18550 10 1,000 23150
Dhglam Limmed 4] 1 (A3 10 &0 TE,00
oLy (td 1o 977,500 56, 108, 540 0 577,500 56, 10850
Dunlop Indis Led. 10 103 1.08 10 100 100
H Farge a0 0.50 - 50 050
GHlandars Aribunates Co Ltd. 10 24 14.E0 10 ] 1565
GMAED Limitad - 15 0.15 - 1% s
Grasim Industries Lid. 2 2065 #.376.64 2 b5 &.403 55
Grent Eastern Shipping Co. Ltd 10 25 161.14 1t 5 B&33
Gujrat Heawy Chemicals L, 10 ) 151775 10 SO0 173005
Halleyburia T £ Lid, 1.85 1,285 .10 7,105 125510
Haryuma Prirochomicais Lid. a 500 5.00 & 50K .00
Himatsinghz Seide Lid. 5 80O 55380 ] B 1.204.00
LE. Comant Ll ited 10 an 1,433 62 10 45 LivLaa
lalpae i Led. h 1] 300 3.00 io 00 3.00
Kokatiye Textiles Lrd 10 1,000 125,50 10 L.000 11150
ECP Ind 1 F L] R TS 1 150 189,63
KCP Sugr and Industries 1 250 58.88 1 150 Bibd
Edkotagini & Thinemala #lant 12 4 04 & 0.0
Mahindra G Developers Lid. 10 2 TR yx] 10 2 082
Munjushroe Plantatlons Led Bl G.0D G0 &0
Mciepd Russet India 5 1314 232 05 5 1314 282 57
Metion | eaCn, Lid, . a00 10400 . 4no 10400
War el Maakabssr & Proadueco Co, Lid 0 L2410 700 2.00
Nellsmgatlg Teg & Produce Co, Lid a0 1.110 108 166
Feyln Baramakil Tea & Produce Co, Lid. 10 318 YEE 5T ] 38 107564
LK, Commsinetcial Lisd 4 18] 1 A10 521550 10 108,310 541550
Sauirasbilro Chgrmzcal Lid, il 7.00 700 .00
Sunflag fron B Steel Co. xd: 10 55 111335 1 11] 155 a7e03
Unimen India Limited 0 75 a4.50 10 (- .50
United Milgiei Tea Tstates Co. Lid 10 450 1,774,66 10 450 152113
Uniworkh Ingla Lid. 10 E L] 1.50 10 50 5158
Wikish WSF Ltd. 1 1,000 10,00 1 1,000 _ 3350
Tatzl (A) 1 78,990.21 75,146.40
[B] Unquoted Shares
{1) v Associate (Measurod ot Cost) @
Lo b Tea Cg,Pyt, Lid 100 B.000 8,000.00 160 K0 5,000 00
[id) Im Others [Measured st FVTOCH) ©
Purbanchzl Concest Pyt Ltd 1+ 2,175,000 235, 116.42 10 2,175,000 354 908.57
Margatmayes Vypar it Lid 10 235 000 13,158,35 10 135,000 2318083
Ahlnsha Propertes Lid 10 18,670 B12,702.16 10 15670 535015 75
Amritn Media P | bd 10 120,000 7.858.67 10 130,000 BALRT TA
Metropoditan Slock Exchamge Lid 1 100,008 54333 1 100,000 59176
DataMet Foummorce Services Lid. 10 1,750,000 402,304, 36 10 1,750,000 158, 536.05
Tatal (B) 149381330 —— = = 1,268,701 10
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{Amaunt in Huadreds)
CE A B TR I L0 P ey Tt b SE =
PAKTICULARS BRI i -:,Q#““_leﬁ'e“ﬂ...-_-
= - e :~ "-i"'glﬁ.ﬁﬂﬁifl . - .-:l\l.
2] |Investment In Preference Instruments
LiMeasurad st Amartived Cost)
{A) In Associate:
0.1 Swmulutive Redeemabie Proference Shares of 100 B4,000 14,232 .47 100 B, 000 BO,000.44
Lagjan Tea Compatey Private LEnlted
(B} In Dehers: _ B
6% MNon Cumalative Non- Carwertible Redeamabilp 100 AGODO0 370.315.26 100 A0 S 366,137,320
Preference Shares of DLK Limited.
A% MNon Cumglalive None Corwertible Redeemable 100 FLIRTRA ] T84 IME. A7 100 i
Prefarence Shares of DLY Limitsd,
12% Optionzily Convertible Cumulatve Preference - & .60
Stvariy of Farm Erterprises Limited
5% Non Cumilatve Non- Convertible Redeemzble oo 150 Bo0 108, 706,13 100 156,000 108,043, 77
Prfevance Shares af DistaNel Cuommeroe Serviosy
Limited
5% Non Cumulative Hedesmiable Preferinoe 100 B5.000 61,2813.90 106 85,000 61,218,649
Sharat of Prala United Ventunss Privatis Limited
8% Mon Comulative Redsamabie Preference 10 #5010 25763100 100 250,000 250,000.00
Shares of lhillk Promoters & Fincom Frivaze
Lirmited
[ZuMeasured 51 FVTOCH .
(L0011 & Cumalative Crempuleerily Convertible 45 14 250,00 45 14.850.00
Prefetance Shatal of Marys Techaslog et ive L1,
Total (€] 1,147.695.73 BB, REB. NGO
3] |investment in Mutusl Funds [ Measured at IVTPL)
Kotak Halenced Advantage Fund-HegiG) 10 I 5 A0, 000140 | 10 2,064, 793,708,917
BOREA Pru #SL) ety | und iteg [15) {[#] 1262658 2034930, 15 o] -
BEECE Pl = Techaseiiongey PLnd (G e 1o 75,281 96,384.73
DR Flowter Fumt Rogia) ] - i0 1470833 153 064 21
ICHCY Pru Dividend Yiekd Eguity Fund(G) 10 61068 1B.850.40 e 63,068 17,540,018
I£4CE Prui Equity Savings Fund {G) il 3,798,165 AU TIE RS 0 ERLER T B9, 784,45
PCECH i*ru- Flosting imenest Fund (G) HH - Tim} MLRAL TO.065.42
I Priz- Uitra Shaort Tenm Fand Reg (G) in - L1 A&, 73 197,869,058
WEEEE P Steatemle besal B Ensrgy 1o 10 1.59440,113 485,792.58
PCRCE Pru - Al Sewson Bobd Funsd {G] 10 1584638 £92.21843 H e .
[HCHCE Pru - Large & MWidcap Fund Reg (G) 100 AT.633 37059103 100 - .
LTI Dividend Yield Plan |G) o0 15,014 14,539 36 o0 18,010 %, RS HD
ISH1- Savimgs Fund Reg (G} 10 2912317 LO31,77E39 i 2mran BRI 7698
S0 Banking & F5U Fund Regutor [G) L.ODD 18,957 SO, 000,00 1,000
:‘:ﬂ'::"“ RS S NN i 0 e 1,000 548 €12.30 Lo ass 12,50
Franklin india 5T | ted 210.0%
RRARND Wi SX o Sngragac:ay 1,000 557 52058 1,000 747 656.33
Wodatonel
353131175 2,660, 647,57
1% Wnsegured Optionally Comertible Cebentures of ; ;
Uatalet Eooifmerce Services Limited i s TR o 500 ot
Tatal () - - 447.210,75 414,092.75
5) |Investment bn Bonds{Measured at FVTOCI)
£,95% B.CLA Bonds . . 418 G50.00
Toral{F] - 418,580.00

[ 1 TOTAL | A+B+C+D+E+F) I [ | ssonmazs2] |
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KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statemenis as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Note 8: Other Non-Current Assets

{Amaunt in Hundreds)

: As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
it oo 203 2022
Capital Advances 106,/27.345 644,587.72
Total of Other Non-Current Assets 106,727.35 644,587.72
Note % Inventorics
{Amount in Hundreds)
R, As at 31st March, | As at 315t March,
PARTICU £ 2
s 2003 2022
Equity Shares 340,654 36
Total Inventories 340,694.36

Note 10; Financial Assets - Trade Recelvables

{Amount in Hundreds)

G | Asat3lstMarch, | Asat 31st March, |
PARTICULARS 1 2003 2022
{a) Trade Recehvables considered pood - Secornd -
(b} Trade Recolvables considered good  Unsecured 16 65696 12967644
{c } Trade Receivables which have significant inerease in Credit Risk - -
{d) Trade Recaivables - credil impaired 13.3649.16 2508278
Less: Allowance lor Credil Impalred 13,3649.16 27,042.78
Total Trade Receivables 36,656.96 329,676.44

Reier Note- 41(i) tor Trade Heceivables Agoing Schodute

MNote 11: Financial Assets - Cash and Cash Eguivalents

{Amaunt in Hundreds)

- : P Fnesass o As at 31st March, | Asat 31st March,
& 2 - PARTICRALARS L | = i ] -5
. i . 2023 2022
Balance with Schedule banks
- O eurrent accounts 77213 42.712.36
- On Fixed Depasits having maturity of less than 3 months
On Fixed Deposits kaving maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months 18547365 1,058, 288 41
On Fixed Deposits having maturity of more than 12 months 11.230.00 #11,230.00
Less: s =
- On Fixed Deposits having maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months (386,472.65] (1,059.288.71)
transferred to Bank Balance (Refer Mote - 13)
. i sits ha 2 th ferred to Othe
pn Ft:_m:l Deposits having maturity of more than 12 months transferred to Other (11.230.00) (711,230.00)
Financial Assets{ Refer Nole-7)
TTrL13 42, 712.36
Choque on hand 24,881.45 22, T23.57
Cash on hand 2.275.07 2,274.00
Tatal Cash and Cash Equivalents 34,932.65 67,709.93

There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash eguivalents as st

periods

ting period and prior




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Mote 12: Financial Assets - Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents

fAmount in Hundreds)
As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
PARTICULARS ;
: 2023 2022
- On Fixed Deposils having maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months * 38647065 1,059,288.71
Total 386,472.65 1,059,288.71
* Fixed Deposits under llen/pledge { Refer Note 21 Finandial Liabilites- Borrowings) {Amount in Hundreds)
- Fixed Deposits under lien/pledge
Fised Deposits not under len/pledpe 387, 70265 1,770 518.71
Total 397, 702.65 1,770,518.71
Note 13: Current Tax Assets/(Liability) (Net)
{Amount in Hundreds)
AT = As at 315t March, | As at 315t March,
Advance Income Tax & TDS (Net of Provision) 19557538 104, 181.62
Total of Current Tax Assets/(Liability) (Net) 195,525.38 104,181.62

Mote 14: Other Current assets

{Arriount in Hundreds)

- “As at 315t March, | As at 315t March,

PARTICULARS 208 <5
Prepaid Expenses 136,339.85 3,578.26
Advance to Vendors 16, /0652 4,066, 79
Total of other non-current assets 153,046.37 B,045.05




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 315t March, 2023

Note 15: Equity share capital
_ [Amount in Hundreds)
i i No. of sharas Amount (¥) | Mo.ofshaes | Amsunt (1)
Aitherised Shares
Equity Shares of @ 100- each 5,000,000 500,000.00 3,000,000 SO0,000,00
5060, 000 00 S0, 00, 00
Issyed, Subscribed & Faid Up Shargy
Eqpuity Shares of B 104~ =ach fully paid up 4,452 400 4485 240.00 4,452 400 = £45 240,00
Tetal 45, 240,00 415, 140,00
2] Reconciliation of shares oustanding at the beginning & at thie end of the ieporting period @ fAmeunt in Humdveds)
AmIltMoch 2008 | Asetdist Macch, 2022
& Mo.of shares | capital  (Par | No.ofshares | copital  (Par
Al the beginning of the year @, 852,400 45,240,060 4,452,400 4445, 740,00
issued during the year + - -
|Dutstanding at the end af the year 4,452,400 445,240.00 8,452,400 445,240,00

(bl Termi and rights attachod to equity chares |
The company has only one class of Equity Shares havving @ par value of B 10/~ per share. Each holder of Eguity shares is entitled to one votz
per share. The holders of Eguity Shares are entltled o recelve dividends ai dectired from time to time, The dividend proposed by the
Board of Qirectors is subject to the approval of Shareholdars in the ensuing Annual Geneml Meeting, sveept i cass of (storim dividend. In
thie event of Ligusdation, the holders of Eguity Shares will be entitled 1o recelve the emsning assets of the comipany afier payment of all
preferential amounts, in proportion of their sharebolding

(&) Divelesures of Sharehaldings by Promaotars
Shares Held by Promoters at the end of the year:

As at 3lst March, 2003
i g No.ofsfares | oforslshang | TOTinees during
tha year
|Mr. Anshuman Prakash* 3,027,580 BE.O0%, -
[, makhil Pralash 15,3710 0.350) .
|Ms. Poonam Prkash 53,350 1.20%} .
[, Racdhika Prakash 215,850 485 -
[Mar. Sudhir Prakash 1,350 0.03%)
[Darshanisl Anand Prakash & Sons Private Limized 100 0,002 %)
B TOTAL | 3,313,500 T4
As at 315t March 2022
Promotors Name Mo Gl 5.0 tosal shares. HChangos during
: the year
|Mr. Anshuman Prakash® 3,027,580 G800 .
|Mir, Nikhll Prakash 15,370 0 35%
IMs, Paonem Prakash 53,350 1. 705
(5. Radhika Prakash 215,850 & 550
[Mr. Sudhir Prakash 1,350 0.035%
|Dar|lun|ll Anand Prakash & Sona Privete Limited 105 0,002 %
| TOTAL 3,313,600 F8A2%]
{dl Detadls of sharehalders holding moare than 5% shares In the company :
: : fh__ ticulars _ s atIiaMarch, 2023 | A% 0t 3181 March, 2022
= s = No. of shares Wholding | No.ofsharss | % haiding

Equity Shares of 3 10/ Each

i, Anshumah Prakash * 1,007,580 G (re 3,027 560 £8.00%

Abilrdha Propertes Lid 426,610 081% 436,610 0.81%

® Indudes 29,70 600 shares held & trustes of Anand Prakesh Family Trust

o] Mo shares have been reserved for e under options and conlracts or commliments for ihe sale of Shases ar divestment a8
Shest date.

N For the period of five years immediately preceading the date a4 at the Balance Sheet s prepared ©
i} o Shares have been alloted as fully paid up pursuant to contractis) without paymant bedng recheed i cEss.
(i} No Shanes have been alioted @ futly pald up by way of bones shares,
it} Ba Shares has been brought back by the Company,




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Noles to the Stundalone Financial Stalements as at and for the year ended 315t March, 2023

Note 16: Other Equity

GENERAL RESERVE
Amount in Hundreds
. As at 31st March, | As at31st Morch,
= 2023 2022
At the beginning and at the end of the year: 3.559.863.17 3.559.863.17
Closing balance 3,559,863.17 3,559,863.17 |
RETAINED EARNINGS
{Armourt in Hundreds)
< As at 31st March, | Asat31st March,
i - (2023 2022
Opaning balance fi,901,607.42 6,422,464, 78
Add : Net profitf{loss] for the period (1.514,829.05) 480,113.03
Add : Remeasurements of defined berefit obligation [net of Taxes) [8249.36) {970.39)
Add: Transter fram FVTOC Reserve 7.187.20
Closing balance 5,493,146.21 6,901,607.42

FVTOCI RESERVE

[Amoum in Hundredy)

= TR i1y Az et 31st March, | Asat 31st'March,
= g PM;UL&:H : ==ren ey ¢ £ -

Opening balance 358 494,81 291 565.67

Net Gainf{Loss) on FVTOL! [nvestments 167,073.09 G6,975.14

Less:Transfier 1o Betained Faming on Sale of Debi Investiment (7,197.20)

Clasing balance 518,370.69 358,494,381

TOTAL OF OTHER EQUITY 9,571,380.07 10,819,965.41

Nature and purpose of other reserves;

General Reserve

Gerieral Reserve 4 craatad and will be utilised in complianca with the providions of the Act

Retained Earnings

Hetained earnings represent acocumulated profitsf{losses) earned by the Company and remaining undistributed as on date,

FVTOCI Equity Investments

The Company has clected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equily instruments through other
comprehensive income, These changes are accumulated within the FVTOC! equity investments reserve, The Company transfors
amounts from this reserve to relained earnings when the relovant equity securitios are derecognised




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Stundalons Finanolal Statements as at and Tor the vear ended 318t March, 2023

Note 17: Non Current Financlal Liabilitles - Borrowings

{Amount in Hundreds

= - Asat3lstMarth, | Asat 315t March,
S vy gy 0

Securad
Vehicle Term Loan from Bank® 11,713.41 18,394,386

Less: Current Maturity of Term Loan {7,227.18) [i5.675.95)
Total Non-Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings 4,486.23 11,713.41
*Secured by hypothecation of vehicles finronced and repayable in 48 instafiments falling due.
Repayment Schedule of Vehicle Logn
Potriculars 2023-2024 2024-2025
Loan Amount Due fobe Repoid 122718 4.486.23

MNote 1B: Financial Liabilities - Other linancial labilities

{dmount in Hundreds

- 7 R B  Asat3istMarch, | Asat3istMarch,

- PARTICULARS , e sy
Security Deposits from tenants 273.077.36 197 55998
Total Other Non-Corrent Financial Liabilities 273,077.36 19283095
Mote 18: Deferrad Tax (Net)

fAmnunt in Hundreds)
i - ¥ =T o 7 T e e =
© pARMICULARS R S IR e AL TEIE B
- = A Sy L -2 Vi =8 -m:w_-—
Mifference betaresn Accounting baze and Tax base of Assets and Liabilities 12880127} 51.8514.54
LAdd + Deferred tax accountad for the year 248,094,119 {23,003.27)
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities/{Assets) (Nt 219,292.92 28,801,26
NOTE 19(A) : DEFERRED TAX RECONCILIATION
{&maint In Hundreds)
= ISR == [ Aeatziamand, | Asat3tscharch,
Deferred Tax Liabilithes:
Fair Valuation of Other Asset and | kahility 176,480 47 158, 440,108
Total 176,499.47 158,440,148
Deferred Tax Assets:
Fair Valmrion of Other Asset and Lability 23 1619.85 37860}
Praperty Plant and Lgupment 12,965.85 13,131.54
Emplyes Benedils - Gratuity 339845 3,829.45
Provision for Lipenies 1,090.38 HE B9 00
Carricd Forward Lasses 355,173.83 -
Total 395,792.38 1285,637.91
Deferred Tax Liabilitios/[Assots] (Net) (218,292.92) 2880227
(Amoiiet in Hontreds)
MOTE 18(8) : RECONCILIATION OF TAX EXPENSE ON THE ACCOUNTING PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
= - Asar3istMarch, | Asat 31st March,
PARTICLILARS R 1 2022
Profit [ [loss) before Tax {1.688,655.48) 57314684
Applicable Tax Rate 15.17% 25.17%
Tax using the Company's Tax Rate (425,000.81) 144 249,60
Tax Effect of: . .
Exermpl Income, et of disaliowances 14,035.65 (77,093.41)
income chargeable undsar different rates 30,366.14 (24,9931.26]
Permanent Differences 13, 515.64 13,583.62
Cther Temporary Differences 47,075.37 (28, 722.71)
Othaer Non Deductible Exponies 33.909.81 B3,750.95
Income Tax for Earfier Year 1197176 {17,740.98)
Tum Expenss recogniiod in the Statement of Profit and Loss [273,826.43) 03,083.80




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Standalens Financial Statements as al and for Lhe year ended 31st March, 2023

Pre- reseived rrnt on sccount of valuation of security cepasit
Advance against Froperty

Total of Other Non-Current Liabilities

Mote 21: Financial Rabilities - Borrowings

rﬁ-mﬂlﬁhl h Ed’EﬁH : ﬂ -

Secured

Warking Capita| Loan from Axis Bank

Current Maturity on Long term Borrowings- Vehicle Loan 71271838 6673.95
Total Current Borrowings 721718.38 6679.95|

Maote 22; Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables

Total Outstanding dues of Micra Enterprises & Small Laterprises 508043
Total Outitanding ducs of Creditors olhir Uvan Micro Exburprives & Small Fkerprises 14 861.83 45 355 61
[Totol Trade Puyobles 14,801.52 58.436.04
Refer Note- 43 for Trade Payable Ageing Schedule

r nf la:m J (AMOUNE i1 Huradsods

| — — e A = e T — = — Ry Ry

(i) Principal amaunt remaining unpald to any supplier 34 at the snd of the dceounling yedr. 3,080,432
Tﬁ Interast due merm:m rem-a.h_ﬂ'n_; ungaid o any supplier 35 at the end of the accounting NiL NiL
year. ),

[#i] the amount of int=rest paid by the buyer In terms of section 16 of the Micro, small and

Medivem Entoiproes Devaloprmient Act, 2006 (27 of 2008), alang with the ameunt of the ML MiL
payment made to the supplier heyond the appointod day duning cach sccounling yeur

(W] The amaunt of intersst due and payahle for the perod of delay in making payment. . ik
(v} The amount of inberest accrued and remaining vnpaid 41 Ura and of each scoourting year. NIL HIL
{w) The amount of turther interest remaining dise and payable even in the sucteeding yaars, =
unlil suweh date when the interest dues sbowe are aclually pand Lo the small enberprise, for the

purpose of disallowance of & deductibie axpenditure under section 23 of the Bicro, Small and MiL MiL
Miedium Enterprises Development Act. 2006,




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31si March, 2023

MNote 23: Other Financial habilities

(Amount in Hundreds)

ST T  AsatilstMarch, | Asat 31st March,
Security Depotits from tenants G6,260.61 3,292 50
Other Advanoes 763163 844811
Liability for Capital Goods 13,035.78 -
Total Other Financlal Liabilities o ] 26,932.02 11,740,561

Mote 24: Other Current Habllities

(Amaunt in Hundreds)

3 . paRTICULARS Sl el iney, | [ e SUASSENtaD,
: irivf ol o 2023 202z
Pre- received rent-on acceunt of valuation of secumty cepasit A2 447 45 1881162
Statulory Dues 19 3R2 49 16,494 94
Interest Accrued and not due on Borrowings Gd.67 101 56
Total Other Current Liabilities B1,894.62 35,408.13
MNote 25: Provisions
(Aenount in Munidred)
T S R [ Asm3lstMarch, | Asar3tstMorch,
Lomrs S e i Lk el g LR E im0 BATE R oo b e 1 - T e bremeiar, | - B
Emplayes Berstfit- Sratuity 13.503.06 1521554
Prowition for Bonug 4,332 80 4,632 50
Provision for Rates & Taoes 353,218.40
| Total Provizions 17,835.50 373,066.43




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Standalons Financlal Statements as &l and for the year ended 3151 March, 2023

Noke 26: Revenue from Oporalions

{Amouni in Hundreds)

arTE Far the year ended | For the yeor snded 3151
Rental Income® 740,244 33 616,866,227
Sade af Shares 351.801.62 350,445,086
Sade of Billets 687.509.31
Othar Operating Revenue "
-Commercial SLITII'IEIt‘E_E 98.52 94.14
Totnl Revenue from Operations 1,0592,144,53 1,654,914.73

* includes Rental Income on account of Falr Valustion of Security Depasit amounting to T 26,087,349/, (Y. T19 297 26/.)

Note 27: Other Income

{Amauni in Hundreds)

R For the year onded | For the ynar ended 315t
Interest
0n Loans 27, 706.02 66,137.77
- On Fixed Oeposits 27.550.00 26,624.40
On Honds and Debentures 19,763.28 37.989.59
- O Security Depasits 6,314.52 352.00
- On pecount of Falr Valuation of Investments n Preference  Shares as per Effective Interest
Rate (EIR) Method. 5,809,33 4/81340
- On account of Fair Valuation of Investments in Debentures as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR)
33,178.00 30,438.54
Ptethod.
Dividend Income 1.889.50 4,144,560
Profit on Redemption of Preference Shares = 2.519.59
Profit on Sale of Mutual Fund 51,4549.52 140,851.98
Profit on Future and Option - 758216
Profit on Sale of Securities {Eguity Shares) - 45 805,58
Sundry Balance Written back 24,881.00 -
Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debrs written back 20,407.77 -
Miscellanoous Income 849,216.62 57,570.24
Faw Yalue Gam on Financial Instruments 64,505,858 191.674.78
Total Dther Income 373,181.66 71848107
MNote 26: Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
{AmCRLIT ey Al
L pARTICULARS b dmet: | waerhcatga
Rurchase of Shares - 136,500 68
Purchase of Billets 643,534.83
Total Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 780,035,50
Mote 2%: Changes In Inventories of Finlshed Goods, Work-in-Progress
ALl b Hurdeds)
= For the year énded | For the year ended 31st
PAITQRETR 31¢ March, 2023 March, 2022
Inventories at the Beginning of the year
Shares 340,659,356 446, 163.8%
Properties v
Inventories at the End of the year
Shares JA0.694.36
Proparties 4
Changes in Inventorios 340,694,360 105,469.48
Mote 3i: Employee Benefit Expanss
fAmaun! i Hundreds)
e oS, Forthe year ended | For the yearended 31st
_ _  PARTICULARS 315t March, 2023 March, 2022
Salaries, Wages, Borus and Allowances 63,033.00 69,072,563
Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Funds 7.668.80 6,319.30
Director Remuneration 91,872.00 94,300.00
Seafl Welfare Expenses 749142 24,552.50
Total Employee Benelit Expense 170,065.22 194,5%4.43




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Note 31: Finance Cost

Interest on Viehicle Loan 1,177,712 1,686,32
Finance Cost on account of Fair Valuation of Security Deposit 30,238.98 15,677.74
Interest on Rates and Taxes 29.85 1,188.38
Total Fimance Cost 31 ,446.55 19,152.73

Mote 32: Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Depreciation on
- Property, plant and equipmant 33,045,221 47.,701.81
= Investment property 40,991.93 33,13354
Total Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 74,037.14 75,335.35

Mote 33: Other Expenses

e
Hent,Rates & Taxes
Insurance

Repairs to Building
Repairs to Mant & Machinary

Rapairs to Others

Reglsteration of Lease Desd

Bank Chorges

Rent

Office Expenses

Motor Car Running & Maintenance Expenses

Donations & Charity{including Corporate Social Responsibility) [Refer
Mote 43 |

Loas on sale of bond

Advertisement & Publicity

Security services

Printing & Stationery

Electrical Charges

Communication Expenses

Brokamge Commission

Legal & Professional Fees

Baddebt

Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debt
Expected Credit Loss on Financial Assets
Auditor's Remuneration :

- As Statutory Audlt Faes

- As Tax Audit Fees

Traveliing and Conveyance
Miscellanieous Expenies

Logs on Premature of FD

Sundry Balances Written off

Diractor Sitting Fees

Share Speculation Loss

Total Other Expenses

<L

=) T =. =
\\&:‘: w.. 00,413.91

=l

10,682.54 312,804.02
756,56 2,496.16
140,248.26 161,939.45
6,006.76 3,785.12
11,404.07 4,74152
1,979.10 e
29.39
600.00 :
2.546.11 6,760.28
10,219,22 10,690.02
31,200,00 25,000.00
9,726.80
5,629.21 £,105.45
12,665.25 12,322.04
1,628,60 958,95
14,211.46 13,786.33
2,092.85 1,880.23
31,780.77 E
44,681.41 47,293.12
20,407.77 :
B,734.15 .
117,177.60 -
3,500.00 3,500.00
500.00 300.00
5,575.86 3,155.80
5,548,07 4,336 55
2,882,00 .
= 3,840.21
220.00
647.18
626,661.47
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34 Fair Vabue Hierarchy
The fan valee of the financial assety and financial fabliites are included =t the amount 2t which the instrument could be euchanged in 2 current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a farced or lguidation sale
Thee following table provides the fair value measurement Nierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabifities. The fnanca! instruments ars catagonized
irste theee levels bated on the inputs used to arrive 5t falr value measurements as described be|ow

35

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) i sctive markets for identical assets or habilites.
Livel 2: inputs other than the guoted prices Incoded within lewvel 1 that are observahle for the asset or lability, efther directly or indirectfy

Level 3: inputs for the asset or Bability that are not based on observabie market data [unobservable inputs),

Quantitative discloaures balr value measurement blevarchy lor assets and liabllives as a1 1150 March, 2023 (Amaurt in Hundreds)
. {Lovel 2} fLavel 3]
Aszets measured at fair value:
Inwestments at Fair Vilue through OC1 (FYTDCI] 5
Inwestments in Quoted equity shares TE,U90.21 8w - .
lmvestrments in Ungooted equity shares 1,493.91830 - 1.4593,313.30
st ments i Lnquoted Preference Shares 14, 850,00 14,850.00
Investments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 5
| vesiments i Mutwal Funds 3533,11752 3.5313,117.52
Investments at Amartised Cost 5
Inwestrments in Unguoted Preference Shares 1,122, 845,73 - 112284573
Irvestimants in Debunture 5 #47,210.75 - 447,110,795
TOTAL | G, 630,97 52 7899021 3,533,117.52 l,n?ﬁm,n
Lisbilities muasured ot fair value at amorised cost i
Interest-free Secunty Deposit 279,337.97 - Z73.337.97
TOTAL 275,337.97 - 27933797
Ouantitative disclosures tair value meassrement hierarchy for 32cets and Eabilites as at 315t March, 2022
: e . Fait yolue measurement using
 PARTICULARS ‘Refor Nota No Tatal by ' abse
- flavel 2) {Levei 1)
Assets measured at fair value:
Imeestments at Fair Value through OC1 [FVTOCH) 5
Irvastments in Quoted sguity shares 79,146.40 79, 146.40
imverstments in Unguoted equity shares 1,285,70L.10 . . 1,288,701 10
investments in Sonds 418,980.00 AR, G0, 00
Irvestrents in Unguobed Prefeeence Shares 14, B50.00 # LAES 00000
Investments 5t Fair Value through Profit or Loss 5
irvestments in Mutual Funds 7,669,647.57 - 2,664,647 57 -
|myestments st Amartised Cost
Iviestrments in Unguoted Praference Shares BES,036.81 ' R66, 04657
lrvestments in Debentures E a414,032.75 . - 41403275
TOTAL 5, 751,303,683 T6,346.40 3,080,627.57 4,051, 76966
Liabilithes measured at fair value pt smartised cost;
Interest-free Securily Deposil ik 196,132.48 - 196,132 48
TOTAL 19%,132.48 196,132.48
There have been no traoralors betweed Levald 1 and Leusl 2 during the year ended 116 March, 2023 or 315t hMarch, 2022
ning Per Eguity 5h lnd AS
PARTICULARS et T i M’:hm
[alriet Profit sfter tax senilable for Equity Sharehalden (1.414,520.05) 4B0.113.04
[BlWeighted avarage no. of egquity shares of [ 10V- esch canstanding duting thie 445,130 &45.340
[c}8asc/ Dl luted Earnings per Share (a)/ib] [31.78) 10.78
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36 Reloted Party Disclosure:

Related Party Disclosure in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard 24

: S ML i s ¥ i Ee T T [
NATURE OF RELATIONSHIP | SiNo NAME OF RELATED PARTIES
ey Management Personne L Sudhir Prakash, Managing Director
3 Amshuman Prakash, Direcior
3 Meefirna fain, Directar
4 Mkt Prakash, Disector
5 Sidhant Prakash, Diroctar
] Mitin Kandai, Independent Director
i Princey Xandol, Independent Director
8 Lalita Kanta Samal, Chief Financial Officer
5 Ginnl Lonhariwala, Company Secretary
Enterprises Owned or Significantly Influenced by 1 ALX Led
Key Managerial Personnel , or their Relatives il Amrita Media Py, Lid
12 hMegapix Strips & Tubes Pyt Led.
13 Rarshanlal Anand Prakash & Sans Pvt. Ltd
14 Barsana Farms Pt Ltd
15 Arihant Salves Pvi Lid
15 Datanet ECommarce Service Py Lid
17 Puriranchial Concast Put. Ltd
Associate Company(in Tﬁﬂm of which the 18 Ahinsha Froperties Limited
Associate Company 15 Laojan Tea Company Private Lid.
{Amaunt in Hundreds)
A ; As On AsOn
"‘; NAME OF THE RELATED PARTY THRANSACTION 315t March,2023 | 31st March,2022
@ &)
1{Purbanchal Concast Pvi. Ld frovision for Expected Credit Loss 10132219
|iriLerest A0 247.54
|£I::r_f.mg Balance of Loan & Interest 911,899.68 1,013,2321.87
Ligansa Fees Facahed 851,00 90:0.00
Miscellanaols Incoma 863479
Sale of Bilets 68750531
2 |DLM Lrd Loan Gluen 80,000,00
Loan Refunded 217,080.50 .
Interest 8.0532.88 9.B34.47
Closing Balanee of Loan & Interest 11812291
Purchase of Preference Shares F50,000.00 =
Redemption af Preference Shires - 300,000.00
Advance Given 4,925,B6 31.135.93
fefund OF Advance 2,925,286 171,335.33
3 |Arihant Solvex Pt Ltd Interest 14,763 78 12,743.43
Loan Glven 37.500,00 60, 000.00
Loan Repaid 100,800.00
Cloging Balance of Loan & interest 111,519,738 160,732.83
4 |Ahinsha Properties Lid Interest 26390
Loan Glven 50,000.00
Loan Repaid 50.000,00
Iriterest Outstanding 262,90
L |Amrita Media Put. Lid Ratmbursement Recaivabla 5.214.69 5.023.24
& |Barsana Farms Put Ltd License Feas Recelved 261.60 240.00
7 |Datanet ECommerce Service Pvt Ltd Advances Given 160,000.00
Advances Aepaid 106,000.00
Closing Balance of Advance B4.000.00
BiMegapix Strips & Tubes Pvt. Ltd. Prowision for Expected Credit Lg
Closing Balance of Loan & Ingl 158,554.14
9 |Ginni Lohariwala Salany 1,800.00
10 |Nitin Kandoi Director Sitting Fees 11080
11 |Princey Kandol Directar Sittimg Fass Y 110,00
12 |Anshumsan Prakash Directors Remurieration a5 30,900.00
13 |Mikhil Prokash |Directors Remureraticn sl 4 ¥ =230 §24.00 32,500.00
14 |Sidhant Prakash |l:lirnclau. Remuneration 30,624.00 30,900.00
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37 POST REVIREMENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (IND AS 19 )
Defined Benefit Plans As Per Acturial Valuation
Gratuity | funded by the Company )
The scheme is funded and the fund is Iying with LICL The company has provided with the balance of the fund as st 01.04,2022 and
31.03.7023 and the information refating to the contribution made and the benefits pald oul and interest eamed during the period froem
01 04 2022 10 31.03.2023

Determination of acturial assumption depend an various factors such as the company’s internal commercial and business plan, various
industry factors, applicable economics factors, internal HR related policies (incduding and changes thereta), regulatory factors, ete

Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other ieguiatory framework which may very overtime.
Thus, the company is exposed o various risk in providing the above gratuity benetit which are as follows:

Interest Rate Risk @ The plan exposes the compuny to the risk of fall in interedt rates. A fall in interest rate will result in an increase in
ultimate cost of providing the shove benefit 2nd will thus resilt in an increase in the value of the lighility {as shown in financial
statoments ).

Ligpubdity Risk : This [s the risk that the comparty Is nat able to meet the shart term gratully payouts. This may arise due to non-avadability
of encugh cash / cash eguivalent to meet the (jabifities or holding of Eguid asset not being sold in time,

Salary Escalation Risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan
particlpants in future, Derfvation in the rate of increase of salary in future for pian participants from the rate of increase in <alary used 1o
determing the prewnt valus of obligation will have 8 bearing on the planes Habdity.

Demographic Risk : The company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of liability. The company is cxposed to
the risk of actual cxperience turning out 1o be worse compared to the assumption,

Regulntory Risk @ Gratuity benefit is paid in accordence with the reguiremeants of the payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, There is 2 risk of
change in regulations reguiring highor gratuity payouts

SUMMARY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITY [BALANCE SHEET POSITION) {Aimaount in Hundreds)

Present value of obligation 39.975.94 35,121.13
Fair Value of Flan Asset 26472688 19,905.5%9
Unrecogrised Past Service Cost - -
Effects of Assei Ceiling R = - -
et Asset [ (Lisbility) {13,503.05) (15,215.54)
WINDUP LIABILITY / ISCONTINUANCE LIABILITY

— - 3 y ~ ASOn
_ = PARTICULARS =
Discontinuance Liakility 41,115.23 35132728
Present Value of Obligation 35,975.94 35,121.13
Ratio | Present Value of Obligation / Discantinuance Lisbility J{in%) 97% 100%
(i} Details of funded post retirement are as follows:
2. Expense Recognised In Statement of Profit/Loss

= PARTICULARS 31st March,2023 | 31st March, 2022
Current service Cost 1.544.47 2211271
Loan / [Gain) on wettlement
MNet Interest Cost 43,36 659,33
Benefit Cost (Expense Recognised In Statement of Profit/Loss) 2,487.43 2 EB72.06
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Noles fo the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2023

B.Other Comprehansive Income

(Ameunt In Hundreds)

Acturial gain/Loss on Obligation due to ;
- ehange In demographic assurmpption .
- change tn financial asumptions (1,139,234} 66.06
- experience varience | |.e. Actual experience vs assumptions ) 227207 2,156.11
others .
Return/less on plan asets excluding amounts induded in interest [ncome {24 54) {201.08)
Components Of defined Benefit Cost Recognised In Other Compriosive lncomse 1,108.29 2,121.11 |
C. EHEE in gﬂ Ug!gs E @Ed benafit nhlEHinﬂ:
Present Value of DBO ot boginning of period #5,171.13 78,787.02
Current Service cost 1,544.47 221273
Interest Cost 2 177.51 179919 |
Curtailment Cost/{eradit) |
Settiernent cost/{credit] o =
Employes contribution -
Past Sernce Cost -
Acguisitions -
Re-measurement (or Actuarial [gains)/Losses] Arising from
~change m demographic assumption . -
~hange in financal assumptions (1.150.04) ab.la
-sxperience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions) T2 2,756.13
-pthers - -
Renefits paid . .
Present Value of DBO at end of period 39,575.94 35,121.13
d. Changes in Fair Value of Plan Azsets
T s T PARTICULARS ——: 315t March,2023 | 315t Mareh, 2022
Plan assets at beginning of poriod 18.905,.58 1R.7237.76
Investment income 1,234,156 1,139.85
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding amount recognised in Mel interest Leponsos 24 64 201.08
Actual Company Contributions 5,308,650 326,89
Fund Transferred - -
Employee contributions
Benefits paid -
Plan assets at end of period 26,472.88 14,905.59
. Net asset/(libility} recognised in balancesheet
= 'z PARTICULARS 316t March,2023 | 315t March, 2022
Funded Status
Presont value al Defined Benefit Obl I.!!tlon 39.075.04 35,121.13
Fair Value of plan assets 2647288 19,905.59
Funded Status [surplus/Detic) (13,503.06) {15,215.54)
Eftect of balancesheet asset limit 2 ’
Unrecognized past service cost =
Net asset/(libility) recognised in balanceshest
Net asset/{libility) recognised In balanceshest at the beginning of period {15,215.54) {16,549,26)
Expenses recognised in income Statemernt B 248783 2ET2.06
Expenses recognised In Other Comprehensive |ncome 1, 10829 212111
Ermployer Contribution 5,308 .80 326.89
Met Acquisition / Business contributions - -
Net asset/(libility) recognised in balance sheet at the end of period '—ﬂ (13,503.06) {15,215.,54)
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£ Malor Cotegories of plan Assets as % of Total Plan Assets

(Amaunt in Hundreds)
PARTICULARS TN | 31st Mareh2023 | 315t March,2022
Fund Managed by insurer 100% 1005
TOTAL 100% 100%
il efit Obligat
1T i i | | 31st March,2023 | 315t March,2022
Expected Cash flow (valued on mﬂw itk basis) indian Rupees <) Ixrttale :
1 years 24,729.97 17,408.41
Batwean 2 10 5 yoars 5, 230.60 3,300.86
Between 610 10 years 10,118.37 9,014.55
Mare Than 10 Years 12,982 70 11.995.593
The avearage duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of balancesheet date
. 5 years i years
(in years]
PARTICULARS S 3iMarch, 2023 [ 31 March, 2022
Increase Decrease Increase Decreasse
Discount Rate |-f+1%) 41,191,93 38,880,739 33,862.85 36,518.99
% Change Compared To Base due to Sesithity 3.04 -2.74% -3.58% 3.98%
Salary Growth(-/+1%) 38,823,433 4123503 36.554.560 313.808.37
% Change Compared To Base due to Sasitlvity -2 BEY% 3.15% 4.08% -3.74%
Attrition Rate {-/+ 50%) 10 866,60/ 4007417 35,140.93 35,098.98
% Change Compared To Base due to Sauitivity 0.27% 0.25% 0.06% -0.06%:
Martality Rate [-f+10%) 39,951.45 39.559.56 35,125.79 35,116.33
% Change Compared To Base due to Sesitivicy 0.06% -0,06% 0.01% 0.01%
Current define benellt obligation 24,220,597 17.009.41
MNon-current define benelit abligation 15,745.97 17,711.72
Total defined bensfit obligation 35,975.94 3512113
b. Best Estimate Of Contribution During Next Year | 15,077.98 | 17,443.85
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS- ACCOLNTING, CLASSIFICATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASURFMENTS

38 Financal Instruments by category
Lot out belpw 5@ compatlson, by clixy of the earrying artowsts and fair value of the Camgany's flnsrcol instruments, nther than those with cermang
ampunts that are teazonablz approalmations of fai values:

(Amoust i Hundreds)

5 6,600,927.4% | 3,498,117.52 1579, 75351 | 187000649 [R5 KIF Y]
{8} |Trade and other Becevables 10 IEFSE S = 16,655.06 36,656.96
[€} |Canh mmid Crnky Equivalenss un 34912 6% - 24,933 65 34.93L05
) Banlk Bslances other than Cagh 12 386,472 65 : . ECTR R RN 386, 472.65
e} G 1166, 11R.1% - . 1166, 11890 1,1046,118.19
in F 231 A0E R4 = - 31,80% A4 231, 502.64
Tolal £.546,011.61 | 3,530117.52 1,579,753.51 1,426, 04058 53091161

2
(o) 1I7&21 11,713.41 - 1171361 11,7134
() |Trade and orher #myables 22 1480152 . 14,301 52 14, 801 52
[} |other Financial abilites 2435 An0,a0e3A e 20000238 00,009, 36
s 126,524.30 : 3 326,524.30 135 534 30

(&) |imeesiments = E 575130451 | LESURATSY 1,79LETEAS | 128000556 5.743,304.62
(h] [Trade snd other Recelvables L] 339,570.44 . . LT 129,676.448
{&) |Cashy sl Cash Equivaldnts 5 4 &2 R Gr, 70003 &7.709.93
mank Balances olber Uhian Cash 12 LOEG, 2R TT . 1,065,288 71 1,044,258 71

& and Cach Equialents
(%) ltozns 6 147697805 . A 1 ATESTILIS 1,475,978.05
(1) |Ocher financal aasers 7 BEGEFS LD . B, K B EAG825.66

Total 957187580 | 3,669647.57 | 179367749 | 5.100,588.35 SRR |
I | Financial Lisbilities

(u} |Barrowings 17821 1839338 - - 1829235 18.393. 96
(v} [Trade and othar Fayahiss Frl 5803664 - - 89 35561 43,355.61
{¢) |Caner Financs! Lisbilities IR&?3 | 20458059 . - 9, 213.08 208,213.09
otal 81,409.94 . - 276,051.05 176,962.05

" Extiudesinvestmenls measured 3t oot .

39 Dinclozure in respect of Contingent Liabifity and Capital Commitment:

I)|Capital Enmmitt [ u. n& pEs) - . 20,500.00

b} incame Tas
I} Arxagemant Yaar 200 3-2004 , tha campany hat fled 5 appeal with CLT. (Apgenl) sgaingt 3 damasd of ©15 049 20 (Mat of Paid undes protest of €
5,000.00 /-1

i) Assesemint Vear 2017-2008,, the eompaiy has led an sppesl with CLT, (Apgesl] againat as inccine Tax Order of 233,744 18 (Met of Paid wnder
protest of THA3I6.05 /)
40 Municipal Tan |
Tunicipal Taxamounting 1o fs. 24,90,000.00/- has seen paid during the finengia) yeer 2022-13 25 2greed in mutual sartisment betvwien the Company
and Kobeats Municipel Corporation snd oot of which As. 353, 218,40/ (s acjusted against previsions. Further o perthe demand crder He 99,457,115
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41 Financial risk management objectives and policies

Thee Company’s principal financial Rabilitles includeas Borrowings, Trade pavable and Other financial llabllities. The main purpose of
these financial fliabilities is 1o finance the Company's eperations. The Company’s princlpal firancial assets include Securitios, Trade
receivables, Cash and cash eguivalents and Other financial assets that derive directly from Its aperations.

The Company is exposed to credit risk, Sguldity risk and mirket risk, The Company's senior mansgement oversees the management of
these risks and the appropriate financial risk governance Framework for the Company. The senior management provides assurance
that the Company’s financial risk activites are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identifiad,
meatured and managed in accardance with the Company's palicies and risk abjectives

The Board of Directors reviewed policies for managing each of these risks, which are surmmarized below

(@) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The
Company's activities expose it 1o a variety of financial risks, Induding the effects of changes in interest rates.

{il Interest rate risk
Interest rate rick s the risk that the falr value of future cash flows af an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in market interest

rates. Any changes in the Interest rates envirgnment may impact future cost of borrowings, The interest cate risk Is managed by the
Company by monitoring monthly cash flows which is reviewed by management to presient loss of interest

The following table demonstrates the barrowings of the Company
{Amount in Hundrneds)

ATIC Az at As at
ne 4 ‘31st March, 2023 | -31st March, 2022
Vehicle Loan 11,713.41 1B.393 36
Total 11,713.41 14,393.36
Sensitivity Analysls :

The following table demanstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible changes in interest rates on that portion of borrowings
affected, With all other varizhles remaining constant, the company's profit belore tax and equity before tax Is affectad, as follows:

{Amount in Hundreds)

Increase) ' A o
PARTICULARS dicroase in Basis m m EHeckay) P ta
il tax Equity
As at + 0.5% {1,679.94) (1,679.94)
315t March, 2023 0.5% 1,679.94 1.679.94
As at +0.5% {870.99 {870.99)
315t March, 2022 05% 870.99 870,99

(i) Price risk

The Company's exposure 1o securities price ril arises from investments beld - both quoted, mutual fund and bonds and classified in
the balance sheet either as fair value throwgh OC) or at fair valoe through profit or loss. The Company [ not expecting high nisk

exposure from its investment in securities,

The table below sets forth the fair value of quoted imvestments in securities of listed companies and mutual funds ;

{Amaunt in Hundreds)

A ARl L Asat Asat
PARTICULARS ; :
REnE 335t March, 2023 | 31st March, 2022
Investrnents in Quoted Equity Shares (ot FYTOCH) 78.95%0.21 79 146 40
Imvestments in Mutual Funds (at FYTPL) 3,533,117.52 2,669,647.57
Investrments in Bonds (at FVTOCI) 418,980.00
TOTAL 3,167,773.96
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{c) Ligpuldity visk

Liraicity siih i the riik that the Company may nol be sbie tomeet iy present end Toore cesh pngd codesarsd obligations withost incurring unaccepiabis
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KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as ai and jor the year ended 31st March, 2023

4R Ratios

The rotios for the years ended Morch 31, 2023 and March 31, 2032 are as folfows -

As at March 31,

Dievicanad

o

Lor Varlancs Rermark
Partbeulars Numrator Denamina T 093
Decredse in Trade payshles and Prostsion
{Cwrrarn Katlo Curreiit Assety Jl:.ulrlﬁt Liatllinies 168612 A ER2G FELL paid ol
Shareholdes's Equity |8 decreased in the
curment year o compared to previoes
X 5 omaa 0.6 -
Dbt~ Exuly Rakin Tta Debe firmniial
Farming For Dt Profl i decreased In the currmt yee 3
- cormpsned ta prevas financial year.
Dt Service Coverags |Service = Net Frafic {94.3500) isisH TIE%
|Mai after tawes + Mon-gash
operating experLed
Nat Profits after tases Profit s docreased b the climent e ap
|R=turn on Equaty Ratio |- Preference Ddderd ~13%0 43 -404% frompared o previows finsncisl year,
[ any
AesTaps N oy
# I
lwenntony Turmove Cost wsl goods sold OF wiCoaning = 2083 1T 2% MoA
[Foia e Ciessing batance / 2|
Nt Credil Salesskint "
el salas it of
:\'ni ;Idll.:::ﬁ ot ' i | e B
- There hid been n sales ety [ e
ninimll SNty S et S T B Mt
o, [Tiwda roceivabias )
imrlaides sungdry
detstors and biils
i EIM. Purchases Arsragn Trade
rriclé i e bt comilt purchasies || i (gt There has teen na purchase of billets or
BaTnchesT ritic Sonaisl of gy et + Chpng balnnce [ i . shares in the cursent Gnanclal year.
r purchases minus 2
putchase reture
Mot turriowss Hh decrmasd (17 B curoent
Mt Spdes=Met siles wWioeking capital e B eomgEred 1o previous fnancisl
Mgt Capital Twnover  |shall be calculated se  |uhall b ol vt 05151 1 s M et
fatin total Sales mminus sakes fae curramt muaely
Tt A TS CLTenT
=Alat Profit i decreased i the clarrent year a5
pabes shall ba o il 1o previous fTmancisl i
-1 29 559 28019 5
et Prafit Ratio et profie sfies tis oo 2
|
Earnang Aefore Intereit and T 15
Tangible Sat\Warth decrmaid in CurimE yier ns companed o
Returm on Cupital [arning belore kieiea + Total Bisht + sl 5 sl A1TH ; e Fonarcinl yaas
Emploverd and LaANEs e 3
Joetarred Tas Liahilit
0 — " Retuen on isvestment & deoreazed o
i pm ; el Bk el
Mheturn on Irvestment. |Cpening Balance)s Opening Batance 15. 75" 51% e yuar an camparned i pee 1

Ifmamal WEI




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2023

&9 Trade Payable Ageing

The agning analyshs of the Trade Payables (At in Hundreds)
Paril . Outstanding as at ist March, 2023 {31st March, 2027) from the due date _—
Unbsilled Due* Mot Due Up to 1 year 1-1 yoan -3 yeary More than 3 yearn
dues of micro
lenterprises and
wmall enterprives
{3.390.63) [5.185.80} - (9,080.43 )

outslanding dues of
creditors other than

k1o ininprias &, 050,00 10,751.52 14,801.52
and small

(3470 00) (4,307,432 (7,736 79) {20,000, 00) {13,281 40} . (49,355, 61
af micro anterprises
and small
ERTEFERiaE,

cred itor other than
milern enterprises
and small
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KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2023

50 Mo proceeding has been Initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benam| property under the
fenam| Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988} and rules,

51 The Company does not have any transactions with Companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies
Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956 during the period ending 31st March, 2023 and also for the
period ending 31st March, 2023,

52 The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank, financial institution or any other entity.

53 There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutary period, for the current and
provious year,

54 The Company has complied with number of layers as prescribed under clause-87 of section 2 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Companies Rule, 2017.

55 The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the bools of accounts thal has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the current year and previous year in the tax asscssments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 [such as, search or survey or any athor relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

s6 The Company has not traded o invested in Crypto currency ar Virtual Currency during the current year and
previous year .

57 Utilisation Of Borrowed Funds and Share Premium
Al The Company has not advanced, lganed or Invested funds(=ither borrowed (unds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) to any olhier persan(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities{intermediaries) with the unidesstand ng(whatber
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediany shall-
1) directly or ndirectly lead or invest in other persons or entlties (dentifled in sny mannsr whatsoever by or an bahall of the
Company [Uitimate Bepeficiaies)
i} prowvide any guarantee or security or the like 1o or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarios.
So, required disclosure with respect Lo thie aliove s notl appllcable

B|The Company has nol raceived any fund fram any person(s) or entity{ies} including foreign entities|{Funding Party) with the
undesstandinglwhether recorded in writing or othirwise) thal the Cofmpany shall-

i) directly or indirectly lond or invoest in other persons orentities [dentified inany manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the
Tunding Party [Ultimate Beneficianes)

W) prow|de any guarantee or security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

Sa, reguired disclosure with respact to the above s not appllcable.

58 The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the abligations of its
supsidiaries, associates or joint ventures,

59 Previous year/period figures have been regrouped/rearranged, wherever consldered necessary, to make them
comparable with those of current year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To The Members of KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Repaort on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of KANAK PROIECTS LIMITED
(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”), and its associate, which comprise the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at 31st March, 2023, the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Consolidated statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Ind
AS Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the consolidated state of affairs of the holding company and its associate as at March 31, 2023, and their
consclidated Less {including other comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Holding Company and its associate in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consoclidated Ind AS Financial Statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Companles Act, 2013, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of maost significance in our audit of
the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the, Board's Report Including Annexures to Board's Report, and
Shareholder's Information, but does not include the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 2
report thereon. Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover t)
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. [
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In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other Information is materially inconsistent with the Ind
AS Financial Statements or our knowledge abtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statement.

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true
and fair view of the Consolidated financial position, Consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash
flows of the Holding Company and its associate in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standard specificd under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of
Directors of the Holding Company and in its associate are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records |n accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the asseis of the Holding Company and its
associate for preventing and detecting frauds and other irrcgularitios; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by
the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and it's associate are responsible for assessing the ability of the Holding Company and its associate to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Holding Company and its
associate or to cease operations, or has no realistic altermative but to do s0.

The respective Board of Directors of the Halding Company and its associate are responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of the Holding Company and its associate.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financiol Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue and auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 5As will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic declsion of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements.
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» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consalidated Ind AS Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the ability of the Holding Company and its associate to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the
related disclosures in the Consolidated Ind AS Fnancial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Holding Company and its associate to cease to
continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Holding Company and its associate to express an opinion on the consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the Ind
AS Financial Statements of such entities included in the consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement of which we are
independent auditors, For the other entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which
have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in
the consolidated Ind AS financlal statements of which we are independent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding Independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other_matters that
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Others Motters

(a)

The consolidated financial statements also include the company’s share of net Loss of Rs.27,102.09/-in
hundreds) for the year ended 31" March, 2023, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in
respect of one associate, whose financial statements/financial information have not been audited by us. This
financial statements,/ financial information have been audited by other auditor whose report have been
furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this assoclate, and our report in terms of sub-
section (3) and (11) of section 143 of the Act, In so far as it relates to the aforesaid associate, s based solely on
the report of the other auditor.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that;

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(e

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of aur audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements,

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and reparts of the other auditor.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements,

In our opinion, the aforesaid Consalidated Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, read with relevant rules.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31st
March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the
statutory auditor of its associate company, none of the directors of the Holding Company and  its
associate is disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2)
of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure —A" ‘“J_FH"
: f %] P‘

With respect to the other matters to be incuded in the Auditor's Repm:t/ ‘ifl’ }garda)c&‘n with the

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended.

:1'

I"'
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In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act.

{h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

The Consplidated Financial Statemenis disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
financial position of the Holding Company and its associate [Refer Note 39 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements].

{li} The Holding Company and ils associate did not have any long-term contracts including derivative

contracts for which there were any materlial foreseeable losses.

{iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its associate company.

{iv) (a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its associate have represented to us and the

other auditor of such associate that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested [either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(iv) {b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its associate have represented to us and the

other auditor al such associate that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficlaries;

{iv) (c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

(v)

circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditor of the associate, nothing has come
to our and other auditor’s notice that has caused us to belleve that the representations under sub-
clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The Holding Company and its associate company has neither declared nor paig:
financial year. Hence, compliance In accordance with Section 123 of the Cémyp

(o)

s

applicable. s
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{vi) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility is applicable to the
Holding Company and its assoclate company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting
under Rule 11{g) of Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 |s not applicable for the financial year
ended March 31, 2023.

For SALARPURIA AND PARTNERS
Chartered Accountants
{Firm ICAI Reg. No. 302113E)
UDIN: 23042 L3 BOUNY M X 1AL

Sarvesh Kumar Singh
Partner
Membership No: 069367

Place: Kolkata
Date: 29-0C-%200%




Salarpuria & Partners

%. CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
7. C. R. AVENUE, KOLKATA - 700 072
Phone - 2237 5400 / 5401, 4014 5400 - 5410
website : www.salarpuniajajodia.com
e-mail - salarpuria jajodia@rediffmail. comn

office@salarpuriajajodia.com
Branches at New Delhi & Bangalore

ANNEXURE 'A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”).

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company as of and for the
year ended 315t March, 2023, we have audited the internal financials control over financial reporting of KANAK
PROJECTS LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company") and its associate Companies, which are
incorporated in India as on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the company and its associate company, which are Incorporated in India, are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over finandial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('ICAl'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financlal controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completenass of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an apinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audlt in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, [ssued by
ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit invoives performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reperting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor, in
terms of their reports mferred to in the {Hher Matter pamgraph below, is sufficient and apprnprra:e Lo provide a
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reparting and the preparation of financlal statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of contrals, material misstatements due to error or fraod may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections ol any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Campany and its associate Company, which is incorporated in India, have, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31" March, 2023, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated In the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financlal Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of india.

Other Matter

Our aforesaid report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls over f{inancial reporting in so far as it relates to one associate company, which is a Company
incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditor of such Company, incorporated in India.

For SALARPURIA AND PARTNERS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm ICAI Reg. No. 302113E)

UDIN: 23 0Ea 3L RBLUYMEIZLT

Y i ¥
Sarvesh Kumar Singh
Partner

Membership No: 069367

Place: Kolkata
Date: 29-0X-1091%




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
CIN : LEGT020WB1979PLCO3 1867

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023 e ioibo it i
LIPARTICIANS - Notes | 315t March, 2023 31st March, 2022
¥ TASSETN . L1, s taal g 4% =)= = m
11 |Non-Cuffent asets
(a) Proparty, Plant and Equipment i 93,025.44 121.250.90
() Imeestment Property & 1297 825248 1,301,426 69
I£) Fingdacial st
L Investments 5 B.9496,301.57 B.034.370.70
i Loany & . 1171, 706,01
iii, Othar financial assets 7 34,666 46 731,55%.91
{d} Oeferred Tan Assats (Net) 19 219.292.92 .
d) Other non:current asiet B 106, 717.35 B44.587.72
Total non-current assets B608 350 98 10,006,421.93
(2}  [Current assets
{a}  Imwentores ) 24065538
bl Firancial assets
I, Trade Becebvablos 10 36,656.96 324967644
i Ciah g Cash Eglivalents 1n 34,952 65 &7, 700,03
i Bank Balancet other than Cash & Cash Eguivalents 12 IR6.4T2.65 1059, 788,71
W, Losns L] 1,166,118.15 305, 202.04
v, Other financial asvets r 127,137, 18 154,835.76
e} Current Tax Assel [ret) 13 195, 52538 104, 181.62
{d} Other current aisets 14 153, 006,57 | 8,045.05
Total current assets 2,168,689.37 2.369.633.91
Total assets (1+2) 10,860, 240,35 12,376,075.85
AT — GOUNIY AND UARIITIES TECTITige: S AR, )
(a) [Fauiry
{a) Equity share caplipl 15 445,240.00 &45 740,00
(b) Oiher squity i PAZT. 254,13 11,102,541 52
Total equity 10,272, 454.12 11.548,161.54
(B} |UABILITIES
(1)  [Mon-current labilites
fal  Fimancial Liabiiies
|, Borrowing 17 & 4B6 73 11,713.43
il @ther financial liabi|ities 18 27307736 193,635, 88
(b} Deferred Tax Liabilities {Net) 15 - 28.801.27
[l Oiher Non- Currant llabiities X0 180,495, 74 104, 208 54
Total non-current abilitios 467, 063.12 342 563.18
(2} |Cosrent labilities
{2 Firancal Liakbilitiey
| Barrowings 1 T.1F 18 667345
i, Trade Payables
(Al total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 3ad small enterprises; and 9,080.43
(1) tatal outstsnding dues af creditons ather than miom enterprises and small grterprises » 14,801 %2 48,355.61
lil. Other finamcinl [abiliies 3 16,9%2.02 13, 740.61
[b} Cusren: Tas Lisbility (net) 13 -
[c) Chther carrent kakillithes id 61,5%4 62 15408 13
[d}  Provisiond 5 17 E35.56 | 373,066 44
Total current Nabilities 124,650, 50 485 351 47
Total liabilities [142) 595, 754,23 KX7 94,35
Tetal equity and lisbilites (A+8) 10,868, 248.35 12,376, 075.85
|

Sheniflcant Accounting Policies and Other Motes
The accompanying Notes are integral part of the Financial Statemeant
As per our separate report of even date sttached,
For SALARPURIA & PARTNERS

For and on behatf of the Board of Directors

e
Charered Accountants ! g
Firm Rog, No.J02113€ M{ M M@,
: Sudhie Prakash Anshuman Prakaih
[Managing Director) [Mrector)
A - » DIN-00434020 DIN-00434309
Sarvesh Kumar Singh } - 4 IS
Fa— / g _,I h %ﬂ /gl % LMA [ .Ifi'
Membership No : 069367, = ( A | ;‘1 talita Karita Samal Ginnl Lohariwala
I\: % | ' )} [Chief Financial Officer) [Company Secretary)
Place : Kolkata ok e PAN-AKTPS 13910 PAN-AIYPLSABSC
pate ; 240530110 45




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
CIN : LETOZ0WB1979PLCD31867
Statement of Consolidated Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Ameeunt 9 burdreds

S FARTICULARS: |3 THEES S L 4 lm%&m’ m.u.n‘;ﬁwzm
|
I |Revenue
Revenwe trom Dperatons EL] 1,082,144.53 165491573
Cther lircaae 17 37318066 F15.481.07
Total Income {1 1,465,326.19 2,374 355 80
1. rﬂpense-.l-
purchaaes of Stock-ln-Trade m ThO,035.50
Changes in frvertories of Fnished Goods snd Stode-in-Trade x 340,604.36 10546548
Ermployes Benefit Expenig k1 170,065.22 1594, 55443
Finance Coats 1 31.496.55 19,152.73
Degreciation and Amortisabon Expanse 74,037.14 7533535
Cther Expenses 1 500.413.91 626,661.47
Total Expenses (1) 1.116,657.19 1,801,244.96
i |Profit/{loss) bofore share of profie/|loa) of an acsclate and exceptional iems (1) 348,668.01 573,146.84
I, |Share of Profit/[Loss) from Associates {net of tan) {27, 102.09] [#7,681.39)
V. | Profitf{loss) belore exceptional items and tax (1-1 321 566.92 4L, 46545
VI, |Exceptional iRema (2,037,324 44] .
Wil |Profit/ {loss) before tax (1H-V] {1,715,757.57) a5 46545
. Nincome tis expenye
Curnent tax 199,497 50
- Deferred tan {285,798.19] (28, 72L71)
Imcarmie Tax For Earlier Yoo 1197176 (17, 740948}
Total tax expensa (V1) {273, 826.43) 9303381
VIL |Profit for the year (V- i) 1,441,931.14) 45143165
Wil | Other Comprehensiva Income
Afi) ems that will not be reclassified 1o Profit or Loss
Chmpges in Falr Value of FVOC| Eguiry instrumants 205,056.02 bE, 58810
Reneasurements of post-employment defined bent |11 obdigataons (1,308,290 131.13]
Alii] Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified o (38.527.36) (4, BEE.08)
Profit or Loss
B{1) items that will be reclassilies to Profit or Loss
Changes in Fair Value of VOO Deby |nstrumenls 7.197 20
B{1i} Income Tas relating to itams that will be roclassified 10 A¥5.36 {235 35)
Profit or Less - .
VIL. [Total Comprehensive income for the period {V + Vi} {comprising profit flass) and ether 11,275 687.47) 58,385 30
|comprehensive income lor the period)
Wi, l[.'ﬂ'nnp per eguity share
Banic & Dikuted L IlLHIi 10.16

Significant Accounting Policies And Other Notes

The sccompanying Notes are ntegral part of the Financial Statement
As per our separale repart of even date attached.

For SALARPURIA & PARTNERS

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartared Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 302113F z /
Sudhir Prakash Anshuman Prakash
\ . |Managing D rectar ] (Directon)
Fa DiN-00434020 (31004 3450
Saruesh ar Shgh
Fanines - —
Membeship hes - DES367 /;‘T R ﬁ?".‘-‘. \ H ) E '
s a, e D
[ ) | - Cu»u
= 3D A o Kaglte Grrore/
L /,f Lalita Kanta Samal Ginnil Loharkwala
Mlace | Kolkata - 90 (chinf Finandal Officar] [Company Secratary)
Date : ) §.0C-200.% e Sy PAN-AKTPS1381M PAN-AIYPLS486C




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Statement of Consolidated Cash Flow for the year ended 3151 March, 2023

Amount m Hundreds

PARTICU Year ended
& 3 " ' - 1 \ 3144 f2ry &, iR " | -~
; ."_. LR r.l . AR i =l| :. | g i!:.:, ,.':1
AR T HE 41 ekl $ipt !

Cash flow from eperating acthvities

Profit before tax [1,688.655.48) 573,146,084
Adjustments for = .

Depreciation and Amortisation Espenses TA,037.14 75,33535
Gvidend on Investments {1,889.50) {4,144.60)

Espected Credit Loss on Finpncial Assets 11717780 .

Pravision Tor Doubtful Dabt 6,734.15 -

{Prafit)/Lows on Sale of Investrments (195,354 56) [195,676.21)
Finance costs 1,20757 347455
Met Gain on Firancial instruments messured at Fair Vale through Profic and Loss 55, 767.85 [218,345.62)
interest income (80,133 83) {181,103.76)
Income from Operating Activities before changes in Operating Assets and Taxes (1,711,809.06) 42,666.99

[Increase)/Decresse in inventories 340 6594 36 105 465 48
[(crease)/Decrease in Trade Receivalblas 286185133 [10,623.38)
|lincreaze)/Gecrease in Loans- Current 153,682,326 {80, 282.71)
(Irerease)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets- Currpnt (42,301.42) 131, 842.95

(increzse)/Decrease in Current Assets (145,007.32) 39,283.70

Increase/| Decrease) in Trade Payables 43,634 52) 16,005.65

incroave,/| Decrease) in Other Financlal Liabibties Current 12,223.30 (3.938.31)
Increase/| Decreass| in Other Current Liabilities [450.667.74) 307, 751.56

Cash pencrated from operstions 11,460,526.81) 642,195.97

Income taxes paid (103,096 52) {244, 700.90)
Net cash inflow from operating activities [1,563,625.33) I97,495.06
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment {3,779.75) (12,681.72)
Purchase of Investment Property (37.410.48) (336,355 00)
Payments for (Purchase)/Sale of investments |Met) {588 25076} (1,329,703, 34)
Interest Received 75.306.23 191 103.76

Drvdend Aeceived 1,889 .50 4,144.60

Fleed Deposits|net) 1.370.135 51 618, 730.08

Advance |Given |/Refurnd 53786037 {454, 500,00)
Net cash outflow from investing activities 1,355,754.62 {1,319,261.62)
Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid [L207.57) [2.474.599)
Loan/ Advance Taken (6.679.95) (6.679.85)
Loan) Advance Paid [5,018.57) (38,650.02)
[Mepaymant)/ Acceptance of Security Deposit (Net) 188,000,591 4,455 90

Nt cash inflow [outflow) from financing activities 175,0093.43 (43,944.97)
Met increase [decrease] in cash and cash equivalents (32.777.28) [965,711.52)
Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the financial year 7,709.93 1,033,421 44

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 34.932.65 67,709.93




p

KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Statemen! of Consolidated Cash Flow for the year ended 31si March, 2023

Amowet (n Hundreds

PARTICULARS As At As At
: Alst March, 3lst March, 2022
2023 1)
[Fl

Balances with banks
- On Current Atcounts 707213 A2.712.36
Chegues on hand 24, B81.45 21272357
Cash on hand 2.279.07 127400
Balances as per statement of cash flows 34,532.65 &67.709.93
Mote :

(il The above Cash Flow Statement has been preparsd under the "Indircet Method® 35 preseribed under Indian’ Accounting Standard 7 (ind AS 7)
notified in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013

[#) Previous year's figurss have been regrouped) recasted wherever necessary
As por our separate report of even date attached hereto

Far SALARPURIA & PARTNERS
Chartered Accoantanis For and on behatf of the Board of Directors
Firm Reg. No.302113E

sarvesh Kumar Singh Sudhir Prakash Anshuman Prakash
Parimer [Managing Dirsctar) |Director)
Membarship No - 063367 DIN-00434020 HIN-DDA 3909

: *

4 ' M i
,.éq{;é.,r f’(_:rffﬂ’; LJ/J;)??‘?W! t)’-"‘*"

bue - 24 SeiaRanin S Ginni Lohariwala

pae : PH-DC-L0OLY | (Chied Finandial Officer| (Company Secratary)
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KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes (o the Consolidated Financlal Statement as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

CORPORATE INFORMATION
KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED bearing CIN - LE70Z20WB1979PLCO31867 is a Public timited Company, bsted in Calcutta Stock

Exchange, incorporatad In India on February 51979 with the name Sreela Chem Industrial Investment Limited, Further on 21st
November 1988, the company amalgamated with Kanak Investments Limited, Semni Valley Investments Private Limited and
Kytharam Investments Private Uimited and changed 15 name to Kanak Prolects Limited as per the High Court Order. The
reglstered office of the Company is situated at 41, Chowringhee Road, Kanak Bullding, Rolkatn 700071

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of renting of Immovable properties. Its allied business activity also includes
invosting, acquiring. holding or otherwise dealing In shares, stocks and ather securities.

The financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023 was approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the company
on 29 th May, 2023 and subject to adoption by the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

MNOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1 Significant Accounting Policies
a) Stotement of Compliance with Ind A5
In accordance with the notification dated 16th February, 2015, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. the Company has
adopled Indian Accounting Standards (referred Lo as "Ind AS") notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rubes, 2015 (es amended) with effect from 1st April, 2016 with restaternent of previous year figures presented |n this
financial statements. Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS preseribed under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ["Act") read with Rule 3 of the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as smended from time to Lme,

All the Ind AS issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies (Indlan Accou nting Standards)
Rulas, 2015 (as amended) til the financlal stalements are spproved far lssue by the Hoard of Directors has been considered
in preparing these financial statoments,

b) Basis of preparation and presentation

The linancial stastements comply In all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notitind under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Acl) [Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015) and other relevant
provisions of the Act

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in canformity with ind AS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumations that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Acteal results could differ from those estimates. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to sccounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate Is revised if the revision affects only that period; they are recognised in the period of the revision and
future pariods if the revision affects both current and fulure periads

c) Basis of consolidation
The Company consalidated entity over which the company has significant Influence. The Consolidated Financial Statemerits
comprise the financial statements of the Company and profits of its Associates:
Associates are the entities over which the Company has significant influence but not control, Investment in Associates are
accounted for using the “Equity Method of Accounting'. The investment s initially recopnised at cost, and the carming
amount |s increased or decreased to recognise the investor's share of profit or loss of the investee after the acguisition
date The Company's investment in associates includes goodwill/capital reserve identified on acouisition

d) Historical Cost Convention
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basls except for certain items which are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, s explained below:

{1} certain financial assets and Habilities that is measured at fair valus:
{il} defingd benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value;




———

KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement as at and fer the year ended March 31, 2023

g) Operating Cycle
All assets and fiabilities have been classified as current or non - current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and
othier criteria set out In the Schedule 1| 1o the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the pature of products and the time betwean
the acquisition of assets for processing and thelr realigation In cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained
their operating cycle as twelve months for the purpese of current — non-current classification of assets and Fabilities.

) Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic
enviroment in which the Company operates (“functional currency”™ k. The financial statements are presgnted in indian
Rupees(As.), which is the functional currency of the Company,

2 Revenue Recognition
Revenue s recognised to the extent that it is probable thal the economic benefits will flow Lo the company and the revenug
can be reliably measured,

Effective April 1 ,2018.the Company has applied Ind AS 115 Revenus from Contracts with Customers which establishes a
comprehensive framework tor determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognised. The Company has
pdopted Ind AS 115 using cumufative effect method, The impact of adoption of this Standard on the financial statements al
the Company is insignificant

al Rental Income
Lease rentals are accounted for on accrual basis.

bl Interest Income
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis tlaking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable
interest rate.
Interest income is included wnder the head “"Other income” in the Statement af Profit and Loss.

¢} Dividend Income
Oividend mcome is recognised when the Company's right to recefve the dividend is established Le. in case of interim
dividend, on the date of declaration by the Board of Directors; whereas In case of final dividend. on the date of apgroval
by thir sharshiniders.

d) All other income are accountsd for on acorual basis.

3 Expenses

All expenses are accounted for on accrual basis,

4 Property, plant and eguipment
Freehold land is carried at historical cost. Al other items of property, plant and squipment are stated at histarical cost less
sccumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any

Historical cost of an assel includes the purchase cost of asset, including import duties and non-refundable taxes, and any
directly attnbutable costs of bringing an asset to the location and condition of its intendad use.

Subgeguent costs are included in the asset's carrying smount or recognized as a separate assel, as appropriate, onlv when it is
probable that fulure economic benefits associated with the ltem will flow to the campany and the cost of the ltem can be
measure reliably, The carrying amount of any component accaunted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All
other repalrs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reparting period in which they are incurred,

{8) Depreciotion methods, estimated useful lfves and residual value
Freehold Land iz not depreciated. Depreciation |5 calculated using the written down method to allocate thelr cost, net of
their residual values, over thelr estimated useful lives,

The useful |He is taken as per prescribed useful lile in Part C of Schedule || to the Companias Act, 201
values (5%) and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting p

AN assel’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount ¥ the asset’s Eaﬁ‘rvﬁn\a a

than its estimated recoverable amount. 3 ay

¥ 3 - |- I 3 h‘ __l' -‘-
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing procesds with carrying amount, These are any!d__qy_‘:m,mﬂt or
loss within other gains/{losses)
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5 Investment Proporty
Investment properties include those portions of land and bulldings appurtenant thereto that are held for long-term rental yields
and/or for capital appreciation and properties under operating |eases, that is held for long-term capltal appreciation or for a
currently indeterminate use but not for sule |n the ordinary course of business, use In the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposas.

Investment properties like land are initially recognised a1 cost and Investment property like building is recorded at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumuiated impairment losses, if any. These are also subject to rengvations or improvements at
regular intervals. The cost of major rencvations and improvements |s capitallsed and the carrylng amounts of the replaced
companents are recognised ih profit or loss. Tha cost of malntenance, repairs and minor improvements is recognised In profit or
lass when Incurred.

On dispasal of an [nvestmiont property, the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount s recognised [n
profit or loss,

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual valie:

Frezhold Land is not depreciated. Depreciation is calculated using the written down method to allocate their cost, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives.

The useful life is vaken as por prescribod vseful life in Part C of Schadule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013, The asset’'s residual
values (5%) and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting pericd.

& Inventories
Securities held as stock-in-trade
a) Securlties acquired with the Intention of short-term holding and trading positions are considered as Inventories and shawn
as current assets
b} In respect of securities held as inventories, brokerage and stamp duty are written off as revenue expenditure.
¢) The securities held as inventories under current assets are valued at Falr Value using Ind AS 109 - "Financial instruments’,

Building held as stock-in-trade

a) Bullding acquired with the intention of shor-term holding ,trading positions and to earn reptal income (5 considered as
Inventories and shown as current assets

b} The building held as inventories under current assets ks valued at Cost.

7 Borrowing Costs
General and specific borrowings costs that are directly attributable to the acguisition, construction or production of a qualitying
asset are capltalized during the period of tima that ls reguired to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Quialifying assels are assets that necessarily 1ake substantial period of time to get ready for mtended use or sale
Investment income earned on the temporary Investment of specific borrowings pending thelr expenditure an gualifying assets
Is deducted from the borrowing costs eliglble for capitalization.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the peried in which they are incurred,

8 Leases
Effective from 1 April 2019, the Company has applied Ind AS 116, which replaced the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 Leases
and other interpretations.
The Coampany at the inception of a contracl, assesses whether a contract, [s or contains a lease. Further such lease is classified
as either Financial Lease or Operating Lease:
Financial Lease - Agreements are clasilfied os Financial beases, i substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to awnership
of the leased asset Is transfarred to the Lessee.
Operating Lease - Agreements which are not classified as finance leases are considered as operating lease.

a) When the Company is a lessor
Leases in which the Company does not transfier cubstantially all the risks and rewarnds of ownership of a
as operating leases, Payments recelved under operating |eases ara recognized as income In the Staten
on a Systematic basls over the lease term,




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes 1o the Consolidaled Financial Stalement as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

b) When the Company is a lessor

Ind AS 116 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting made! for lessees where a lessee recognises a right-af-
use ["ROU") asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make
lease payments. The nature of expenses related to those leases will change as Ind AS 116 replaces the operating lease
oxpense (i.e., rent) with depreciation charge for ROU assets and interest oxpense on lease liobiities.

9 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingant Assets

al

b}

c)

dl

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to ssttle the obligation,
Provisions afe nol recogiised for future opérating losses.

If the effect of the time value of money iz maleral, pravisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at current pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value af money and the risks specific 1o
the liability.

When discounting is used, the increase in the passage of time |s recognized as finance casts,

The amount recognized as a provision Is the best estimate of the consideration reguired to settle the present obligation as
at the balance sheet date, taking Into account the risks and uncertainties surround|ng the obligation.

When same or all of the economic benefits required Lo setile a provision are expected o be recovered from a third party,
the receivable is recognized as an asset, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
recetvable can be measured reliably. The expense relating to provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss, net
of any reimbursement.

A contingent fiabélity is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits s remotea.,

If it becomes probable that an outfiow of future economic benefits will be required for an item dealt with as a contingent
lighility, @ provision is recognized in the financial statements of the period [except in the extremely rare circumstances
where no reliable estimate can be made).

A contingent ssset s not recognised In the financial statements, however, s disclosed, where ‘an inflow of economic
benefils is probable.

When the realisation of Income is virtually certain, then the related assel is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised
as an asset.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assels dre reviewead al each balance sheet dals,

10 Impairment of Assets

aj

bj

MNon-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, Investment property and Intangible assets are evaluated for recoverabllity whenever events
or chenges in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the carmying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

The rocovorable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lawest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units).

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-lax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Il at the balance sheet date there s an Indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the
recoverable amount s reassessed and the impairment loss previously recognized |s reversed such that the asset is
recognired at its recoverable amount bul not exceeding written down value which weould have been reported if the
impairment loss had not been recognized.

Financial assets
The Company recognizes losy allowances using the expected credil loss [ECL) model for the financial assets which are not
fair valued through profit or loss.

ECL impairment loss allowance is maasurad at an amount egual to lifetime ECL
ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognized during the period i€ recognized as incam

presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the Balan
reduces the net carrying amount.

armount.
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11 Taxes
Income 13y expente comprises currsnt 1ax and deferred tax and s recognized in the Statement of Profit snd Loss excapt to the
extent it relates to items directlv recognized in Equity or in OCL

b)

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovared from or pald to the takation suthorities using the tax rates and tax laws that are enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date and applicable for the period.

Current tax items in correlation to the underlying transaction relating to OCl and Eouity are recognized in OCl and in Equity
respectively

Management periodically evaluates positions taken In the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be pald to the tax authorities,

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabllities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settie the liabilities
simultaneoushy

The amendment in Ind A5 12 regarding the Income Tax uncertainty over Income Tax treatments clarifies the recognition and
measurement requirements when there is uncertainty over income fax treatments. In assessing the uncertainty, an entity
shall consider whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment.This notification is
effective for annual reporting perlods beginning on or after April 1, 2019, As per the Company's assessment, thare are na
material income tax uncertainties over income tax treatments.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
recognized lor deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and thelr
carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not & business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits
or loss a1t the time of the ransaction.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax crodits and any
unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temparary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed al each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer prabable that sufficient taxable profit will be avaitable to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recoverod,

Deferred tax assets and liabllities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
reakised or the llabilty is settled. based on tox rotes (and tax [aws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted ot the
balance sheet date.

Diferred tax assets Include Mintmum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws 1o the extent it is likely to
ghae future economic benellts in the form of ovaiability to set off against future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is
recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be meaturod rellably and it is probable that the

future economic benefit associated with the assel wil| be realised.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax |labilities are offset If a legally enforceable right exists to set off deferred tax assets

against deferred tax labilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority

12 Earnings per Share

a)

B

&)

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing thie net profit/(loss) after tax by ine weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit/{loss) after tax by the welghted average numbar of
equity shares considered lor deriving basle earnings per share and also the welghted average number of equity shares
which could be issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential eguity shares are
determined as ol the end of each perlod presented. Dilutive potential equity shares m e determined [ndependently for each
period presented.

The number of equity shares and potential dilutive equity sharas are adjusted retrospectively fo
any share split and bonus shares [ssues including for changes elfected prior to the approval of .
the Board of Directors.
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13 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash eguivalents in the Balance sheat comprise cash on hand, chegues on hand, balante with banks on current
accounts and short term, highly liguid [nvestments with an original maturity of threge months or less and which carry
Insignificant risk af changes in value.
For the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, Cash and cash equivalents consist of Cash and cash equivalents, as defined above
and net of outstanding book overdralts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management,

14 Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is sdjusted for the effects of transactions of a
non-cash nature, any deferrais or acoruals of past or fulure operating cash receipls or payments and item ol income or
expenses associated with investing or financing fliows. The cash Nows from operating, investing and financing activities al the
Company are segregated

15 Employee Benefits
a) Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employes benefits in respect of salaries and wapges, Including non-monetary benefits are recognised as an
expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year In which the related service @8
rendered,

b) Defined contribution pans
The Company makes contributions to defined benefit schemes which are mainly administerad through duly constitute
Provident Fund contributions are in the nature of defined contribution scheme, Provident funds are deposited with the
Government and recognised as expense.
Past retirement defined benefits ie gratuity is funded with LICI and are determined throigh independent acturial valuation.

Fhe service costs and nel inlerest expense of ncome is reflected in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Gain or Loss on
account of remeasurements are recognised Immediately through other comprehensive income in the period in which they
Qeeur.

16 Financial Instruments

Financlal assets and financial labilities are rocognised In the Balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument. The Company determines the classification of its financial assets and financial

liabilitics at initial recognition based on its nature and characteristics.

(A) Financial Assets

{i} Initial Recognition & Measurement
All the financial assets are recognised at Fair Value an initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially
measured at transaction price, Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or Bsue of financial assets,
that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair walug on initial recognition,

The financial nssets include equity and debt securitles, trada and other receivables, leans and advances, cash and bank
balances and other financial instruments.

{ii} Subseguent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in the following calegories:
1) Atamortised cost,
21 At fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCH), and
3) At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

(o) Investment in Preference Shares ot amortised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are mat:
1} The asset is held within a business model whose objoctive is to hold the asset for collecting contractual cash fiows, and

2} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solefys
interest on the principal amount outstanding,
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subscguently measured at
interest rate (EIR) method . Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any di
and fess or costs that are an integral part of the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Methad

lising the Effective
m ofl acquisition
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{b) Investment in Debentures at amartised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ s measured atl the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met;
1} The asset is held within a business model whose objective Is to hold the asset for collecting contractual cash flows, and

2] Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
After initinl measuremont, such financial assets oare subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective
interest rate (EIR) method . Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acguisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the Effective Interest Rate {EIR) Method.

fe) investment in Mutual Funds at Fair Value through Profit or Loss [FVTPL)

The investments held in the |iquid funds whether belng debt or equity Instruments, generate cath flows that represemt
paymants of principal and Interest, However, the holder of the liguld fund at it's discretion has the option sell its
investments in order 10 optimise returns. Therefore, the cash flows paid by the fund to the unit holder comprise
gainsflosses on the instruments held by the fund, in addition to interest and principal cash flows from those
instruments

The business medel ebjective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling it's financial assets.
Therefore the ||quid funds are classified as Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

{d) lnvestment in Equity investments ot Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income [FVTOCI)
All equity investments in the scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value except In case of investment in assodiates
which are carried al cost, The Company makes such election on an Instrument by instrument basis.

All guoted eguity instruments are measured at fair value which is determined based on Level-1 inputs that is quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets and last traded prices.

All unguoted equity instruments are measured at falr value by taking into account the financial statements of such
instruments to the extent available to the Company.

If the Company decides to classily an equity Instrument at FYTOCE then all tair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognizad in OCI Thera is no racycling of tha amounts from OC) to profit or loss, even on sale
of investment.

Howeyver, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within eguity.

{iii) De-Recognition
The Company derecognises o financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset,

(B) Financial Liabilities

{1} Initial Recognition & Measurement
All financlal labilities are recognised Initially at fair value and, in the case of financial abilities classified at amortised
cast, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The financial labiiities Include security deposits ,trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, other financial instruments, etc.

(i) Subseguent measurement
For thir purpase of subsequent measurement, Financiy labilities are classifisd through amortised cost
Financiol Liobilities ot amortised cost
The security deposits are held for collecting the contractual cash flows {Le, original amount of deposit), which is the
principal amount outstanding (the interast being nil), It meets the criteria for measurement &t amaortised cost using the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The difference between the fair value of the deposits and the transaction price on initial recognitlon of the deposit s
accounted for separately as "Pre-recelved |ncome” shown under the head 'Other Financlal Liabifities’. The accounting
treatment for these will depend upon the nature of the element included in the deposits. Had the antity not placed the

deposits as flnante cost r;aiculited at the market rate of interest for such :Iepnmi
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(C) Offsetting of Financial Instruments
Fimancial assets and financial Habilities including derivative instruments are offset 1nd the net amount is reparted in the
Balance sheet, If there i currently enforceable legal right to offsel the recognised amounts and there is an intention 1o
settie on 8 net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneousily

(D) Fair Value Measurement

Fair value 1€ @ market-based measuromeni, not an entity-specific measurement, Under Ind AS, fair valuation of financial
instruments is guided by Ind AS 113 “Fair Value Measurement” .

For some assels and llabilities, abservable markel transactions or market information might be available. For other assets
and |labifities, observable markel transactions and marke! information might not be pvallable. However, the objective of a
fair value measurement in both cases is the same 1o estimate the price at which an orderly transaction 1o sell the asset or to
transfer the liability would take place between market participants at the measurement date under current market
conditions{i.e. an exil price at the measurement date from the perspective of a market participant that holds the asset or
owes the liability).

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair wvalue of financial instruments by
valuation technigue:

Level 1: Quoted prices [unadjusted) in active markets for ldentical assets or liabilitles.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices ncluded within Level 1 that are abservable for the asset or llability,
gither directly or indirectly.

Lewvel 3: inputs for the assets or Gabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs),

NOTE 2 : USE OF CRITICAL ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates, which, by definition would seldom
equal the actual results. Managemen! also needs to exercise judgment and make certain assumptions in applying the
Company's accounting policies and preparation of financial statements.

Estimates and assumptions
in the process of appiying the Company's accounting poficies, management has made the following judgments, which
have most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statement.

i} Estimation of Defined benefit obligations
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valustion involves making waricus assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes [n these assumptions, All assumptions are reviewed at each financinl year end

The parameter most subject to change s the discount rate, In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans, the
actuary considers the interest rates of government bonds. The martality rate is based on publicly available maortality
tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

i) Estimated foir value of unfisted securitics
The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market and cannot be measured based on
guoted prices in active markets is determined based on the networth of underlying companies,
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KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as al and for the year ended 3151 March, 2023

Note 4! Investment Property
Reconciliation of Carrying Amount

Amount in Hundreds

; GAsat 31st ‘Asat 31st
A March, 2023 March,2023
Freehald Land ;
Gross Carrylng Amount of Property
Qpening Gross Values 450,525.00 450,525.00
Balance at the end of the Year 450,525.00 450,525.00
Accumulated Deprecintion
Met Carrying Amount 450,525.00 450,525.00
Building
Gross Carrying Amount of Property
Opening Gross Values 1,000, 102.70 663,747.70
Additions During the Year 37,410.48 336,355,000
Balance at the end of the Year 1,037,513.18 1,000,102.70
Accumulated Depreciation
Opéning Balance 149,201.01 116,067.47
Depreciation during the year 40,991.93 33,133.54
Closing Balance 190,192.94 1459,201.01
Net Carrying Amount B47,320.24 850,901.69
Total 1,297,845.24 1,301,426,69




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes lo the Consolidated Financial Statements as al and for the year ended 31s1 March, 2023

Mote §: Non-Current Investments

{A] Quoted Shares (Measured at FVTOCI)
Aditya Birta Capital Lid, 10 m S63.67 10 in 39938
Adinya Biria Fashlon & Retail Ld, o 910 Lova02 10 Y L7
Mue Diamaond Sec.lid E 23 800 238,00 - 13,800 238,00
Chenngi Meerakthi Multispeciakty Hoapital 10 1.000 LRS.50 10 1,000 3160
Digiam Limirad 10 1 0.83 10 & 76.00
L Ltd, 10 W70 SE.108.50 10 977,500 é, 10050
Dunlap indiz Ltd 10 100 1.00 10 £l 1] l.o0g
El Forge . 50 050 50 D.50
Gillandars Arlbunates Co. Lid, 10 a4 1480 o 4 15.65
GMMCD Liemited . 15 015 . 15 015
Grasirm lndustoes Lid 2 65 432654 ] 265 4,409.53
Graat Fastern Shipping Co Ltch. 1 5 16113 10 5 BRI
Cugrat Heawy Chemicals Lid 18 500 1517758 1o 200 L7315
Hadeyburia T. E. Lad. 7195 1.795.10 7155 1.79510
Haryana Petrochermicals Lid. 4 S00 5.00 & 500 5.00
Himatsingha Sside Lid z BOD 552 80 5 00 1,204.00
LK. Coment Limited 10 & Laldas 10 45 119134
Inlpac fndis Ltd 10 300 3.00 10 300 1.00
Kakatiys Textied lnd, 1o 1,000 225.50 10 1,000 11150
KEP Ltd i 50 158,74 1 250 289,53
KCP Sugar and bedusties 1 250 58.E8 1 250 6263
Kitkotagin & Tharwmatal Plant Ltd 4 ] 4 00a
Mahindra Geszo Developers Ltd, 10 2 oo 1Q F ] 117
Manjushres Plentationa Lid B0 600 [101] 600
Mcleod Russel india 3 1314 122.05 5 1314 299.57
Methon| Tes Co. Lid. - &0 10400 a0 104,00
Midtand Rubber & Produce Co, Lid, Pt i 200 200 .00
Mefiamparhy Tes & Produce Co. Lid. 100 1D b1 1] 100
Peria Karamalal Tea & Produce Ca. Lid 10 i 95957 1o 38 1LOZ2664
R Cormmercial Lid. 1a 108,310 541550 1 108 510 541550
Sowrashira Chemical Led, 700 7.00 oo 70
Sunflag fron & Steel Co. Lid, 10 TS 1113735 1o 755 476.03
Unimears inclla Limdted L] e ] 4,50 1] TS 450
United Nilgiri Tess Estates Co. Ltd. 10 a5 121366 1a ALD 15311
Lniwerth indie ted, 10 350 350 10 358 350
Vikash WEP Ld 1 1,0 100040 1 1,000 33,50
Tatal (4] 78,990.21 19,146.40
{(B) Unguoted Shares
{1} b Associate (Measured at Cost) :

Lao len Tea Co.Pyi Lid, o000 B.000.05 8,000 E.000.00
Add: Accumaizted Share of Profit/|Loss) o 282, 976,00 . 310657 48
Acied: Cusrent Year ProfU\Loss) [E7 102090 {27,681 39

100) 263.474.00 I LI 6,09
(i} bn Others [Measured at FVTOC) -

Purhanchal Concast Pyt Lid 1N 2175000 A39 31642 1 2,175,000 354 900 ¥
Mangaimayes Vypar Pvt Lid 235000 7315835 1 135,000 73, 180,83
Ahinsha Properties Ltd, 104 19,67 61270218 1 19,670 53501575
Amrita Media Pyt Lid. 104 130,000 TAPR A7 1 120,000 RAGT.TI
Metropolitan Stock Exchange Lod, 1 100,000 54333 100,000 521 7%
DataMet Ecommror Servicad Lid 100 1750000 402 354 35 i 1,750,000 A58 596 0%

Tatal (i) 1,749,787.30 157167708




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Noles to the Consolidated Financial Statoments aa ut and for the year endod 3151 March, 2023

fAmount in Hundreds)
{4} n Associate:
Q.1% Cumulative Hedesmable Preference Shares of Laojan 100 BS,000 M,232 47 100 85,000 B0,030.44
Tea Company Frivate Limited
{B] In Others: : - -
&% Man Camiilative Non- Convertible Redeemabie 100 400,000 1M,315.16 00 a0n,o00 366.137.30
Preferance Shares of DL Limited
8% Nown Curmulative Non- Convertitde Redeosmalie 100 250,000 254,066.32 100 -
Preference Shares of DLX Lamited.
17% Dpthonally Convertible Cumulative Preferencs Shaies - @ 0.60
of Farm Enterprans Limitod
5% Mon Cumulative Non- Conyvertible Bedesmakle 100 150,000 109, 706E.13 100 150,000 108, 645.77
Preferunce Shires of Dataket Ecommerce Services Limived
5% Non Cemulstive Redeemanle Preference Shares of Praks 100 85,000 &1.813.90 166 B5 G0 81,218.69
Lintted Vestures Priveie Limted
BY Non Cumuiative Redesmable Prefesence Shanes of Jhills 100 250,000 251,681.66 160 250,000 T50.000.00
Promoten & Fincom Private Limited
0,0001% Comalative Compulsorily Convertible Prelerence 45 14,850.00 45 14, 550,00
Shires of Planys Techrologies P Lid,
Total (] 1,137 69573 BBO, HBG.BO
3] |investmentin Mutual Funds | Messuraed 3t FVTeL)
Eotak Balanced Advantags Fund e8] 2,065,732 309,500.50 10 1065732 298,208 91
KCICI Peu S Equaty Fund Hieg {0 10] L1562.059 203,930.22 10 - =
ICICT Pru - Technology Fund [G) 100 | 100 553,281 96, 384 79
050 Floater fusd 10 10 LATO 853 123,564.21
ICEC] Dividend Yisid Fouity 1o 63,568 1865351 10 63968 13540008
ICHE Pru Equeity Sasings Fund [a) 10| 3798165 BS0. 12867 10 3,798 185 B5%3 JEa 48
ICIE] Prie- Floating Interest Fusd (G) 100 i 0,860 3609 47
ICICI Pre- Ultra Shorl Teem Fund Reg (G 10 - ] BBO, 247 157 46909
ICIC| Pru Strategic Metal & Enargy 10 10 LO60.113 485 752 98
ICIC] Pru - Al Season Bond Fund [G) 10| L5934.638 S5 21843 10
ICIC] Pru - Large & Mideag Fand Reg (G] Le0 £7.633 230,508 03 104 -
U1 Chvidend Yiild Pian {G] 100 15,018 1533936 100 15000 15,800 K2
580 Sovings Fund Reg {G) 0| 2812377 1,081,228 39 10 2027508 68307658
581 Banklng & PEU Fund Ragular (G} 1,000 18,952 500, 000 00 1,000
|Franklin India 5T income Segregated 3{9.5% Yes Bank) 1,060 BEY 81250 1,000 BES 61750
Franklin ingia 57 income Segregated 2 10099, Vo o) 1,000 asy S20.58 Looco 147 656,33
Total (D) 1,513,117.57 1,669,647.57
'.‘1 AV ESTmeT - PRl  LITIECL] 3 PATTRLIT R SLLY LT
EN Urmorurmg Debinsate Sonvertibi Dobrafures of Delait 1w 400000 447,210,795 1000 sooopoon| 41403275
Ecommerce Senvices |imsited
Total (£ A47,210.7% 414035275
5] |investment in Bonds(Measured at FVTOCI) ;
&.%9% B.0.B Bords - - 418,580.00
‘Totallr] . 218 980.60
] TOTAL | AB+C+D+E+E) | [ 5,086,801.57 |




9L SERYS'T T66BE'TE' L STLET'LE'T | 9v'999°pE | SISy [EIUEUY 230 |E30L
- OO'OEZ'IT'L - DO'DER'LT | SHIMOW 7] UBL) 2401 AJUnELW Suiney ssodag paxy
LEPITED'T . T18'925'SE'T . HQEA@IEY Sy F seahopdw 0 SaouBARY
£TovZ0z s - - Spling (BRI B S8aEyS J0 aseynd jsuele avueany
19 LvL'ET = - - SRUNUBGRM PUE SPUDE
POEZL LY LB Iva'E I9'ERO'T I6L0T'L susodag paxid
= = 19'9ET - SURS
* | - Y6 ERT - sysodag AjLnaas
. . . {PaNAIoY 1RO B
= . s - SIAYIO
- POATTET : VYS'EELIT ysodag AJunoag
i - - 5 pool palapEuod ‘painaatun
TZOTWPIEA TR N Sy :

FRspUn W Lol

SISSY [BIIURULY JOUI0 - FISSSY [E2URUL If 310N

(uosiaoud jo ssouB)(-/en @L6'0L pT S8 "Ad)-/ 6L'SEZ'ER LT SY 01 SiUnowe Adied pajeial o) puBwap ue ajgededas veo Bupuesing 0N

POZOT'SO'E T09LL'TL'TT ET'8TT'39TT = SUED] [e30]
* - - pagieduw; HpeJd J0) BILEMO [y (55
= - = pa | PRl - Sajoeaoay sura {@)

¥S|E nparg ul
i : : oIEALU IuRN Il ARy YIILA S3)QEN 320y SumaT (2]

oF arE'az FIVSS'ES'T - {paInadiu - pool pasapuund 40|qeA|030Y o (g)
- - - ‘palnass - pood palapiEw0D sTjgesanay suen (e)
- - - - R8I0 0f suED]
- - oo 2LT'LT'T) - pasediu JpRid J0) SIEMOjY 5531
2 - 0oLl TLIT . Do et 300 - sajgeaianay suro [p)

N5 Jpas u)
> i i FEEROU] JURIGILEIS AMBU LM SHOeMEzaY sueo {3)

PLGER'BL'T LRTZTET'DY BL'BIS'ITT . _ {painsasun « pooll paIBpUND S3|qeA| a3y sueo (d)
. . = ipaindas - pood paldapisUod sapqeAEdaY sueo (1)
= * <SR PAIEFY 01 SUED)

JuaLIng JUBLINI-UON JuBLINg SUAI-UON
SHYINJILYYY
TROC Yo ISTE 18 5y EZOTY20eiA ISTE 10 5y

SP3PUN L) JUnOLLY

LUBOY - TJASEY (B|IUEULS (9 BY0N

ETOT ‘yMEW IS LE popud Jead aiy) J0j PUE |B §E SIUDWIGEIS [RIDURUL] PATRIHIDSUDT] 9] 01 SHlON

IALIAIT SLOIr0Hd HYNVH




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Nates to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Note 8: Other Non-Current Assets

{Amaunt in Hundreds}
PARTICULARS » | As at 31st March,
Capital Advances 106,727.35 644 587.72
Total of Other Non-Current Assets 106,727.35 644,587.72
Note 9: Inventories
{Amount in Hundreds)
PARTICULARS JAs ot 31st March, | As at 31st March,
o e |1 Tt 20025
Equity Shares 340,694.36
Total Inventories 340,694.36
Note 10: Financial Assets - Trade Recelvables
{Amount in Hundreds)
PARTICULARS As ot 313t March, | As at 315t March,
(a) Trada Recelvables considered good - Secuned . -
(b} Trade Recelvables considered good - Unsecured 36,656,960 329,6760.44
(€ ) Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk - -
{d] Trade Recoivables - credil impaired 13.369.16 27,042 .78
Less: Allowance for Credit impaired 13.369.16 27,062.78
Total Trade Receivables 36,656.96 329.676.44
Reler Note- 41(i) for Trade Feceivables Ageing Schedule
Note 11: Financial Assets - Cash and Cash Equivalents
fArmount in Hundreds)
=S e PARTICULARS e o As at 315t March, ﬁmaﬁ;;zm@
Batance with Scheduls banks
= On current accounts 177213 42,712 36
= On Fimed Deposits having maturity of less than 3 months
- Dn Fimed Deposits having maturity of maore than 3 manths but less than 12 manths 38647265 1,059, 288.71
- On Fixed Deposits having maturity of more than 12 months 11,230.00 711,230.00
Less:
On Fed Deposits having maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months [3BE,472.65) 11,059,288.71)
transferred to Bank Balance (Refer Note - 12}
- On Fixed Deposits having maturity of more than 12 manths transferred to Other (11.230.00) (#11,230.00)
Financial Assets Refor Note- 7)
777213 42,712.36
Chegue an hand 14,881 45 12.723.57
Cash on hand P N 2,279.07 2,274.00
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents ,";;,5——-{ s 3493265 67,709.93 |

[=/

periods,

There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equtuili-nt:%at the |¢Ad of the reporting period and prior




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the yvear ended 31st March, 2023

Note 12: Financial Assets - Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents

{Amount in Hundreds)

PARTICULARS As at 315t March, | As at 31st March,
- On Fived Deposits having maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months * 386,472.65 1,059,288.71
Total 386,472.65 1,059,288.71 j

* Fixed Deposits under lien/pledge ( Refer Note 21 Financial Liabilites- Borrowings)

{Amount In Hundreds)

[PARTICULARS. pAsar i cthnrch, || A= atciast Niarch,
m: 2022
- Fixed Deposits under lien/pledge
- Fixed Deposlts not under | len/pledge 397,702.65 1,770,518.71
Total 397,702.65 1,770,518.71

Note 13: Current Tax Assets/[Liability) (Net)

(Armount in Hundreds)

PARTICULARS A3 at 31st March, | As at 31st March,

w23 2022
Advance Income Tax & TDS [Net of Provision) 195,525.38 104,181 62
Total of Current Tax Assets/|Uability) (Net) 195,525.38 104,181.62

Note 14: Other Current assets

fAmount in Hundreds)

'PARTICULARS . ‘A5t 31st March, | Asat Smmarrl'h.'

2023 2022
Prenaid Expenses 136,339.85 3.978.26
Advance (o Vendars 16,706.52 4,066,79
Total of other non-current assets 153,046.37 B,045.05




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Nates to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 3181 March, 2023

Mote 15: Equity shane capital
{Amourst in Hundreds)

i | meouwsenzom | msSlMack202
W - A | Wo.ofshares |  Amountd) | (No.ofshares. | Amoum @)
| Autherised Shares
Equity Shares of B 10/ sach 5,000,000 S00.000.00 L, 00,000 SU0.000 00
500,000,000 5CHD, DD 0. D0
{tesuard, Subscribed & Pukd Up Shares
Eguity Shares of (8 10J- each fully paid up 4,452 400 24532000 4452400 84524000
Total 445,240.00 445, 240.00
{2l Reconciliation of shargs oustanding at the beginning & at the and of the ropoerting poried : (Aot in Mundreds)
; | mamumeenaon | aseoaemechezz
.; - - = - -_: —:__. et : = e ."__'-_._:,_;.___;L, -
— - - g fem ‘L%ﬁm_ i B ' :j#‘““]f»—.
At the beginning of the yoar 4,452,400 4,452,400 445,240,040
lssued during the year
Enm:tandin':l the end of the year 2,457 200 &85, 740,00 4,452 400 445, 240,00

B} Terms and rights attached to equity shares
Ihe compary has anly one clas aof Eguity Shares having a par valus of B W= per share, Lach hotder of Fguty chares b entitled 1o one vate per share, The
hoiders of Equity Shares ate entitied to receive dividends as declared from tima to me. The dwvidend proposed by the Board of Directors is sibject to the
epprovil of Shareholders in the enswing Annual Geperal Mesting excapt in taze of Interim dividend. |n e event of Liguidation, the holders of Equity
Sleariu will be entithed (o recenag the remalning assets of the oormpany ofler paprnent of ol prefereniial arrounts, in proportion of thelr shareholding,

(¢} Drisclosures of Shareholdings by Promoters
Sharos Held by Promaters st the snd of the yoor

As at 31st March, 2023
Promaten Manie N o ok bethl Shares m;m:imtu
M. Anshuman Prakash® 3,027,580 58.00%] _ .
hir. Nikhil Prakash 15,370 0.35% -
M. Pomsnam Prakash 53350 1.30% -
M. itadhika Prakash 215,850 4_85%] -
Wi . Suidhir Prakadh 1,350 0% -
Darshanbal Anand Prakavh K& Sons Privale Limiled 100 0,003} -
TOTAL 3,313,600 Ta.aT%
As at 31st March, 2022
5 N Nn.ﬂl’__shes % of total shares "?!ir b
|Mir. Anshuiman Prakash® 3,07 580 G, DO « |
[aae. Nikhil Prakash 15,370 0.35%
[Ms. Poonam Prakash 53,350 1. 20%]
[nas. Rk Prakash 215,850 P -
|, Sudhit Fraiash 3350 0.03%; -
|Basshinlal Anand Prakash & Sons Privete Lmited 100 0,002
TOTAL 1= 3,313,600 74.82% Z
] Detalls of shareholders heiding more than 5% shares in the company

ks e . L - T

Rl MR :
Equity Shares of 1 10//- Each

Mir, Arhusman Prakash * RU3T 580 68 0irisd 3027580 G, OO
Ahirsha Propertles Lid 926610 1 AI% 916,610 J0.81%

* Inctudes 29, 70,800 shares held as trostes of Anand Prakosh Family Tro

g -
12} Mo sharet have been resenved for-ssue under options and contracts or cammitments for the sale of Shares or diveitment i at the Ad *ﬁi :
{\ ’.,.-—\_h‘. ‘!‘\
T 50 W,
'k

fery

i} For the perlod of five years immediately precesding the date as at the Balance Shoat is propared : | '.'i
(i} Mo Shares hove been alloted s fully pokd up purtuant Lo contract|s] withowt payvinent being recived in cash
(i} Mo Shares have been alloted as fully paid up by way of boms shares.

[HI Mo Shares has been biought back by the Company.




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Noles 1o the Consalidated Financlal Stalements as at and for tha yoar ended 318t March, 2023

Mote 16: Other Equity

GENERAL RESERVE
Amainf in Hundreds
Az at 31st March, | Asat3XstMarch,
R, 2023 022
AL the begirning and at the end of the year 3,550 863.17 3,559.863.17
Closing balance 1,550, 863.17 3,559,863.17 ]
BETAINED EARNINGS
{Amaunt in Hundneds)
Iy i ‘A at31st March, | As ot 31st March,
PARTIC 1 FiLls i
i Hil 2023 LR T
|Opening balance 7.184,583.56 6,733,122.31
Add : Net profit/(loss] for the periad 11,441.931.14) 452 43164
Add | Rermeasurements of defined benelit obligation (net of Takes) (829.36) {870.39})
Add: Transfer trom FVTOC Reserve T1,19720
|Closing balance 5,749,020.26 7,184,583.56
FVTOCI RESERVE
(Amount 7 Hurdneds)
ARTICULARS ‘As at 315t March, | As at 31st March,
4 prink 022
Opening balance i58.494.81 29156567
et Gainy|Loss) on FYTOC! trmvestments 167,073.058 66.925.14
Leas Transfer to Retaned Earning on Sale of Delbt inventment {1,197 209
|Closing balance 518,370,659 358,494.81
TOTAL OF OTHER EQUITY 9.827,254.12 11,102.941.54

Nature and purpose of other reserves:

General Reserve

General Reserve is created and will be utilived [n compliance with she prowisions of the Adt

Retoined Earnings

Retained carnings ropresent sccumulatod profity/(losses) eamed by the Company and remaining undistributed as on date

FUTOCT Equity Investments

The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity instruments through ather
comprehensive income. These changes are gocumualated within the FVTOCO equity Investments resarve, The Lompany
transters amounts from this reserve 1o retained sarnings whaen the rlevant ity securities are derecojnied.




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Noles 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements as af and for the yvear ended 3188 March, 2023

Naote 17: Non Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings

{dmaunt in Hundreds)

A Asat3istMarch, | Asat3l1st Mar
Secured
Vehicle Term Loan from Bank* 11.713.43 18,393 35
Less: Current Maturity of Term Loan (7.227.18] (6,679.95)
Total Non-Current Finandial Liabilities - Borrowings 4.486.23 11,713.41
*secured by hypothecotion of vehicles fingnced and repeyoble in 48 instaliments falling due.
=payment Schedule of Vehicle Laan
Patriculars 2232024 20124-2025
Loar Amount Due to be Repoid 722718 4,486.23

Mote 18: Financial Liabilities - Other financial babilities

[Amdint in Hurgréds)

) o Asat 31t March, | As at 31st March,
PARTICUILARS 2025 - 2022
Security Deposits from terants i73071.3% 192.833.98
Total Other Non-Cumrent Financial Liabilities 273.077.36 192 B35 58
Note 19: Deferred Tax [Net)
— [Amaunt in Humdreds)
PARTICULARS 5 As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
=L m1 02
Difference between Accounting base and Tax base of Assets and Laballtics [28.801.27) 51.814.54
Add : Deferred tax sccounted for the year Jag 09419 123,013.27}
[Total Deferred Tax Liabilities/|Assets) (Net) 215,292 92 2880126
NOTE 13{A) : DEFERRED TAX RECONCILIATION
fimount in Mundreds)
T e = Asat3lstMarch, | Asat3istMarch,
= "mm = = 00 022
Deferred Tax Linbilities:
Fair Valuation of Other Asset and Liability T70,.400.47 158,440, 18
Total 176,499.47 158,440.18
Deterred Tax Asseta
Faar Valuation of Other Asset and Lability 2316385 43,786.92
Property Plant dnd Lguipment 12,965 86 13,134 54
MAT Credlt Entitiement -
Emplyes Benefits - Gratuity 3,338 4% 18294
Provision for Expenses 1.050.39 B8 ASH.00
Carried Forward Losses 355,173,583 =
Tatal 395,792.38 129,5637.91
Deferred Tax Liabilities/[Assets) (Net) {210,382 83) 28,802.27

NOTE 19{8) : RECONCILIATION OF TAX EXPENSE ON THE ACCOUNTING PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

[Amaunt in Hurdreds)

As at 31st March, As at 3151 March,
PARTICUILARS 2023 2022
Profit / [loss) befors Tax [1,661,553.39) 54546545
Applicabla Tax Rate 2517 25.17T%
Tax ushng the Company’s Tax Rate (425,000.81) 137.282.74
[Tax Effect of: - =
Exempt income, net of dualowances 14,035.65 (77,093.41)
Income chargeable under dilferent rates 30,366.14 {24,993.26)
Permanent Differences 13.815.64 13,583.62
Other Temparary Diferénces 47,075,137 (28, 722.71)
Other Non Deductible Expenszes 33,909.81 83,750.95
Inearme Tas far Earlier Yeur . 11.571.76 (17,740 98)
| Tax Expense recognimed in the Statement of Profit and Loss _ {273,826,43] 56,116.95




Notes 1o the Consofidated Financial Statements as al and for the year ended 31s1 March, 2023

Mote 20: Other Non-Current Habillties

{Ampunt in Hundregs)
. i A i | i | M
Pree- roceived rent on account of valuation of swcurlty depoit 1E3,499.74 1.04,188.57
Advance againit Property - 5,019.97
Total of Other Mon-Current Liabillties 1,89,448.74 1,08, 208.54
Mate 21: Financial Habllities - Borrowings
fAamount i Hundreds)
BT As a1 315t March, | Asat3lstMarch,
v PARTICLILARS Cages i “!.: =11
Loans repayable on demand
Secured
Working Capital Loan from Axiy Bank
Current Matufity on Long Term Borrowings- Vehicle Loan 121718 6679.95
Total Current Borrowings 7217.18| BETY.95
Mote 22: Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables
fAmount in Hundreds)
; - el e S e T | e = L
Trade payables
Total Qutstanding duet of Micra Enterprises & Small Entenprises 3,080.43
Tatal Outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises B Small Emtirpeises 14 B01.52 43,355.61
Total Trade Pﬂl‘lm 14,801.52 58.435.04
Aefer Note- 49 for Trade Payable Ageing Schedule
Disclosure of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises . {Amount it Hundregs)
: : = == As at 315 Mardh,
. - Hlll‘ﬂ.lul! - STt S iy
(I} Principal amount remaining unpaid (o any supplier a3 at the end of tho sccaunting year, I 9,080.43
{ii} interest due thereon remaining unpaid 1o any supplier as at the and of the accoumimg year NiL Nil
(i) the amount of interest pald by the buyer in terms el section 16 af the Micra, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {27 of 2000), along with the smount of e MIL ML
payment made 1o the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
L) The smount of interest due and payabie for the period of detay In making payment L il
(] The amaunt of interest accrued 2nd remalning unpaid 3t the end of each accounting year. - ML
{vi} The amount of further interast remaining due and payable even in the sucoeeding years,
until such date when the inerest dues above are actually pald to the small enterprise, for the
purpose of disaliowance of @ doductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and| MiL NiL
Medium Enterprives Development Act, 2006
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Notes (o the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 315t March, 2023

Mote 23: Other Finsncial llabilithes
(Amaunt in Huadreds)
= : A5 at 3131 March, As at 315t March,
PARTICULARS e L Ll
e 023 2032
Security Depaosits from tenants 6, 260,61 3,292.50
Oiher Advanced 7,631,563 844811
Liability for Capstal Gonds 13039.78 -
Tatal Other Financisl Liabilitkes 26,932.02 11, 740.61
Note 24: Other Current liabilities
jAmount In Hundreds)
el . Az at 313t March, As lt!'h; H:ﬂf&l.
Pre- raceived rent on sceount of valuation af wteeurity deposit 4284745 1881162
Sttutory Duss 15,382 49 16494 84
Interest Accreed and not due on Borrowdeps Bd.67 101 56
i Total Other Current Liabilities 61,894.62 35.408.13
Mote 25: Provisians
fAmoust in Hondreds)
= | Asat3lstMarch, | Asat31stMarch,
= : -5 | Asat3istMarch, | Asat3istMard
ARTICULARS. SRR 00
Employee Benefit- Gratuity 13 503,08 15,215 54
Provision for Bonys 433250 4,632.50
Provision for Reios & Taxes ‘ 35321840
| Total Provisions 1783555 373.066.44




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statemonds as at and for the year endod 3151 March, 2023

Hole 26: Revenue lrom Oparations

fAmount m Hundreds !

: L  For the year endéd Fﬂﬂﬂﬂuenmam
Rental Income®* 74024435 B16.86622
Sale of Shares 151,B01.62 350,445,086
Sale of Blllets - 68750931
Other Operating Revenue: -
Commefcial Surcharge 58,52 94,14
Total Revenues from Operations 1,092, 144,53 1,654914.73

* Includes Rental Income on account of Falr Valuation of Security Deposit amaunting 1o § 26.087.30/- (P.Y. T 19,297 25/-)

Mote 27: Other Income

['Ar?immf in M)
; TH Sl | Forthe yearended | For the year ended 315t
Tyl R b | 33stMmarch, 2023 p'ﬁmmmn
Interest
On Loais 2720602 66,137.77
= On Fixed Depaotits 27,550,00 H6.624.40
- On Bonds and Debenbures 19,763 28 3758959
On Secunly Depesits 6414 52 352.00
On account of Falr Valuation of lnvestments in Preference  Shares as per Effective 6,800.53 47,689.49
interest Rate (L) Method.
On accownt of Fair Valuathon of Investrments in Debertures st par Fective Interest Rate 33.178.00 30438 54
(ERR) Miethod.
Dividend Income 1,689.50 4,144 50
Profit on Redemption of Preferonoe Shares 2.519.59
Profit on Sale of Motual Fund 51,459.%52 140,551 58
Profit on Future 30d Option 758216
Profit on Sale of Scourities (Equity Shares) . 45,805 54
Sundry Balanca Written back 24, 88500 5
Provision for Bad and Doulitful Debts wrillen back 20,807.77 .
Miscellaneous [noome B9 1662 5157024
Fair Vahie Galn on Financial instruments £, 505, 1E 191.674.78
Total Other Income 373,181.66 719.481.07
Note 28: Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
{Armewe n Hundreds)
— e ol e :.'-_:__ e .' ..'EF “*d Mﬁ!ﬂ-wﬂm
Purchase of Shares 136,500,685
Purchase of Billets 643,534.83
Total Purchases of Stock-ln-Trade - 780,035.50
MNote 29: Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress
fArmcant ir MHurgrms)
o iamouaes | lctMarch, 2023 | Mareh,2022
lmnh‘niﬂ at th- E-.;Inninl n!' the year
Shares 320,654 36 446,163.85
Properties
Inventories at the End of the year
Shares 330,094 35
Properties
Changes In Inventories 340,654.36 105,465 .48
Note 30: Employes Benefit Expense
(Frmaunt i Mundrecs)
- e e Far the year ond thhnmfl‘lﬂﬂﬂﬂ“.
Salarwes, Wages, Bonut and Allowances 63,031 DD EB uj? e
Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Funds 7.668.80 631930
Durector Remuneration 2167200 94, 300,00
staff Welfare Expenses 7.491.42 24,9572 .50
Total Employee Benefit Expense 170,065.22 184,594, 43




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Mote 31: Finance Cost

{Amount in Hundreds)

SR For the yearended | For the year ended
' 31st March, 2023 | 315t March, 2022
Interest on Working Capital Loan EL'IEII‘E
Interest on Vehicle Loan 117772 1,686.32
Flpance Cost on account of Fair Valuation of Security Deposit 30,238.98 1567774
Interest on Rates and Taxes 29.85 1,188.38
Total Finance Cost 31.446.55 19,152.73
Note 32: Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
{Ameunt in Hundreds)
e For the yearended | For the year ended
Depreciation on
Property, plant and equipment 3304521 42,201.81
- Investrnent property 40,951.93 33,133.54
Total Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 74,037.14 75,335.35
Note 33: Other Expenses
{Amaouni in Hundreds)
) For the year ended | For the year ended
| . et isdenis] 31stMarch, 2023 |  31stMarch, 2022
Rent, Rates & Tawos 10,682 54 3,12,804.02
Insurance 756.56 2.196.16
Repairs to Bullding 1,40,248.26 1,61.939.49
Repairs to Plant & Machinery 6,006.76 3,785.12
Repairs to Others 11,404.07 4,741.52
Registeration of Lease Deed 1,979.10
Bank Charges 29.39
Rent 600.00 -
Office Expenses 254611 6, 760,28
Motor Car Running & Mamtenance Expenses 10.219.22 10,690.02
Donations & Charity{including Corporate Soclal Responsibility) [Refer 31,200.00 25,000.00
Mote 43 |
Loss on sale of bond 9,726.80
Advertisernent & Publicity 5,629.21 6,105.45
Securily Services 12,665.25 12,322.04
Printing & Stationery 1,528.60 958.95
Electrical Charges 14,211 46 13,786.33
Communication Expensis 1,092.85 1,880.23
Brokerage/ Commission 31.780.77
Legal & Professional Fees 44 68141 47.293.12
Baddebi 20,407.77
Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debt 6,734.15
Expected Credit Loss on Financial Assets 1,17,177.60
Auditor's Remuneration : .
- As Statutory Audit Fees 3,500.00 3,500.00
- A5 Tax Audit Fees 500,00 300.00
Travelling and Conveyance 5.575.86 3,155.80
Miscellaneous Exponses 5,548.07 4,335.55
Loss on Premature of FD 2,882.09 -
Sundry Balances Written aff 3,940.21
Director Sitting Fees 220.00
Share Specuiation Loss BAT. 18
Total Other Expenses 5,00,413.91 G,26,661.47
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34 Falr Value Hierarchy
The falr value of the financial assets and financinl Gablities are inchuded 8t the amsunt st which the instrument cowld be exchanged |1 8 curment
transacton between willing parties, ather than in a forced or Houldoton sale.

Thae following table provides the Tair value mesurement hisrarehy of the Company's awels snd llatlities. The Nnancial instrumedits sre catagorired into
three levels based on the inputs used to arrive at fair value measurerments s desorined below:

Lewed 1: Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active maskets for (dentics! assers or labllites
Leval 2: inputs ather than the quoted prices included within bevil 1 Uhat are obaervable for the ascet ar lability, either directly o indirsetly

Lieved 3: Inpuits for the it o lablity that are ot besed on observable market datn (unobservable lnpats)

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and lishilities as at 315t March, 2023 : {Amaunt in Hundreds)
Fair value measurement Uting
Guoted prices in Sienificant Significant
PARTICLILARS Reler Mot No Tatal active markets |observable inputs| sacbisrvable
{Leval 1) {Level 2) inputs
f{Level 3)
Azcets measured at fair value:
1 enils at Fair Vi D1 [FVTOCH 5
Ireestments in Quoted equity shares TR990.11 TH.980.21 .
imvestments [n Unguoted equity shares 1.493.513.30 = 1,493.913.30
It tmenta h Bands =
Investments in Unquated Prefersnce Shares 14 850.00 14,850 00
[nvestments at Fair Value throush Profit or Loss 5
Imestents | Mutuel Funds 3,530.117.57 353311757
Investments ai Amortised Cost 5
Invesitmisals in Ungquoted Preference Shares L1722 84573 - 1,122,845.71
Inv=siments in Debentures 5 447 210.75 - 447,210.75
TOTAL 6,690,927.57 78,930.21 3,533,117.57 3,078.819.79
Lisbilities measured at fair valus at smodized cost; I8
[Interest-tree Sacurity Depasit 279,337.97 - - 279.337.57
TOTAL LT I3T.T . . 270, 337.497
Quantitative daclowures baelr value measurement hlerarchy for pisets and Habllities oz ab 31t March, 32032 ;
Fair valie messarement using
Ouated prices in Stgnllcamit Significant
PARTICULARS Refer Note No Total sctive markets (obzervable inputs| wnobservable
{I.euul 1] |Level 2} Inputs
(Lowvel 3]
Assets measured ot falr value:
Investments at Fair Value through OC (FVTOC) 5
Investmerits in Quoted equily sharog 7914640 7904840 .
fnvestrments in Unguoted eguity shares 1,288.701.10 = 1,288 701 1
Invastments in Bonde 418.980.00 TR, 480,00
Investiments in Unguoted Preference Shares 14 850.00 - 1485 000 00
Investments at Falr Value through Profit or Loss 5
Irvestrments in Mutual Funds 1,66%9.637.57 2 659 8757
Investments st Amortised Cast
Invesgments i Uniuoted Praference Shares 866,036.81 . BE6,036.81
Investments in Debentures 5 414,032.75 - 41403275
TOTAL 5.751.391.63 T9.146.40 3,0840,627.57 4,053, T69.66
Inreratt-tree Seciitity Depodit 1B 196,132.48 ‘ 196,132 48
TOTAL 195,132.48 . - 196,132.48
There have been no transhers betwaen Level | and Level 3 during the year ended 32a1 March, 7027 or 3188 March. 2022
35 [Earning Per ouity Shary { ing A5 33)
| E pARTICULARS = SR T
(m)het Profit after tax avaidabie for Equity Shareholders (1,441,931.14) 452.431 64
{biweighted average no, of equity shares of 0 10/ each outstanding during the year y \ a5, 240 445,240
(¢}Basic/Diluted Eamings par Share {a)/{b) X b (32.35) 1016
Vel
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36 Related Party Disclosure:
Ihiatnd Party Disclosure in accordance with the hdtan Accounting Standard 24 :

=

= MWDFMW ShNp _-mm RELATED PARTIES
Key Management Personnel i Sudhir Prakath, Managing Director
2 Anshuman Prakash, Director
3 Neelima lajn, Director
4 Nikhil Prakash, Direcior
5 Sidhant Prakash, Director
f Nitln Xandol, Independent Diractor
T Princey Kandai, Independent Director
8 Lalita Kanta Samal, Chief Financial Officer
e Ginni Lohariwala, Company Secretary
Enterprises Owned or Significantly Influenced by Key 10 DLX Ltd
Managerial Personnel , or their Relatives 11 Amvrita Media Pyt Lid
12 Megapix Strips & Tubes Put. Ltd.
13 Darshanlal Anand Prakash B Sons Pvt, Lid
14 Barsana Farms Put Ltd
15 Arihant Solvex Put, Lid
16 |Datanet ECommerce Service Pt Ltd
17 |Purbanchal Cancast Pve. Ltd
Asscolate Companyih ';"F‘“' of which'the 18 Ahinsha Properties Limited
!Aﬂulm Company 19 Laojan Tea Company Private Lid.
{Ampunt in Hundreds)
As On AsOn
: NAME OF THE RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 315t March,2023 | 31st March,2022
' i) &)
1|Purbanchal Concnst PyL. Lid Provision for Expected Credit Loss 101,322 15
Interest 40,247 54
Closing Balance of Loan & interest 511,899.68 1,013,221.87
Liconse Fees Recelvod 98100 900.00
Mscellaneous Incorme B,631.79
Sale of Billsts B687,509.31
2 |DLX Led Lovan Glven 90,000.00
Loar Refunded 217.080.50 -
Interast 0.952.88 983447
Closing Balance of Loan B Interest 118,122.91
Purchase of Preference Shares 250,000.00 -
Redemption ol Preference Shares 300,000.00
Advance Given 2,925.86 31,135.93
Refund Of Advance 292586 27,235.33
3 |Arihant Solvex Pet. Lid Interost 14, 763.28 12,743.43
Loan Given 37,500 60, 000, 00
Loan Repaid 100, 000.00|
Closing Balance of Loan & Interest 111.518.78 160,732.83
4 |ahinsha Properties Ltd IntErest 26290
Loarn Given 50,000.00
Loan Bepaid 50,000.00
interest Outstanding 262.90
5 |Amritn Media Put. Ltd Reimbursemant Recelvable 5.214.69 5,023.24
6 |Barsana Farms Pvt Lid Licanse Fees Recelved 261.60 240,00
7 |Datanet ECommerce Service Put Lid Advances Given 160,000.00
Advances Repaid B, 000,00 106,000.00
Closing Balance of Advance 84,000.00
B|Megapix Strips & Tubes Pvt, Ltd. Provislon for Expected Credit Loss 1585541
Closing Balance of Loan & Interest 142,698.73 158,554.14
9 |Ginni Lohariwala Salary A LIVE S5 1,800.00 1,800.00
10 [Mitin Kandel Director Sitting Fees ,_qu b P 110,00
11 |Princey Kandoi Director Sitting Fees I . j . 110.00
12 |Anshuman Prakash Directors Remuneration =y "30,.624.00 30,500.00
13 |Nikhil Prakash Directors Remuneration W ¥/ 30,624.00 32,500.00
14 |Sidhant Prakash Directors Remuneration iy o=« 230,624.00 30,500.00
"1-..'-_ []
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37 POST RETIREMENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (IND AS :13 )
Defined Benefit Plans As Per Acturial Valuation
Gratuity { funded by the Company )
The scheme is funded and the fund is lying with LICI. The company has provided with the balance of the fund as at 01.04.2022
and 31.03.2023 and the information relating to the contribution made and the benefits pald out and interest earned during the
period from 01.04,2022 to 31.03.2023
Determination of acturial assumption depend on varlous factors such as the company's internal commercial and business plan,
various Industry factors, applicable economics factors, internal HR related policles (including and changes thereto), regulatory
factors, etc
Valuations are performed on certain basic sel of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framework which may very
overtime. Thus, the company is exposed to various risk in providing the above gratuity benefit which are as follows:

Interest Rate Risk : The plan exposes the company te the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rate will result in an
increase in ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability (as shown
In financial statements),

Liquidity Risk : This s the risk that the company is not able to meet the shart term gratuity payouts, This may arise due to non-
avallability of enough cash [ cash equivalent to meet the |iabilities or holding of liguid asset not being soid in time.

Salary Escalation Risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of
plan participants in future. Dervation in the rate of Increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of Increase in
salary used to determing the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plans's [lability

Demographic Risk : The company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of liability. The company |s
exposed to the cisk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumption

Regulatory Risk : Gratuity benefit is paid in accordence with the reguirements of the payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, There is a
risk of change In regulations reguiring higher graluily payouls.

SUMMARY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITY (BALANCE SHEET POSITION) [Amount in Hundreds)
,pﬁ ; ' . | [T R e e PR .. S

Present value of cbligation 38,975.594 35,121.13

Fair Value of Plan Asset 20,472 68 19,905.59

Unmmgnised Past Service Cost
Effects of Asset Ceiling - .
Net Asset [ (Liahility) (13,503.06) {15,215.54)

WINDUP LIABILITY / DISCONTINUANCE LLABILITY

LLLred ; As On 2
Dizcontinuance Liabiiity 41,115.33 35,132 28
Present Value of Obligation 36,975,894 35,121.13
Ratio [ Present Value of Obligation / Discontinuance Liability ){in%) F7% 100%

Current service Cost . . 1,544 .47 2,212.73
Loan / [Gain) on settlement - .
MNet Interest Cost 843.36 659,33

Benefit Cost [Expense Recognised In Statement of Profit/Loss) 2,487.43 2,872.06
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b. Other Com e Income {Amount in Hundreds)
JHliE ki) PARTICULARS | 315t March,2023 | 31t March,2022
Acturial gain/Loss on Obligation due to :
- change in demographic assumpptions - -
- thange in financlal asumptlions {1,139.34) 6E.06
- pxperignce variences | Le, Actual expeniance vs assumptions ) 221217 2,256.13
- others - -
Return/floss on plan assets excluding amounts Included (0 interest [ncame (24,.54) {201.08)
Components Of defined Benefit Cost Recognised In Other Compresive Income 1,108.29 2,121.11
¢. Change in Present Value of Defined benefit obligatien:
' ' PARTICULARS il | 315t mMarch,2023 | 315t March,2022
Present Value of DBO at beginning of period a5.121.13 28,787.02
Current Service cost 1,544.47 221273
Interest Cost 2177.651 1,799.19
Curtallment Cost/{credit} -
Settlement cost/|credit) B -
Employee contributlon -
Past Senvice Cost -
Acquisitions - -
Re-measurement [or Actuarial [gains)/Losses) Arising from
-change In demographic assumption =
-change in financial assumptions (1,138.34) a6.06
-gxperence vanance (e Actual experience vs assumptions) 2,727 2,256,113
others = .
Benefits paid - -
Present Value of DBO at end of period 39,975.94 35,121.13
d. in Fair Value of Plan As
TR : ' PARTICULARS 1N " [3istmarcha02a | 315t March,2022
Plan assots at beginning of period 19,805.59 18,237.76
Investmant Income 1,234.15 1,13%.86
Return on Plan Assels, Excluding amount recognised in Net Interest Expenses 24 B4 201.08
Actual Company Contributions 5,308.60 326.89
Fund Transferred -
Employee contributions
Benefits paid =
Plan assels at end of period 26,471.88 15,905.59
e, il cognl n balancesheet
PARTICULARS 305 March,2023 | 315t March,2022
Funded Status
Present value of Defined Benefit Obliagtion 30,075.54 35,121.13
Fair Value of plan assets 2647288 15,905.59
Funded Status [surplus/Deficit] (13,603,086} (15,215.54)
Effect of balanceshoret asset limit =
Unretngn[sed past service cost = s
Net asset/(libility) recognised in balancesheet P o
Net asset/(libility) recognised in balancesheet it the beginning of period 1\ [15,215.54) (10,549.26)
Expenses recognised in Income Statement o/ E£  \2487.83 2,872.06
Expenses recagnised in Other Comprehensive Income | _:I_I Ve ]15;'{0&29 2.121.11
Employer Contribution A 2 JE308.60 326.89
Net Acquisition / Business contributions - "'..”; "..-'r 2 .
Met asset/(libility) recagnised in balance sheet at the end of period <L) 1V 413,503.06) (15,215.54)




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 315t March, 2023

{. Major ies of plan Assets as % of Total
_ fAmount in Hundreds)
PARTICULARS 31st March,2023 | 31st March,2022
Fund Managed by Insurer 100%: 100%
TOTAL 100% 100%
. Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation
| 31st March,2023 | 31st March,2022
Expected Cash flow (valued on undiscounted basls) indlan Ragees: | it =
Expected Cash flow (valued on undiscounted basi PanRUPCES | s (W
1 years 2422987 17.409.41
Between 2 1o 5 years £,238.60 B.300.86
Between 6 to 10 years 10,118.37 9,014.55
More Tham 10 Years 12,882.78 11,985.93
The svearage duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of — —
balancesheet date (in years) e yr
h. Sonsitivity Analysis
: PARTICULARS 31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Biscount Rate |-/+1%) 41,181.83 30.880,79 33.862.85 3651895
¥ Change Compared To Base due to Sesitivity 3.04 -&.74% -3.58% 3.98%
Salary Growth({-/+1%) 3B,823.43 41,235.03 36,554.60 33.8B0B37
% Change Compared To Base due to Sesitivity -2.88% 3.15%: 4.08% -3, 74%
Attrition Rate (-f+ 50%) 39.866.60 4007417 35,140.93 35.098.98
% Change Compared To Base due to Sesitivity 0275 0.25% 0.06% -0.06%
Mortality Rate {-/+10%) 359.,951.45 39,999.56 35,125.79 315.116.33
% Change Compared To Base due to Sesitivity 0.06% 0.06% 0.01%: 0.01%
i} Details of unfun st re n 0N are 3
gatiod MNon- currrent) at the end of the perio
: PARTICULARS . | 318t March,2023 | 31st March,2022
Current define benelit obligation 24 22997 17,409,481
Non-current define benefit u-bﬁ;ﬁtiun 15,745.97 17.711.72
Total defined benefit obligation 39,975 94 3512113
b. Best Estimate Of Contribution During Next Year | 15,077.98 | 17,443.85
P :2?:;;*’ S o
‘;.- - - "-\‘-:F :" \
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FIMANTIAL INSTRUMENTS- ACCOUNTING, CLASSIFICATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

38 Financial instruments by category
et out balow & 8 comparmon, by clan, of the terrylng amounts and fale value ol the Compamy'i financiad natroments. other than those with carngng
amounts that are ressonable approximations of Tair values

{dmount in Hondreds)
. : — T
.E i - mlm i - - ! ._’__.
ekl A it b
1 |lelil.llm
{&] [Imestments * 5 GRMN02753 | 3535 ILIST 1578753151 15,70,056.49 66,82,927.57
{8} | Trade and othet Roceheabie i} 36,656 98 : . 36,0065 36,656 90
(e} |[Cann and Caah Equivalents 11 34,932.65 3,932 65 34,932.65
& |Bank Balancas othar than Cash 12 ALER 472 RS 1,806,477 65 3.B5,472.85
{ and Cash Equivatants
[e] |Loans b 11.68,11819 - 16611018 11,66,118.19
(i |Other firselal avsets ] 241,804 54 . 7.51,803 54 2,31 80164
Total 854691161 | 1353311757 15.79,753.51 | 342604058 45,318,911 68
2 | Fimancial Liabilities
[#) |Barmowings IT& 11, 713.41 . 1171341 11.713.41
(&} |Trade and other Payables b 14,8001 52 - . 14,800 52 14,801 52
[} |Sther Flruarulil Liaksiiies 18423 3.00,000 38 1,00, 00 38 3,00,009.38
Total 3,26,524.30 - 3,26,524.30 3,26,524.30
* Encludes investmants measured atcost .
fdmpunt in Munidreds)
i = .....-_- = EEE '___ |
] ~ PARTICULARS N ~ | Tatal Falr Value ) ! X ] [EE=. _'|
1 |Fimancial Assats
&) |Ineestments * 5 575138461 | 266964757 17,53,677.49 12,860,069 56 57,43,394.62
() [Trmche nnad ot Recenrakies 1 114967644 . - 31807644 3,79, 67644
(el [Canh and Cash Fouivilents 11 #7,708.93 - 67,70993 &7,708.93
Bank Halasices other than Cash 12 10,55 28871 - 10,559,288 71 10,59, 280.71
) and Cirkh Equivalents
{el |Lomms fa 14,78, 974.05 - 14,76 978 05 14,76,978.05
i |Orhar Nrancial Bsseta 7 BB, B35 6 : - 8,856,825 66 B,B6,825.66
Tatal 95 71,873.40 | 266964757 17,93 677.48 51,00,58E.35 95,63,873.41
2 | Financial Liabifities
(al |Borrowings 1ITE I 183908 - 18,391 %8 18,903 35
(5} |Trade and other Pavables i1 SE 43504 - 5843604 @5,355.61
€] |Cuher Financial Liablines 18 & 73 104, L8054 2,04, 51058 1,09,213.09
Total 1.81,409.98 - 2.81,405.98 2.76,962.05
*= Frciudes investmisnts imeatuned a8 oosl -
39 Disclosure in respect of Contingent Lability and Cagital Commitment:
{Amaunt is M}
. - == = =3 | REeioks yaarienmL,
e e - “T: " - K e mq . ]
| Capital Commitment [Nel of Advance past) = 0,500 10

b incoeme Tax
o Assessrment Year 20132014 , the compary has filed sn apesil with CLT. [Appeal) against 3 demand of [115,829 70 (Net of Pead under protest of &

500600 /-

T Assessrnent Year 20172018 , the company hat filed an aps=al with CLT. [Appeal) againt an income Tax Drader of 833, 744,18 (Met of Patd under protest

of M B A36.08 /)

40 Municipal Tan ;
Muricloal Tan ariounting 1o Rs. 24,090,000 DO/ ha Bein paid during thie finsncial year 2002-13 a1 agreod in mutual wettiement betwaen the Company and
Koliata Municgal Corparation and aut af which fs, 35071880/ is adjusted againet provitions. Further 3s per the demand order Ris. 29,457 11/~ is treated as
Adyance payment of Municiosl Ten and Ry, 20007 30448/ L recopnised 25 0a sxteptionsl (tem in the Statemant af Profil K Leds
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41 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Compamy’s principal financial liabilities includes Borrowlngs, Trade payable and Other financial liabilities. The maln purpose
of these financial Habilities is to finance the Company's operations. The Company's princ pal financial assets include Secorities,
Trade receivables, Cash and cash equivalents and Other financial assets that derive directly from Its operstions.

The Company s exposed to credit risk. Nguidity risk and marker risk. The Company's senior management overiees the
management of these risks and the appropriate financial sk governance framework for the Company, The senior managemernt
provides assurance that the Company’s finandal risk activities are governed by appropriate polices and procedures and that
financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives

The Board of Directors reviewed policies for managing each af these nisks, which are summarized bebow :

(@) Market risk
Market risk (5 the rick that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes In market prices
The Company's activities expose |t to a variety of finanozl risks, induding the effects of chanpes in intevest rates.

(i} interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk thot the falr value of future cash flows of an exposure will Roctuate because of changos n market
interest rates. Any changes in the interest rates environment may impact Future cost of barrowings. The interest rate risk is
managed by the Company by monitoring monthly cach Nows which is reviewed by management to prevent lcss of interest.

The following table demonstrates the borrowings af the Company
{Amount in Hundreds)

. ' Az at ; Asat
PARTICERARS 315t March, 2023 | 315t March, 2022
Wehicle Loan 11,713.41 18.393.36
Total 11,713.41 18,393.36

Sensithvity Analysis
The Tollowing table demonsirates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible changes in interest rates on that portion of borrowings
affected. With all other variables remaining constant, the company's profit before tax and eguity befare tax is affected, as

follows
[Amount in Hundreds)
Increase
oo ] JEffect an Profit. Effect on Pre t.
PARTICULARS decrease in Basis | = E 00 < g
points

As at + 0L5% {1.679.94) [LE679.94)

31st March, 2023 0.5% 1,679,594 1.679.94
As at «~05% 570,99 [B70.99)

31st March, 2022 - 0.5% R70.99 a70.99

{i] Price risk

The Company’s oxposure 1o securities price risk prises from investments held - both guoted, mutual fund and bonds and
classified in the balance sheet either as fair value through OO or at fair value through profit or loss. The Company Is not
gxpecting high sk expesure from its investment in securnes

The table below sets forth the Tair valtue of guoted investments in securities af isted companies and mutual funds
{Amaunt in Hundreds)

1IN Asat. As at
PARTICULARS e i
AR 31st March, 2023 | 31st March, 2022
Investments in Quoted Equity Shares (at FVTOCH) 78,950 21 79.146.40
[nestments in Mutual Funds {at FVTPL) 353311757 2 66864757
Investments in Bonds (at FYTOCI) . o & 418,950.00
TOTAL Fiaya? |- 3,612,107.78 3,167,773.96
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KANAK PROJECTS

Noles to the Consolidated Financial Statements as al and for the year ended 31st March, 2023
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KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statemenls as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2023

a5 Trade Paysble Ageing
Tha ageing analysks of the Trade Payables fmaunt I Hundedi)
[Dutstanding ax s 315t Barch, 7023 (3Lt March, 2077] from the due dato
Particulam : Total
WUekrilledt Dug™ Mot Due Up to 1 year 1-7 yuars 2-3 years More than 3 years
|eutstanding duss
of micra - . = .
enter ks and
2BR0.EY) 5, 18980 . - - {9,080.43)
putstanding duns
Jor copdiay ok 4,050.00 : 0,781.62 . 14,801,52
[than micra
|entarprees and
{8, Br0.0y 20742 T (80,000.00} (12,481 40) {49, 355.61}

nf micre
| EtstErpries amd
wmall eaterpraag

|of crpditors other
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HANAK PROJECTS LIMITED

Naotas to the Consolidated Financlal Statements &5 al and for the year ended 31sf March, 2023

50 The consolidated financial state menti prewant the conanlldsted soount of Kerak Projocts Limited with the falfowing =

SL 2 Pereentage of Hﬂiﬁw
R Narna of tha Compankss Reilationihip Coumi 1Yy o Incorparathan o on 31 003023] Asen
1 |Lao ksn Tra Cormnpany Pt | td fspociate India 20,91 a8.91
51 The Fallowing iInformatian sre prokided n rewpect of consolidaton!
[Anpunt in Hundreda)
Mot apsets | 0. Totdl Asats o Shate of Othe : Tsaon
S Sharn ln Proflt o Losd . ek : Share of Total Comprehanifve incoms
0 auw | Ao
Name Az tiak As st tonzzlidated Comadidat e Tatal : 1
%, e St (TTRE Fnsigamns ) ki) Tk Hisavity ()
Tt Asants Prafll s Loy Comprehenibe Intume
ingoms
Parent Company
1 |Kansk Propects Limelod g751 | .00 06402 w2 [18,34,879.05 100 | 16543037 97.EE (12 48 585 53]
Ansociiles
2 |iLan tan Tea Company By Lid 248 3.55.874.00 LEa [27.100.05) - 11 {27,100.08)
Totsl 100 [ 1027240413 g 14,41, %5114 100 | 16542037 100 (12,75 647.42)
52 The broak-up value of nvestment in Assaclate is 35 under | Refer Note No 5] -
Lirmgaant im ]
PRETICULARS Lao Jan Tea Comparny Pyt Lid.
Mumitied of Dguity Shanes 000
8,000
Percentage of Holding 1851
49.5]
[Corsd of Investment (Tguity Sharan) 8,000.00
%, 000000
Share in Arumuiared Profit/Loss upio 31 .08.2022 LA ATE08
13,05,385.67)
4hare of Profit for the Year [¥1,202.09]
(27,581.39)

Carrpng Dot

iShate of Other Comprenensieg Income fof the Year

2, 6307800
2,90,576.05

Tl Company ceatis ta have sighilicant mPiuonce ah (£ Assoclite and tesicunl shases arn cartind at Fair Value I|’.' -




KANAK PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stalements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2023

53 No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 of 1988) and rules.

54 The Company does not have any tronsactions with Companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies
Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956 during the period ending 31st March, 2023 and also for the
period ending 31st March, 2023,

55 The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank, financial institution or-any other entity.

56 There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period, for the current and
previous year.

57 The Company has complied with number of layers as prescribed under clause-87 of section 2 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Companies Rule, 2017.

58 The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded In the books of accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the current year and previous year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

59 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current year and previous
year .

B0 Utilisation Of Borrowed Funds and Share Premium
A} The Company has not advanced, loaned or invested funds{either borrowed funds or share premium or any other Sources or
kind af funds) to any other persan(s) or entity(les) including foreign entities{intermediariet) with the understand ng{whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall-
[} directly ar indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Com pany (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
i) provide any guarantee or security or the like 1o or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
50, required disclosure with respect 1o the above is not applicable.

BJThe Company has not received any fund from any persanis) or entitylies) including foreign entitiesiFunding Party) with the
understandinglwhather recorded in writing or otherwke) that the Company shall-

il directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Litimate Beneficiarkes)

i} provide any guarantee or security or the like on behalf of the Uimate Beneficlaries

50, required disclosure with respect 1o the above is not applicable.

&1 The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

62 Previous year/period figures have been regrouped/rearranged, wherever considered necessary, to make them
comparable with those of current year,




ROUTE MAP

Venue of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 22092023
11:00 A M at Kanak Building. 41 Chowringhee Road, Kolkata- 700071

Qﬂdnuh Towine
@( Hm'mk

ohﬂﬂlﬂﬂﬂﬂlm
Q Consultants | Y-Axis

n'm. ! 1'@ nsurance
prsm
fl':ll_p_-u-

"vee, Q*rtﬁ Dank
& - i- =5 N

Kanak Building

Standard Chanered
Bank 41 Chowringhee

- at




